
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 



 



 



 









 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 



 







 



 







 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 











 







 

Directors’ Report 
 

On the performance of the economy in 

general and the industry in particular 
 
The country's GDP growth in the current 2014-15 fiscal 

year has been calculated at 6.51% . Despite political 

agitation early in 2015 that adversely affected 

transport services, exports, and private investment, 

growth in Bangladesh held up well because of brisk 

domestic demand, boosted by higher worker 

remittances, private sector wages, and public 

investment. Inflation moderated in FY 2015 much as 

forecast in ADO 2015 from 7.4% a year earlier, 

reflecting large public stocks of food grains, normal 

weather, a supportive monetary policy, and lower 

global food and commodity prices that a steady 

exchange rate allowed to passed through. 
 
Operational Review  
The Industry Impact 
 
The consumer spend which picked up during latter 

part of the previous financial year saw a further boost 

in the 4th quarter of 2014/15, largely due to increase in 

disposable income arising from pay increases given to 

public sector employees and overall growth in GDP. 

Although there was a pickup in volumes of most of 

FMCG categories, the opportunity for increase in 

prices was not seen as volume growth was through 

value propositions to the consumer. Whilst the urban 

consumers have shown an increase in consumption, 

the mix between the different provinces contributions 

is changing. This is an indication that the consumption 

in other provinces is picking up due to improvement in 

income. 
 
Product range 
 
Our portfolio of products cater to the mass market 

both in the retail channel for in-home consumption 

and Hotels, Restaurants and Catering establishments 

(HORECA) channel which is referred to as out-of-

home consumption. GHAIL launched new products 

during the year under the ‘Golden Harvest’ brand 

comprised of Sweet & Hot wings and Drumlets, 

Chicken strips, Chicken popcorn, Chicken meatball. 

 

Milestone During the year 
 
We successfully implement the Ice Cream project. 

Golden Harvest Ice-Cream Ltd. is the new entrant in 

the Bangladesh ice-cream industry with the brand 

BLOOP. The ice-cream industry in Bangladesh is 

growing steadily at around 12% every year. Golden 

Harvest has set up a brand new plant from Tetra Pack 

Sweden and is being operated under the supervision 

of a highly experienced Danish production manager. 

The brand offers around 46 various variants including 

sticks, cups, cones, squzee, sorbets, tubs and many 

more. 

 
New Investments  
Golden Harvest Dairy 
 
Golden Harvest dairy Limited is a subsidiary of GHAIL 

Holding 75% share. Need for high quality, pure and 

safe milk is increasing every day in Bangladesh. 

Demand for milk is also increasing due to increased 

use of dairy for other different categories like sweets, 

yogurt, ghee, cheese, etc. Sweetmeat is one industry 

that is very large in the greater Sylhet, Comilla, 

Chittagong and Dhaka areas. Golden Harvest dairy is 

offering best quality milk from a high quality cattle herd 

managed by a group of dairy professionals. 

 

Golden Harvest Dairy is situated in Fatehpur 

(Gowainghat Upazila, Sylhet District) adjacent to 

National Highway. Strategically located in Sylhet-

Jaflong Highway, the site provides swift access to the 

National Highway N2 and hence to Dhaka and 

Chittagong, and is positioned conveniently for access 

into the Sylhet town. Golden Harvest Dairy Limited with 

a constructed structure having total area of 154,638 

sq.ft. The farm currently involves 300 cows with a 

target to reach 1,300 cows to achieve milk production 

of 2,184,000 liters by the end of first year. 
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USAID supported Winrock is also supporting with 

technical expertise and consultancy to ensure best 

possible hygiene, cattle health and nutrition, fodder 

plantation, yield, milk collection and handling. 
 

Our Channels and Distribution Network 
 

From a channel perspective all channels contributed to 

the overall growth in volume. The three main channels 

which are the General Trade, HORECA and Modern 

Trade all posted satisfactory growth.Our distributor 

network which covers the sale and availability of our 

products nation wide also contributed to our success 

by ensuring that our key sales strategies were imple-

mented and executed satisfactorily. Their role in our 

overall success was invaluable and although many of 

them have had to contend with growing trend of 

delayed settlements by both General Trade merchants 

and HORECA outlets which impacts collection viz a viz 

their cash flow. During the year the outlet reach within 

both the General Trade and HORECA channels were 

further expanded. 

 

Marketing and Branding Strategy 
 

In the face of growing competition at the lower end 

of the frozen food market, the year saw GHAIL 

competing at all levels with more focus on the value 

added range of products on offer in the market. 

Leveraging on the ‘Golden Harvest’ and ‘Bloop’ 

brand value, GHAIL's strategic marketing agenda 

for the year, featured a series of well-planned 

initiatives aimed at ensuring customers make an 

informed choice at all times. 

 
Our brand building activities focused on consumer 

engagement through demonstrations on product 

quality and preparation options through market 

activations both at the retail and consumer level in the 

market place. Marketing efforts for the year, were 

meant to convey the quality and value proposition of 

our product. Strategic intent was to build focus and 

grow in-home consumption through conversion from 

loose to ‘Golden Harvest’ branded products and 

upgrading the consumer by tapping into white spaces. 

Golden Harvest branded paratha category expanded 

its consumer base in the mass market eateries and is 

now featured as a meal accompaniment. 

 
 
 

 

The new packaging and the new product has 

helped in giving a new consumer experience both in 

taste and appearance of this product. 

 

Golden Harvest introduced “Bloop” as the latest 

brand of Ice Cream industry in September 24, 2014. 

Within One year of operation, Bloop has become a 

known brand for product quality, proximate retail 

availability, innovative marketing communication & 

brand visibility. The brand divulging itself in DITF 

2015 with Massive Consumer Engagement program 

based on augmented reality had availed brand 

awareness through the year through it’s TV 

Commercials, Radio Commercials, Billboards, shop 

branding, freezer placement at retail outlets and 

product trials in many events or sponsor-ships. 

 
In 2015 bloop joined hands with Champs21 as an 

associate sponsor of Spelling Bee Season 4; which 

is the largest educational platform to showcase the 

talents from the schools from divisional cities. 96 

contestants who have been selected from 3,11,000 

participants through divisional round will compete to 

become the next Spelling Bee champ. 

 
The brand activities were focused at the retail level with 

the improvement of our merchandising and point of 

sale material (POSM) to make a bigger impact of our 

presence in the market place. A competition was held 

among the retailers to encourage permanent branding 

for our products in these sales outlets. 
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Supply Chain and Procurement 
 
Through contact farming, GHAIL continued with the 

supply chain management and seamless backward 

integration initiatives practiced in the past few years. 

Driven by an unwavering commitment to excellence, 

the Company has always pursued relationships with 

local producers and suppliers to help secure the 

consistent quality of the produce used in the 

Company's products. Technical guidance and 

knowledge transfer efforts initiated by GHAIL have 

assisted suppliers to enhance their service standards 

and outputs in conformity with internationally accepted 

benchmarks, while promoting cost effective 

procurement practices. In addition to offering farmers a 

secure livelihood, GHAIL's seamless farmer out 

grower model for vegetables and meat facilitates a 

guaranteed standardised supply to fulfill the 

Company's requirements. The cold chain network not 

only eliminating the need for intermediaries, direct 

access to farmers and growers through this program 

also seeks to benchmark the quality of produce 

sourced, thereby assuring all vegetables and meat 

used in the product range conforms to uniform quality 

specifications. 
 
To ensure quality of chicken meat GHAIL procuring 

chicken from US Aid recognized farmers who are 

trained by US Aid guideline and they are providing 

poultry feed provided by USAID. 

 

Quality Standards and Research and 

Development 
 
The Company believes that the modern day 

Consumers demand quality, convenience and value 

for money from the brands they choose and all our 

products sold under the brand names of Golden 

Harvest, and Bloop score high in this regard. The 

Company complies with stringent international 

standards/ ISO certifications for hygiene and food 

safety such as ISO 9001:2008, HACCP at factory. 

 
 
 

 

Furthermore the Golden Harvest and Bloop brand 

range is also BSTI certified. This prime focus on the 

highest quality standards run through all the 

functions in the Company from sourcing, to product 

innovation, manufacturing, marketing and are 

embedded in the genes of our staff. 
 
Our well-equipped Quality Assurance and Research 

and Development laboratories help us to deliver our 

promise of high quality products to our consumers. 
 
Human Resource Management 
 
Last year Golden Harvest HR worked with a vision for 

creating a work-culture to foster creativity, innovation 

and productivity through dynamic and engaged people 

with an objective to become the most trusted and 

preferred brand to every household of Bangladesh. We 

identified the training needs through a structured TNA 

(Training Need Assessment) process and provided 

trainings accordingly to develop the knowledge and 

skills of our human resources. 
 
Regular S & OP (Sales & Operational Planning) 

meetings were conducted with an objective to enhance 

process efficiency & effectiveness and also to share 

cross-functional knowledge & skills. We finalized the 

SLA(Strategic Leadership Agenda) for the whole year 

and infused a planning culture in Golden Harvest. We 

ensured an enabling working environment to unleash 

the full potential of the employees and a performance 

based career progression as a talent retention strategy. 

We adopted modern selection tools e.g. Competency 

Based Interview, Behavioral Interview etc. which made 

our selection process more scientific and unbiased. We 

are doing Manpower Planning, Career Planning and 

Succession Planning so that the organization gets the 

right people in the right place at the right time. We 

adopted KPI (Key Performance Indicator) based 

Performance Appraisal System which is a combination 

of qualitative & quantitative SMART targets with an 

objective to make our appraisal system more 

participatory, fair and unbiased. 
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Our Appraisal System also includes appropriate 

balance over Individual Performance, Departmental  
Performance and Organizational Performance. There 

is a Compensation Committee which ensures regular 

compensation survey of the relevant industry and 

ensures that the salary & fringe benefits are 

determined by the reference to the external market, 

internal equity and affordability 
 

We are working relentlessly to establish Golden 

Harvest as a platform to learn, grow and contribute for 

consistently delivering international standard 

innovative products and services for improved lifestyle. 
 

Health and Safety 
 

It is the policy of the Golden Harvest to promote safe 

and healthy working conditions in the office as far as 

reasonable. Golden Harvest will ensure that various 

health and safety measures will be maintained. All the 

employees also have the responsibility for their own 

and other employees' health and safety and should act 

accordingly If possible Golden Harvest will,from time to 

time, try to organize sessions on general health and 

safety to remind and update all employees about 

appropriate measures and practices. The following are 

the measures taken for the sound environment, health 

and safety of employees in the office:  
• The Company is a no smoking area 

and environment friendly. 

• All working areas of GHAIL are fitted with room 

air conditioners to keep the working areas cool 

and dust-free. 

• The GHAIL will ensure that electrical wiring 

and installations in the office are safe and 

properly maintained to avoid hazards. 

• All reasonable measures will be taken that 

machinery and equipment is safe to operate. 

• A full time doctor has been appointed to give 

emergency medical aid if anybody injure and there 

are several first aid boxes in our factory office with 

emergency medicines. It is proudly observed that 

there were no major accidents reported during the 

year under review and the attendance of associates 

did improve appreciably. We did not experience any 

major injuries, occupational diseases, lost days or 

work related fatalities in any of our operations. 
 

Looking Ahead 
 

The consumption of further processed products is 

seeing a pickup due to improvement in disposable 

income of our consumers and life style changes. 
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The per capita consumption of these products are low 

compared to the regional markets and we see an 

upside of increase in consumption and consumer base 

in the medium term. The growth of the modern trade 

channel across the country would be leveraged to 

improve the visibility and availability of our product 

range. The strategies implemented during the year 

which proved successful in achieving a significant 

growth in our profitability will be further consolidated for 

future growth. Furthermore the economic indicators in 

the short to medium term are positive for the consumer 

market and as such we are hopeful of improving upon 

the success we achieved this year. 
 

Awards and Accolades 
 
The Annual Report Golden Harvest Agro 
Industries Limited for 2013/14 has been awarded 

the First award under Agricultural sector category 

and the evaluation is done on the basis of the 

Evaluation criteria set by South Asian Federation 

of Accountant (SAFA) Committee for Improvement 

in Transparency. 

 
The Annual Report Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Limited for 2013/14 has been awarded 

the Gold Award by Institute of Chartered 

Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in the Food and 

Allied Companies Category. This award signifies 

the excellence in Corporate Governance. 

 
In Brand Forum Commward 2015, Bloop has won 

the Grand Prix award in the packaging category. 
 

Risks and concerns 
 
Risk and uncertainness are the indispensable 

elements of business, GHAIL is also Inheriting risks 

like materials supply, distribution, operational and 

power, For minimizing risks, the Company is 

maintaining robust system of managing risks 

relating to material supply by establishing strong 

base through contract farming, well-built distribution 

channel and also flawless credit control system and 

ensuring power backup support for uninterrupted 

production through setting up appropriate capacity 

of backup Generator. Risk framework and risk 

management are elaborated in page No.50. 



 
 
 
 

 

Financial Review 
 
 
 

1. Sales Revenue: 
 
The Revenue at Company level increased by 8% to Tk. 

777million (Tk. 657 million in 2013 -14) as a result of 

introducing some new products and change in the sales 

mix. The paratha, nuggets and sausage categories grew 

in volume respectively whilst other sub categories have 

little growth. Our Company continues to be the market 

leader with a range of processed frozen ready to cook 

products of very high quality in the country. The Compa-

ny was constrained in introducing innovative products to 

keep pace with the current trend of customer choice and 

satisfaction. 
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2. Cost of Sales: 
 
Cost of sale TK. 412 million in this year against TK. 

346 for the previous. Cost of sale is 47% of sale 

where it was 48% of sale in the previous year. Overall 

cost of sale has decreased due to increase in 

efficiency in all level of operation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Gross Profit: 
 
The Company earns a gross profit of Tk. 365 million 

in the reporting year having a growth of 17% 

compared to previous year. This year we have 

achieved cost efficien-cy in Gross profit. As a result 

gross profit margin increased to 51.28% from 47%. 
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4. Operating Profit: 
 Operating Profit (BDT Million) 
       

The Company earns operating profit of Tk. 293 million 
300 

      

which is 47% higher than that of previous year. The 
      

200 

      

main reason for increasing operating profit is increased       

sales from the new project of its subsidiary Golden 100       

Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. High profit margin from 
0 

      

another new unit “Dairy”. In this year the company 
      

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015  

introduced freezer rent from the retailers. This has an        

additional impact for the upward trend in operating        
       

profit.        
 
 
 
 

Net Profit After Tax 
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5. Net Profit after Tax: 
 
Profit after tax of the company stood at Tk. 101 

million compared to Tk. 97 million in previous year. 

The logical growth in net profit is because of 

increase in Operating profit. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

6. Total Assets: 
 

The total asset at the Company increased to TK. 

2,875 million from the previous year of TK. 2,815 

million. The slight growth is because of addition of 

certain machineries. 

 
The Group has a substantial growth in total assets 

because of the fast expansion of its subsidiary 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. Total assets of the 

group stood at Tk. 4007 million compared to Tk. 3360 

million in previous year resulting a growth of 16%. 
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7. Reserves and Surplus: 
 

Reserves and Surplus stood at Tk. 702 million 

compared to Tk. 660 million in previous year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

8. Shareholders' Funds: 
 

Shareholders' funds increased to TK. 1930 million from 

TK. 1,888 million from the previous year representing a 

increase of 2% for the Company. The growth is small 

because of decrease in profitability and the payment of 

dividends amounting to TK. 81 million. Shareholders' 

fund at Group level was at TK. 1,930 million as against 

TK. 1,888 million in the previous year. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

9. Earnings Per Share (EPS): 

 

The Group EPS of reporting period is Tk. 1.23 per 

share. In the previous year the EPS was Tk. 1.19 

per share. There is an increase of EPS by 3.36% in 

report-ing year due to increase in overall 

performance of the Company. 
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10. Net Assets per share: 
 

As at the close of the business in the reporting period 

Net Assets per share was Tk. 23.56 compared to Tk. 

23.05in previous year resulted increase by2.21%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Contribution to National Exchequer: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11. Return on Equity: 
 
Return on Equity in the reporting year was 5.29% 

compared to 5.18% in previous year. There is an 

increase of return by 2% 

 
GHAIL is paying and facilitating collection of Government's revenue. In 2014-15, we paid, collected & 

deposited a significant amount of Income Tax, VAT & Duties. All due and applicable taxes were paid, 

collected and deposit-ed in time. During the year 2014-15, the group contributed to the government 

exchequer along with utility about a sum of Tk. 118 Million which is appended below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contribution to National Exchequer: 

 
 

17.67% 

 
Income tax & VAT   

67.23% 

 
Import Duty  

5.31%  

TDS & VDS 
  
 

9.36% 
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0.43%  
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Market Capitalization 
 
The Company's share price was Tk. 30.50 at the beginning of the financial year and saw a decrease to Tk. 

29.10 as at 30 June 2015 moving within a range of Tk. 37.80 to Tk. 15.60 during the year. 

 

The market capitalization of the Company was Tk. 2,383 million (Tk. 2498 million in 2012-14) as at the end of 

the financial year. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Stock Performanence 
 
The graph set forth below compares the annual cumulative total return for the Company’s two fiscal years ended 

30 June 2015 among the Company, the Dhaka Stock Exchange Market Index (the “DSEX Index”) and a sector 

index for Food and Agro products (called 'Food & Allied') manufacturers and traders (the “Group Index”) 

comprised of the Company and 17 other companies. The returns of each company in the Group Index have been 

weighted according to the company’s stock market capitalization. The graph has been prepared based on an 

assumed investment of Tk. 1,000 on 29 June 2013 and the reinvestment of dividends (where applicable). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Stock Performanence 
 

  2012-2013  2013-2014  2014-2015 
       

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.  1,000  6,962  664 
       

Group Index  1,000  2,230  2,554 
       

DSEX Index  1,000  4,481  4,583 
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Remuneration of Directors 
 

Directors were remunerated as per the decision of the 

Board and a detailed report of the Directors' Remunera-

tion is included in Note 35.3 of Financial Statements. 
 

Dividend 
 

Board of Directors has recommended Stock Dividend 
of 10% for the year 2013-14. Upon your approval in 
the General Meeting, the dividend will be provided to 
the Shareholders whose names appear in the Share 
Registers of the Company or in the Depository as on 
19 November 2015 at the close of office. 

 
Credit Ratings  
CRISL has reaffirmed the Long Term rating to 'A+" 
(pronounced as Single A plus) and the Short Term 
rating to 'ST-3' of Golden Harvest Agro Industries 
Limited on the basis of its financials and other relevant 
quantitative and qualitative information up to the date 
of rating. CRISL placed the company with "'Stable 
Outlook"' with the Credit rating History: 

 
Entity Rating Outlook 

A+ Stable 

A+ Positive 

A+ Positive 

A+ Positive 

A+ Positive 
 

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance 
 

Status of compliance with the requirements/conditions 

of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission 

(BSEC) Notification no.: BSEC/CMHBCD/2036-

158/134/Ad-min/44 dated 07 August 2012 on 

corporate governance has been included in the report.  
Directors' Responsibilities statements: 

 
Pursuant to the BSEC notification No. BSEC/CM- 
FIF1CD/ 2006- 158/134/Admin/44 dated; 07  
August 2012 the Directors confirm that: 

 
a) The financial statements prepared by the 

management of Golden Harvest Agro Industries 
Limited fairly present its state of affairs, the result of 
its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.  

b) Proper books of Account of the Company have 

been maintained.  
c) Appropriate accounting policies have been 

consistently applied in preparation of the financial 

statements and that the accounting estimates are 

based on reasonable and prudent judgment. 
 

d) International Accounting Standards (IAS) / 

Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS)/ Internation 

al Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as 

applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in 

preparation of the financial statements and any 

departure there from has been adequately disclosed. 
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e) The system of internal control is sound in design and 

has been effectively implemented and monitored. 

f) There are no doubts upon the Company's ability 

to continue as a going concern and the annual 

accounts have been prepared on going concern 

basis.  
g) The significant deviations from last year in the 

operating results of the company have been 
highlighted in the report and reasons thereof 

have been explained.  
h) The key operating and financial data for the last 

five years is disclosed in Annexure-1. 
 

i) The pattern of shareholding is disclosed in Annexure-2. 
 

j) A compliance status report with requirements of 

corporate governance as required by BSEC has been 

disclosed in Regulatory Compliance Report segment.  
k) Directors' profile and their directorship and 

business interest in other organizations have been 

disclosed in Board of Directors segment.  
Validity Rating Rating Assigned 
 

2015-2016 CRISL  
2014-2015 CRISL  
2013-2014 CRISL  
2012-2013 CRISL  
2011-2012 CRISL 

 
Gratitude:  
We express our sincere thanks and appreciation to all 
honorable shareholders, our customers. Bangladesh 
Securities and Exchange Commission, Dhaka Stock 
Exchange Limited,Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited, 
National Board of Revenue, various government 
authorities, trade bodies and all bankers and financial 
institution for their support, co-operation and guidance 
in our business endeavor. In this occasion we also 
want express our heartiest congratulations to all our 
staffs and management members whose perseverance 
and professionalism, hard works contribute to maintain 
our strong competitive position and high technological 
status. We rely on their enthusiasm, sincerity as well as 
their commitments for maintaining quality to ensure 
safety and to build the company as a pioneer and 
leader in food sector. 

 
As we moving forward to the next frontier of growth 
and excellence, we seek your support and 
encouragement as we are used to get from you since 
beginning of our journey. 

 

On behalf of the Board 
 
 

 

Matthew Graham Stock 
Chairman 



 
 
 
 

Some of our new products 
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 Five Years Financial Analysis      Annexure 1 
          

          
 Particular 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13  2011-12  2010-11  
          

 Results of operations:         
          

 Turnover 776,658,989.00 656,624,665.00 625,680,209.00 558,666,376.00 519,285,940.00  
        

 Gross Profit 364,986,172.00 310,785,740.00 280,715,606.00 254,941,888.00 274,301,403.00  

 Profit/ Loss from Operation 292,782,987.00 198,776,089.00 210,837,460.00 183,482,822.00 231,081,190.00  

 Net Profit/loss before tax 125,994,308.00 150,114,822.00 210,764,632.00 123,598,145.00 204,350,329.00  
         

 Net Profit/loss after tax 100,974,622.00 97,174,716.00 148,196,246.00  78,325,639.00 132,269,451.00  

 EBITDA 361,522,084.00 278,520,310.00  205,442,044.00 251,762,993.00  
 EBITDA margin to sales 46.55% 42.42%   36.77%  48.48%  
          

 Earning Per Share(EPS) 1.23 1.19 2.43  1.64  3.78  
          

 Dividend per share 1.00 1.00 1.50  2.00  -  
          

 No of Shares 81,900,000.00 81,900,000.00 78,000,000.00  35,000,000.00  35,000,000.00  
          

          
 Financial Position         
        

 Total Assets 4,006,564,213.00 3,440,355,786.00 2,614,274,834.00 1,549,432,414.00 1,283,278,696  

 Property, Plant and Equipment-Gross 2,248,213,749.00 1,187,579,023.00 988,465,578.00 666,092,185.00 958,592,384  

 Property, Plant and Equipment-Net 2,043,007,481.00 1,045,221,962.00 882,826,487.00 589,288,309.00 905,764,222  

 Gross Working Capital 1,256,509,485.00 1,327,550,081.00 1,321,162,367.00 569,726,182.00 349,702,345  

 Net Working Capital 38,075,154.00 351,985,449.00 767,444,343.00 62,180,938.00 49,526,281  

 Short term Loan 826,347,858.00 768,785,433.00 367,790,679.00 337,479,853.00 132,188,555  

 Share Capital 819,000,000.00 819,000,000.00 780,000,000.00 350,000,000.00 350,000,000  

 Share Premium 408,766,054.00 408,766,054.00 408,766,054.00 -  -  

 Reserve and Surplus 701,946,156.00 660,357,005.00 806,559,393.00 608,272,329.00 318,269,063  

 Shareholders Equity 1,929,712,210.00 1,888,123,059.00 1,995,325,447.00 958,272,329.00 893,616,252  

 Term Loan 847,624,873.00 446,956,085.00 63,481,569.00 78,496,163.00 91,209,232  

 Lease Obligation 7,882,651.00 7,883,602.00 11,704,869.00 18,077,150.00 11,082,877  
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Ratio Analysis 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Particular 2014-15 2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 
      

Key Financial Rations:      
      

Current Ratio 1.03 1.36 2.39 1.12 1.16 

Gross profit ratio (%) 46.99% 47.33% 46.60% 45.63% 52.82% 

Debt to Total Assets(%) 41.98% 35.57% 23.67% 38.15% 30.36 

Debt Equity Ratio 1.07 0.82 0.40 0.45 0.44 

Return on Equity(%) 5.29% 5.18% 10.49% 8.46% 20.61 

Return on Capital Employed(%) 7.71 8.85 6.61 5.07 3.90 

Net Asset Value Per Share 23.56 23.05 25.58 19.96 25.53 

Dividend Payout Ratio 81.11% 84.28% 52.63% 165.97% - 

Interest Service Coverage Ratio 1.78 2.76 4.13 3.34 8.40 

      
Others:      

      

Market Price Per Share 29.10 30.50 46.00 - - 

Price Earning multiple 23.60 25.71 18.93 - - 

Number of Employees 520.00 642.00 573.00 543.00 508.00 

Capacity Utilization(%)-Average 48.78 60.15 63.23 56.62 51.66 
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Stakeholders’ Information 
 

 

Name /Status  % of Shares 
   

Mr. Matthew Graham Stock - Chairman and Director  2.00% 
  

Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani - Managing Director  22.31% 
   

Mr. Mohius Samad Choudhury - Director  2.00% 
  

Mr. Ahmed Mehdi Samdani - Director  2.00% 
   

Ms. Nadia Khalil Choudhury -Director  2.00% 
  

Mr. Azizul Huque -Director  2.26% 
   

Mr. Moqsud Ahmed Khan - Director  2.46% 
  

Foreign investors  0.44% 

Institutions  37.15% 
  

General shareholders  27.38% 
    

100.00%  
Shareholder Holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the company:  
Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani  
ICB 

 
Share held by Directors /Executives and relatives of Directors / Executives 

 

 
No. of Shares 

 
1,638,000 

 
18,273,360 

 
1,638,000 

 
1,638,000 

 
1,638,000 

 
1,850,688 

 
2,016,000 

 
45,106 

 
22,718,159 

 
30,444,687 

 
81,900,000 

 

18,273,360  
8,252,040 

 
Nill 

 
Range with shareholding position: 

 

Range of holdings  No. of shareholders  % of shareholders  Number of shares 
           

In number of shares  2015 2014  2015 2014  2015  2014 

1 to 499  16,482 21,956  0.82 0.82  3,793,479  4,976,646 

500 to 5,000  2,686 3,857  0.13 0.14  4,510,539  6,315,476 

5,001 to 10,000  392 533  0.02 0.02  2,744,478  3,607,561 

10,001 to 20,000  191 232  0.01 0.01  2,572,772  3,135,511 

20,001 to 30,000  78 95  0.00 0.00  1,934,930  2,284,776 

30,001 to 40,000  36 39  0.00 0.00  1,259,069  1,325,724 

40,001 to 50,000  28 21  0.00 0.00  1,278,324  959,180 

50,001 to 100,000  70 64  0.00 0.00  4,936,365  4,504,224 

100,001 to 1,000,000  50 42  0.00 0.00  10,149,562  8,598,044 

Over 1,000,000  15 14  0.00 0.00  48,720,482  46,192,858 
         

Total  20,028 26,853  1.00 1.00  81,900,000  81,900,000 
           

 

         

Status  % of Shares       
        

Institutions  37.15%       
     

37.15% 
35.03% 

  

Sponsor 
 

35.03% 
  

27.38% 

 

     
        

General shareholders  27.38%       
      

0.44% 

 

Foreign investors  0.44%   
   

Institutions Sponsor GeneralForeign investors 
 

      

Total 
 

100.00% 
   

     shareholders  

     Shareholding Composition  
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Shareholders' & Investors' Information 
 
Annual General Meeting (AGM)  
No. of AGM: 11th AGM  
Date: 15 December 2015 
 
Venue: Factory premises, Bokran, monipur, Bobanipur, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur, bangladesh. 
 
Time: 10.00 AM 
 
Financial Calender  
Financial Year: 1st July to 30th June 
 
During the FY 2014-2015 operational results of the company were annouced on: 
 

15 November 2014  First Quarter Report 
    

30 January 2015  Half Yearly Report 
    

30 April 2015  Third Quarter Report 
    

30 October 2015  Annual Financial Result 
     
Record Date 
 
The Record Date was 19 November 2015 

 
Dividend Rate 
 
A final dividend @ 10% stock has been recommended on 27 October 2015 and after having approval of the share 

holders at the AGM, dividend will be distributed within 30 days from the date of AGM. 
 
Listing 
 
The Company's shares are listed at the Stock Exchanges in Dhaka and Chittagong of Bangladesh. 
 
Face valu Per Share: Tk. 10/= (Taka ten) 
 
Share Trading Information from 1st July to 30th June 
 

2014-2015 2013-2014 2012-2013 
 
  Highest during the year    37.8    
            

  Lowest during the year    15.6    
       

29.1 
  

 

  Closing Price as at 30th june    
           

  No. of Shares    81,900,000 

Dividend        
        

Rate of Dividend 
 

  Year     
            

 2014-2015      10%    
           

 2013-2014      10%    

 

           

2012-2013      10% and 5%  
           

 2011-2012      20%    
  

Market Capitalization 

      

4,000 
        
           

           
3,000   Year   Taka in Million   

       

 

        

2,000 2011-2012    -    

 

        

1,000 2012-2013    3,588    

 

        

- 2013-2014    2,498    

 

         

2014-2015    2,383     

            

 
 

54.5 84 

29 29.4 

30.5 46 

81,900,000 78,000,000 

 

 
Form of dividend 

 
Stock ( Recomanded) 

 
Cash 

 
Cash and Stock respectively 

 
Stock 

 

Market Capitalization (Taka in Million) 
 

            

            

            

            

-2012 
 -2013   -2014  -2015   

2012 

 

2013 2014 

  

2011 

   
     Market Capitalization        
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 
 
 
 

Share price sensitivity 
 
 
 

 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd (GHAIL) processes over 75 varieties of premium quality frozen 

food products of vegetables, ready to eat foods, finger foods and many more. Under its two 

subsidiaries, Golden Harvest Dairy Limited is in its early stage of operation in the dairy project and 

Golden Harvest Ice-Cream Ltd (GHIL) is operating in the ice-cream industry with the brand BLOOP. 

The brand offers around 40 various variants including sticks, cups, cones, calippo, sorbets, tubs, 

cakes and many more hence variety of external and internal factors that influence the company's 

predominance as well as its share price. During the year ended 30 June 2015, GHAIL outperformed 

the DSEX 1000 index but its share price decreased from Tk. 30.50 to Tk. 29.10 witnessing a notable 

decrease around 4.59% as compared to the increasing trend in DSEX 1000 index by 3.52%. During 

the year, the Company reported an EPS of Tk.1.23, which is 3% higher as compared to last year. 
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Compliance Report on BAS and BFRS 
 

 Sl. No. BAS Title Remarks 

 BAS-01 Presentation of Financial Statements Applied 
    

 BAS-02 Inventories Applied 
    

 BAS-07 Statement of Cash Flows Applied 
    

 BAS-08 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Applied 
    

 BAS-10 Events After the Reporting Period Applied 
    

 BAS-11 Construction Contracts N/A 
    

 BAS-12 Income Taxes Applied 
    

 BAS-16 Property, Plant and Equipment Applied 
    

 BAS-17 Leases Applied 
    

 BAS-18 Revenue Applied 
    

 BAS-19 Employee Benefits Applied 
    

 BAS-20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance N/A 
    

 BAS-21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Applied 
    

 BAS-23 Borrowing Costs Applied 
    

 BAS-24 Related Party Disclosures Applied 
    

 BAS-26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans N/A 
    

 BAS-27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements Applied 
    

 BAS-28 Investments in Associates Applied 
    

 BAS-29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies N/A 
    

 BAS-31 Interests In Joint Ventures Applied 
    

 BAS-32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Applied 
    

 BAS-33 Earnings Per Share Applied 
    

 BAS-34 Interim Financial Reporting Applied 
    

 BAS-36 Impairment of Assets Applied 
    

 BAS-37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Applied 
    

 BAS-38 Intangible Assets Applied 
    

 BAS-39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement Applied 
    

 BAS-40 Investment Property N/A 
    

 BAS-41 Agriculture N/A 
    

    

 Sl. No. BFRS title Remarks 

 BFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards N/A 
    

 BFRS 2 Share-based Payment N/A 
    

 BFRS 3 Business Combinations Applied 
    

 BFRS 4 Insurance Contracts N/A 
    

 BFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations N/A 
    

 BFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets N/A 
    

 BFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Applied 
    

 BFRS 8 Operating Segments Applied 
    

 BFRS 9 Financial Instruments Applied 
    

 BFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Applied 
    

 BFRS 11 Joint Arrangments N/A 
    

 BFRS 12 Discloser of Interest in other Entities Applied 
    

 BFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Applied 
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AUDITOR’S REPORT & 
CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES 

LIMITED as at and for the year ended 30 June 2015 



GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 

a member of 
 
 

 
registered in Berlin-Germany 

 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report  

to 
The Shareholders of Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Golden Harvest Agro 
Industries Limited (“the company”) which comprise statement of financial position as at 30 June 
2015 and the state-ment of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows and also consolidated financial statements of the company 
and its subsidiary which comprise consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015 
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated 
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended 
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 

state-ments in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) and for such 

internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 
 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those 

standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 

and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 

the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presenta-

tion of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
House # 432 (2nd Fl.), Lane # 30, New DOHS, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206  
Tel : +880-2-9884390, Mobile : 01824-56 79 96, 01819-13 70 95  
E-mail : skbarua_123@yahoo.com, Web : www.skbarua.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thielallee 113, D 14195 Berlin  
Germany  
Phone : +355 67 20 66 161 
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Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the gtoup and the separate financial statements 

of the company give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the gtoup and the 

separate financial position of the company as at 30 June 2015, and of its consolidated and separate 
 
financial performance and its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRSs) and comply with the Companies 

Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. 

 

We also report that 
 
a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

 
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books; 
 
c) the statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income dealt 

with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and 
 
d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business. 

 
 
 

 

Dated: Dhaka; 
S. K. Barua & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
27 October 2015  
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 
 

 
GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED  

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position  
as at June 30, 2015 

 

Notes 
Amount in BDT 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14   
ASSETS 
Non-current assets  2,750,054,728 2,112,805,705 

Property, plant and equipment 5 
 

 

 

2,043,007,481 1,045,221,962 
Leased assets 6 25,179,884  20,710,806 

Intangible asset 7 12,379,666  11,200,000 

Capital work in progress 8 669,487,697  1,035,672,937 
 

Current assets  1,256,509,485 1,327,550,081 

Inventories 10 
   

 

 

 251,548,833 155,314,554 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 11  676,538,313  514,770,583 

Trade & other receivables 12  230,130,164  232,951,431 

Cash and cash equivalents 13  98,292,175  424,513,513 

TOTAL ASSETS 
     

  4,006,564,213  3,440,355,786 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

      

      

Shareholders' equity  1,929,712,210 1,888,123,059 

Share capital 14 
 

 

 

 819,000,000 819,000,000 
Share premium 15  408,766,054  408,766,054 

Revaluation surplus 16  303,525,145  288,465,361 

Retained earnings 17  398,421,011  371,891,644 

Non controlling interest 18  12,440,400  1,190 

Total equity  1,942,152,610 1,888,124,249 

Non-current liabilities  845,977,272 576,666,905 

Long term loan 19 
 

 

 

 707,676,825 430,068,752 
Deferred tax liability 20  132,749,694  144,379,364 

Lease obligation 21  5,550,753  2,218,790 

Current liabilities  1,218,434,331 975,564,632 

Accounts and other payables 22  96,319,442  57,643,799 

Accruals and provisions 23  153,487,085  126,583,254 

Short term loan 24  826,347,858  768,785,433 

Current portion of long term loan 19  139,948,048  16,887,333 

Current portion of lease obligation 21  2,331,898  5,664,812 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
    

  4,006,564,213  3,440,355,786 

Number of share used to calculate NAV 

     

  81,900,000  81,900,000 

Net asset value per share 
    

  23.56  23.05 
       

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith. 

 
 
 

Director 

 

 Director 

 
 
 
Managing Director 

 
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 

Dated, Dhaka;  
27 October 2015 

 

S. K. Barua & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Statement of Financial Position 
as at June 30, 2015 

 

 

 
Notes 

Amount  in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 
 

30-Jun-14    

ASSETS     

Non-current assets  2,017,582,155 1,830,863,739 

Property, plant and equipment 5A 900,601,983  728,124,907 

Leased assets 6A 18,337,212  18,080,043 

Intangible asset 7A 11,798,291  11,200,000 

Capital work in progress 8A 438,369,647  478,038,445 

Investment in subsidiary company 9 648,475,022  595,420,344 

Current assets  858,248,717 984,243,645 

Inventories 10A 92,858,670  73,897,614 

Advances, deposits and prepayments 11A 398,468,421  335,519,222 

Trade & other receivables 12A 334,224,876  323,089,633 

Cash and cash equivalents 13A 32,696,750  251,737,176 

TOTAL ASSETS 

    

 2,875,830,872  2,815,107,384 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

Shareholders' equity  1,929,712,210 1,888,123,059 

Share capital 14 819,000,000  819,000,000 

Share premium 15 408,766,054  408,766,054 

Revaluation surplus 16A 303,525,145  288,465,361 

Retained earnings 17A 398,421,011  371,891,644 

Total equity 

    

 1,929,712,210  1,888,123,059 

Non-current liabilities  200,286,272 179,372,781 
Long term loan 19A 107,499,411  75,520,147 

Deferred tax liability 20A 91,572,365  103,311,760 

Lease obligation 21A 1,214,496  540,874 

Current liabilities  745,832,390 747,611,544 
Accounts and other payables 22A 23,722,811  33,090,904 

Accruals and provisions 23A 73,683,502  51,562,062 

Short term loan 24A 607,449,597  640,907,260 

Current portion of long term loan 19A 40,125,462  16,887,333 

Current portion of lease obligation 21A 851,018  5,163,985 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

    

 2,875,830,872  2,815,107,384 

Number of share used to calculate NAV  81,900,000  81,900,000 

Net asset value per share  23.56 23.05 
     

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.  

Director  Director Managing Director 
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 
 

Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co.  
27 October 2015 Chartered Accountants 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 

 
Notes 

Amount in BDT 
 

2014-2015 
 

2013-2014    

Revenue 25 776,658,989  656,624,665 

Cost of goods sold 26 (411,672,817)  (345,838,925) 

Gross profit  364,986,172 310,785,740 

Operating expenses  (164,510,323) (127,124,762) 

Administrative expenses 27 (52,917,911)  (61,020,798) 

Selling and distribution expenses 28 (111,592,412)  (66,103,964) 

Other operating income 29 92,307,138 15,115,111 
     

Profit from operation  292,782,987 198,776,089 

Finance income 30 9,783,815 48,381,486 

Finance cost 31 (170,263,268) (89,540,165) 

Net profit from operation  132,303,534  157,617,410 

Provision for workers' profit participation fund  (6,309,226) (7,502,588) 
     

Net profit before tax  125,994,308 150,114,822 

Income tax expenses 32 (25,019,686)  (52,940,106) 

Net profit after tax  100,974,622 97,174,716 

Non controlling interest 18 60,790  (37) 

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary  
101,035,412 97,174,679 

shareholders 
 
    

Other comprehensive income  -  - 

Total comprehensive income  101,035,412  97,174,679 

Number of share used to calculate EPS  81,900,000  81,900,000 

Earning per share(EPS) for the year  1.23 1.19 
     

 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith. 

 
 
 

 

Director 

 

 

 Director 

 
 
 

 

Managing Director  
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 
 

Dated, Dhaka;  
27 October 2015 

 
 
S. K. Barua & Co.  
Chartered Accountants 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 
 

 
Notes 

Amount in BDT 
 

2014-2015 2013-2014   

Revenue 25A 520,563,813 472,077,729 

Cost of goods sold 26A (266,945,082) (224,977,291) 

Gross profit  253,618,731 247,100,438 

Operating expenses  (89,257,976) (92,542,746) 

Administrative expenses 27A (38,941,704) (42,295,539) 

Selling and distribution expenses 28A (50,316,272) (50,247,207) 

Other operating income 29A 50,404,368 14,886,311 
    

Profit from operation  214,765,123 169,444,003 

Finance income 30A 5,824,435 38,415,224 

Finance cost 31A (105,632,793) (83,446,314) 

Net profit from operation  114,956,765 124,412,913 

Provision for workers' profit participation fund  (5,471,942) (5,922,054) 
    

Net profit before tax  109,484,823 118,490,859 

Income tax expenses 32A (17,617,161) (39,832,893) 

Net profit after tax  91,867,662 78,657,966 

Other comprehensive income 

   

   

Share of profit from subsidiary 33 9,167,750 18,516,713 

Total comprehensive income  101,035,412 97,174,679 

Number of share used to calculate EPS  81,900,000 81,900,000 

Earning per share for the year  1.12 0.96 
    

 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.  

 

 

Director  Director Managing Director  
 

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed.  
 
 
 
 

Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co.  
27 October 2015 Chartered Accountants  
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.  
 
 
 

GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity  

For the year ended June 30, 2015 
 
 

 

        Amount in BDT 
         

Particulars Share capital 
 Share Revaluation  Retained 

Total  
premium surplus 

 
earnings      

Balance as at 01.07.2013 780,000,000 408,766,054 293,889,999 384,037,702  1,866,693,755 

Adjustment for deferred tax on revaluation surplus - - - 2,254,625  2,254,625 

Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus - - (5,424,638) 5,424,638  - 

Payment of cash dividend - - - (78,000,000)  (78,000,000) 

Issuance of bonus shares 39,000,000 - - (39,000,000)  - 

Net profit after tax - - - 97,174,716  97,174,716 

Share of non controlling interest - - - (37)  (37) 
         

Balance as at 30.06.2014 819,000,000  408,766,054 288,465,361  371,891,644  1,888,123,059 
         

Balance as at 01.07.2014 819,000,000 408,766,054 288,465,361 371,891,644  1,888,123,059 

Deferred tax adjustment on WDV 
- - 20,424,335 - 

 
20,424,335 

of revalued assets 
 

        

Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation surplus     2,029,404  2,029,404 

Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus - - (5,364,551) 5,364,551  - 

Payment of cash dividend - - - (81,900,000)  (81,900,000) 

Net profit after tax -   - 100,974,622  100,974,622 

Share of non controlling interest -   - 60,790  60,790 
         

Balance as at 30.06.2015 819,000,000  408,766,054 303,525,145  398,421,011  1,929,712,210 
          

 
 
 
 
 

 

Director Director Managing Director  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

90 



 

 
GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED  

Statement of Changes in Equity  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 
Amount in BDT  

Particulars Share capital 
Share Revaluation Retained 

Total 
premium surplus earnings    

Balance as at 01.07.2013 780,000,000 408,766,054 293,889,999  384,037,702 1,866,693,755 

Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation surplus - - -  2,254,625 2,254,625 

Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus - - (5,424,638) 5,424,638 - 

Payment of cash dividend - - -  (78,000,000) (78,000,000) 

Issuance of bonus shares 39,000,000 - -  (39,000,000) - 

Net profit after tax - - -  78,657,966 78,657,966 

Share of subsidiary company - - -  18,516,713 18,516,713 
       

Balance as at 30.06.2014 819,000,000 408,766,054 288,465,361 371,891,644 1,888,123,059 

Balance as at 01.07.2014 819,000,000 408,766,054 288,465,361  371,891,644 1,888,123,059 

Deferred tax adjustment on WDV 
- - 20,424,335 

 
- 20,424,335 

of revalued assets 
 

      

Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation surplus - - -  2,029,404 2,029,404 

Depreciation adjustment on revaluation surplus - - (5,364,551) 5,364,551 - 

Payment of cash dividend - - -  (81,900,000) (81,900,000) 

Net profit after tax - - -  91,867,662 91,867,662 

Share of profit from subsidiary - - -  9,167,750 9,167,750 
       

Balance as at 30.06.2015 819,000,000 408,766,054 303,525,145 398,421,011 1,929,712,210 
        
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Director Director Managing Director  
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 Amount in BDT 

 2014-2015 2013-2014 

Cash flows from operating activities   

Collections from customers 881,571,209 699,004,281 

Payments for operating costs & other expenses (678,249,384) (428,814,552) 

Tax paid (30,684,316) (69,266,839) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 172,637,509 200,922,890 

Cash flows from investing activities   

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (512,267,280) (199,113,445) 

Acquisitions of intangible assets (1,179,666) (11,200,000) 

Capital work in progress (182,182,206) (645,475,894) 

Short term investment - 100,000,000 

Acquisitions of leasehold assets (607,378) (369,224) 

Advance finance to contract farmers & others 74,968,013 (56,006,476) 
   

Net cash used in investing activities (621,268,517) (812,165,039) 

Cash flows from financing activities   

Payment against finance lease (6,277,951) (6,221,266) 

Borrowings from banks/financial institutions 368,350,889 784,469,271 

Payment of cash dividend (81,900,000) (78,000,000) 

Proceed from issuing non-controlling share 12,500,000 500 

Finance cost paid (170,263,268) (89,540,165) 
   

Net cash provided by financing activities 122,409,670 610,708,340 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (326,221,338) (533,809) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 424,513,513 425,047,323 
   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 98,292,175 424,513,513 

Number of share used to calculate NOCFPS 81,900,000 81,900,000 

Net operating cash flow per share 2.11 2.45 
    

 
 
 
 
 

 

Director Director Managing Director  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

92 



 
 

 
GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 Amount in BDT 

 2014-2015  2013-2014 

Cash flows from operating activities    
 - - 

Collections from customers 586,569,662 497,866,950 

Payments for operating costs & other expenses (420,508,179) (359,913,117) 

Tax paid (20,622,477)  (42,239,140) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 145,439,006  95,714,693 

Cash flows from investing activities - - 

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (142,341,023) (102,867,679) 

Acquisitions of intangible assets (598,291) (11,200,000) 

Acquisitions of leased assets (173,867) - 

Capital work in progress (28,397,861) (173,539,269) 

Short term investment - 100,000,000 

Advance finance to contract farmers & others 25,312,112 21,116,414 
    

Net cash used in investing activities (146,198,931) (166,490,534) 

Cash flows from financing activities    

Payment against finance lease (5,639,345) (6,000,009) 

Borrowings from banks/financial institutions 12,391,637 315,763,780 

Payment of cash dividend (81,900,000) (78,000,000) 

Investment in subsidiaries (37,500,000) (249,999,500) 

Finance cost paid (105,632,793) (83,446,314) 
    

Net cash provided by financing activities (218,280,501)  (101,682,043) 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (219,040,426) (172,457,884) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 251,737,176 424,195,060 
    

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 32,696,750 251,737,176 
    

Number of share used to calculate NOCFPS 81,900,000 81,900,000 
    

Operating cash flow per share 1.78 1.17 
     

 
 
 

 

Director Director Managing Director  
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Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the year ended on June 30, 2015 

 
1.Reporting Entity 

 
Company profile 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited was 

 
incorporated on August 10, 2004 as a Private 

Limited Company; vide Reg. No.-C-53850(515)/ 

2004 under the Companies Act, 1994 and 

converted to public limited company on 30 June 

2010. The company has been listed to both the 

Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and Chittagong Stock 

Exchange Ltd. on 04 March 2013. The principal 

place of business and the head office of the 

Company is at Shanta Western Tower, Level # 5, 

Space Code # 502, 186, Gulshan, Tejgaon Link 

Road, Tejgaon Industrial Area, Dhaka-1208. The 

registered office and factory is located at Bokran, 

Monipur, Bobanipur, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur. 
 

Nature of Business Activities 
 

The Company owns and operates the business of 

growing, procuring, purchasing, processing, 

packaging, warehousing, transporting, exporting, 

importing, distributing and selling agriculture 

based food, food products, vegetable processing. 

As per the object clause of the Memorandum the 

company could also establish any industrial 

processing unit based on agro based raw 

materials products within the country and export 

the same or meet local demand. 
 

1.1. Subsidiaries 
 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the parent. 

The parent controls an entity when it has power 

over the entity and is exposed to, or has rights 

to, variable returns from its involvement with the 

entity and has the ability to affect those returns 

through its power over the entity. The financial 

statements of the subsidiary companies are 

included in the consolidated financial statements 

from the date on which control commences until 

the date on which control ceases. Golden 

Harvest Ice Cream Limited and Golden Harvest 

Dairy Limited are the subsidiary of the Group.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited ( Previous 
name was Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish 
Processing Limited). 
 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited formerly 

known as Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish 

Processing Limited was incorporated on January 

05, 2005, vide Reg. No.-C-55601(2285)/05 under 

the Companies Act, 1994. The objectives of the 

company are to carry out the business, promote & 

establish factories and chain shop or shops; 

manufacture and manage food and food items, 

Dairy, Ice Cream, baby food, soft drink, mineral 

water, salt &iodised salt and allied products in 

Bangladesh and setting ventures and business is 

in connection therewith. Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Limited acquired 99.9998% of shares 

of Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing 

Limited by exchanging its own shares and 

acquired its 4,99,999 Ordinary Shares. 
 
Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing 

Limited’ (GHSFFPL), has been converted into 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited (GHICL) on 

16th May 2013 through the office of Registrar of 

Joint Stock Companies and Firms. 
 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 
 
Golden Harvest Dairy Limited has incorporated 

on 18 February 2015, vide Reg. No.-C-

121268/15 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a 

Private Limited Company. Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Limited acquired 75.00% of shares of 

Golden Harvest Dairy Limited. 

 

The objectives of the company will process 

Liquid Milk and milk based product like butter, 

cream, cheese, yogurt, etc. The project will not 

be for milk collection only it will support in meat 

processing and calf selling. 
 
1.2. Date of Authorization for issue 
 
The financial statements of Golden Harvest Agro 

industries for the year ended 30 June 2015 were 

authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution 

of the Board of Directors on 27 October 2015. 
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1.3. Reporting Period  
The reporting period of the company covers 

one year from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. 
 
2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
2.1. Basis of Measurement of Elements of 

Financial Statements 
 
Measurement is the process of determining the 

monetary amounts at which the elements of the 

financial statements are to be recognized and 

carried in the statement of financial position and 

profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The 

measurement basis adopted by Golden Harvest 

Agro Industries Limited is historical cost except for 

land, building and plant and machinery which are 

stated at revalued amount, inventories are at the 

lower of cost and net realizable value and 

marketable securities are at market value. Under 

the historical cost, assets are recorded at the 

amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair 

value of the consideration given to acquire them at 

the time of their acquisition. Liabilities are recorded 

at the amount of proceeds received in exchange for 

the obligation, or in some circumstances (for 

example, income taxes), at the amounts of cash or 

cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the 

liability in the normal course of business. 
 
2.2. Statement on Compliance with Local Laws 
 
The consolidated financial statements have 

been prepared in compliance with the 

requirements of the Companies Act, 1994, 

Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other 

relevant local laws as applicable. 
 
2.3. Statement on Compliance of Bangladesh 

Accounting Standards 
 
The consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared in accordance with the applicable Bangla-

desh Accounting Standards (BAS) and Bangladesh 

Financial Reporting Standard (BFRS) adopted by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International 

Accounting Standards (IAS) and International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). material. 

 
 
 

 

2.4. Going Concern   
At each year end management of the Company 

makes assessment of going concern as required by 

BAS-1. The company has adequate resources to 

continue in operation for the foreseeable future and 

has wide coverage of its liabilities. For this reason, 

the directors continue to adopt going concern 

assumption while preparing the financial statements. 
 
2.5. Functional and presentation currency 
 
The consolidated financial statements are prepared 

and presented in Bangladesh Taka/BDT, which is 

the company’s functional currency. The Company 

earns its major revenues in BDT and all other 

incomes/expenses and transactions are in BDT and 

the competitive forces and regulations of 

Bangladesh determine the sale prices of its goods 

and services. Further, the entire funds from 

financing activities are generated in BDT. 
 
2. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements 
 
2.5.1. Foreign currency translation 
 
Foreign currency transactions are booked in the 

functional currency of the company at the 

exchange rate ruling on the date of transaction. 

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities 

are retranslated into the functional currency at 

rates of exchange BDT. 77.80 for USD, BDT. 

86.61 for EUR and BDT 122.26 for GBP at the 

balance sheet date. Exchange differences are 

included in the income statement. 
 
2.6. Materiality and Aggregation 
 
Each material class of similar items is presented 

separately in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Items of a dissimilar nature or function are presented 

separately unless they are immaterial. 

 
2.7. Comparative Information and 

Rearrangement thereof 
 
Comparative information has where necessary 

been reclassified to conform to the current year’s 

presentation. The Directors have made an 

assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a 

going concern in the foreseeable future, and they 

do not foresee a need for liquidation or cessatio 
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2.8. Use of Estimates and Judgments 
 

The preparation of consolidated financial 

statements in conformity with Bangladesh Financial 

Reporting Standards requires management to 

make judgments, estimates and assumptions that 

affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and 

expenses and for contingent assets and liabilities 

that require disclosure, during and at the date of 

the financial statements. 

 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the 

estimate is revised and in any future periods affected 

as required by BAS 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes 

in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. 
 

2.8.1. Changes in Accounting Policies, 

Estimate and Errors 

 

The effect of a change in an accounting 

estimate shall be recognised prospectively by 

including it in profit or loss in: 

 

(a) the period of the change, if the 

change affects that period only; or 
 

(b) the period of the change and future 

periods, if the change affects both. 

 
To the extent that a change in an accounting 

estimate gives rise to changes in assets and 

liabilities, or relates to an item of equity, it shall 

be recognised by adjusting the carrying amount 

of the related asset, liability or equity item in the 

period of the change. 
 

Changes in accounting policies and material prior 

period errors shall be retrospectively corrected in 

the first financial statements authorised for issue 

after their discovery by: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
(a) restating the comparative amounts for the prior 

period(s) presented in which the error occurred; or 

(b) if the error occurred before the earliest prior 

period presented, restating the opening 

balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the 

earliest prior period presented. 

 
The most significant effect on the amount 

recognized in the notes 16, 17, 18 and 20 to 

consolidated financial statements and 9, 16A, 17A 

and 20A to the company financial statements. 

 

2.9. Structure, Content and Presentation of 
Financial Statements 
 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd., as at and 

for the year ended 30 June, 2015 comprise the 

Company and its Subsidiaries namely Golden 

Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. (together referred to as 

the ‘Group’).Being the general purpose financial 

statements, the presentation of these financial 

statements is in accordance with the guidelines 

provided by BAS 1: “Presentation of Financial 

Statements”. A complete set of financial 

statements comprise: 
 
i) Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

as at June 30, 2015; 
 
ii) Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

and other Comprehensive Income for the 

year ended June 30, 2015; 

 
iii) Consolidated Statement of Changes in 

Equity for the year ended June 30, 2015; 
 
іv) Consolidated statement of Cash Flows for 

the year ended June 30, 2015; and 

 
v) Notes comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory 

information to the accounts for the year ended 

June 30, 2015. 
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting 

Policies 
 
The accounting policies set out below are 

consistent with those used in the previous year. 

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been 

changed where necessary to ensure consistency 

with the policies adopted by the Golden Harvest 

Agro Industries Limited. 
 
3.1 Basis of Consolidation 
 
Group accounts are prepared on the basis that the 

parent and subsidiaries are a single entity. This 

reflects the economic substances of the group 

arrangement. The investment in subsidiaries shares 

in the parents own statement of financial position is 

replaced in the consolidated statement of financial 

position by the net asset of the subsidiaries. 
 
Group financial statements reflect transactions 

with third parties only. The effect of transactions 

[Intra-group balances] between group members 

is cancelled on consolidation. 
 
Any profit arising on intra-group transactions 

must be eliminated from the group accounts 

until it is realized by a sale outside the group. 
 
The accounting policies of subsidiaries have 

been changed when necessary to align them 

with the policies adopted by the group. 
 
The financial statements of the subsidiaries 

are prepared for the same reporting period 

as the parent company. 
 
3.1.1 Business Combinations 
 
Business combinations are accounted for using the 

acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is 

measured as the aggregate of the consideration 

transferred, measured on acquisition date at fair 

value and the amount of any non-controlling interest 

in the acquiree. For each business combination, the 

Group measures the non-controlling interest in the 

acquiree at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s 

identifiable net assets. 
 
Transaction costs, other than those associated 

with the issue of debt or equity securities that 

Group incurs in connection with a business 

combinations are expensed and included in 

administrative expenses. 

 
 

 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses 

the financial assets and liabilities assumed for 

appropriate classification and designation in 

accordance with the contractual terms, economic 

circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the 

acquisition date. If the business combination is 

achieved in stages, the acquisition date’s fair value 

of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the 

acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisi-

tion date through profit or loss. 
 
3.1.2 Subsidiaries 
 
The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included 

in the Consolidated Financial Statements from the date 

that control effectively commences until the date that 

control effectively ceases. Non- Controlling Interest is 

measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s 

identifiable net assets. Subsidiaries are disclosed in 

Note 9 to the Financial Statements. 
 
A change in the ownership interest of a 
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted 
for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses 
control over a subsidiary, it:  
• Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) 

and liabilities of the subsidiary 

• Derecognises the carrying amount of any  
Non-Controlling Interest  
• Derecognises the cumulative 

transaction differences, recorded in equity  
• Recognises the fair value of consideration received  
• Recognises the fair value of any 

investment retained 

• Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss  
• Reclassify the parent’s share of 
components previously recognised in other 
comprehensive income to profit or loss or 
retained earnings, as Appropriate 
 
3.1.3 Transaction with Non-Controlling 
interest 
 
The profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary 

attributable to equity interests that are not owned 

by the parent, directly or indirectly through 

subsidiaries, is disclosed separately under the 

heading ‘Non- Controlling Interest’. The Group 
applies a policy of treating transactions with Non-

Controlling Interests as transactions with parties 

external to the Group. Losses within a subsidiary 

are attributed to the Non-Controlling Interest even 

if that results in a deficit balance. 
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3.1.4 Equity Method 

 

The investment in the subsidiary company has 

been accounted for in the parent separate financial 

statements using the equity method of accounting. 

 
3.1.5 Transactions Eliminated on Consolidation 

Intra-Group balances, transactions and any 

unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-

Group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. Unrealised 

gains arising from transactions with equity 

accounted investees are eliminated against the 

investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in 

the investee. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the 

same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent 

that there is no evidence of impairment. 

 

3.1.6 Profits and Losses  
The total profits and losses for the period of the 

Group and its subsidiaries included in consolidation 

are shown in the Consolidated Income Statement, 

with the proportion of the profit or loss after taxation 

applicable to Non-Controlling Interest of the 

subsidiaries being separately mentioned as ‘Non-

Controlling Interest/(Loss)’. 

 

3.1.7 Assets and Liabilities  
All assets and liabilities of the Group and its 

subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated 

Statement of Financial Position. The proportionate 

interest of Non-Controlling Interest in the net assets 

employed by the Group is disclosed separately in 

the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

as ‘Non-Controlling Interest’. 

 

3.2 Assets and Bases of their Valuation  
Assets classified as current assets in the Statement 

of Financial Position are cash and bank balances 

and those which are expected to be realised in cash 

during the normal operating cycle of the Group’s 

business or within one year from the reporting date 

whichever is shorter. Assets other than current 

assets are those, which the Group intends to hold 

beyond a period of one year from the Statement of 

Financial Position date. 
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3.2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

3.2.1.1 Initial Recognition and Measurement An 

item shall be recognized as property, plant and 

equipment if, and only it is probable that future 

economic benefits associated with the item will 

flow to the entry, and the cost of the item can be 

measured reliably. 

 

Property, plant and equipment are initially 

recognized at cost and subsequently land, buildings  
& civil constructions and plant & machineries are 

stated at fair value. The property, plant and 

equipment are presented at cost/fair value, net of 

accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of 

property, plant and equipment comprises its 

purchase price, import duties and non-refundable 

taxes, after deducting trade discount and rebates, 

and any costs directly attributable to bringing the 

asset to the location and condition necessary for it 

to be capable of operating in the intended 

manner. The cost also includes the cost of 

replacing part of the property, plant and 

equipment and borrowing costs for long-term debt 

availed for the construction/Implementation of the 

PPE, if the recognition criteria are met. 

 

 

3.2.1.2 Subsequent costs  
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, 

plant and equipments is recognised in the 

carrying amount of an item if it is probable that the 

future economic benefits embodied within the part 

will flow to the Group and its cost can be 

measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day 

servicing of property, plant and equipment are 

recognised in the profit and loss account as 

`Repair & Maintenance ‘when it is incurred. 

 

3.2.1.3 Subsequent Measurement  
Property, Plant and equipment are disclosed at cost 

less accumulated depreciation consistently over 

years. On 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 30 

June 2013. Land and Land Developments, Building 

and other constructions and Plant and Machinery 



 
 
 

 

have been revalued to reflect fair value 

(prevailing market price) thereof following 

“Current Cost Method”. 
 
3.2.1.4 Depreciation on Property, Plant and 

Equipment 
 
Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or 

valuation of the assets after commissioning, over the 

period of their expected useful lives, in accordance 

with the provisions of BAS 16: Property Plant and 

Equipment. Depreciation of an asset begins when it 

is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and 

condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 

in the manner intended by management. 

Depreciation is charged on all Property, Plant and 

Equipment except land and land developments on 

reducing balance method at the following rates: 

 

Particular of Assets  Rate of Depreciation 
 

 

 

Buildings and other constructions 2.5% 
 

 

 

Plant & Machinery 5% 
 

 

 

Office Equipment 10% 
 

 

 

Furniture and Fixtures 10% 
 

 

 

Vehicle 10% 
 

 

 

Freezer 10% 

 

3.2.1.5 Impairment 
 
At each year end, the Group assesses whether 

there is any indication that the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognized as an expense in 

the statement of profit or loss and other 

comprehensive income in accordance with the 

provision of Bangladesh Accounting Standards 

BAS 36 unless the asset is carried at revalued 

amount in accordance with BAS 16. No 

impairment loss was recognized for the year 

ended 30 June 2015 as there were no such 

indication existed as on the that date. 
 

3.2.1.6 Revaluation of Property, Plant and 

Equipment of Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Limited 
 
The company made revaluation of the company’s 

Land and Land developments, Buildings and Plant 

and Machinery as of 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 

and 30 June 2013 to reflect fair value thereof in 

 
 
 

 

terms of Depreciated current cost thereof. 

The revaluation have conducted by Ata Khan 

& Co., Chartered Accountants. 
 
3.2.1.7 Revaluation of Property, Plant and 

Equipment of Golden Harvest Ice Cream 

Limited 
 
The Company made revaluation of the Company’s 

Land and Land developments and Plant and 

Machinery as of 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 

30 June 2013 to reflect fair value thereof in terms 

of Depreciated current cost thereof. 
 
The increase in the carrying amount of revalued 

assets is recognized in other comprehensive income 

under the head Revaluation Surplus. Other Fixed 

Assets were kept outside the scope of revaluation 

works. These are expected to be realizable at 

written down value (WDV) thereof mentioned in the 

statement of financial position of the company. 
 
3.2.2 Capital work-in-progress 
 
Property, plant and equipment under 

construction/acquisition have been accounted for 

as capital work-in-progress until construction/ 

acquisition is completed and measured at cost. 
 
3.2.3 Borrowing Cost 
 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of an asset 

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time 

to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All 

other borrowing costs are expensed in the period 

in which they occur in accordance with BAS 23: 

“Borrowing cost”. Borrowing costs consist of 

interest and other costs that an entity incurs in 

connection with the borrowing of funds. 
 
3.2.4 Intangible Assets 
 
Intangible asset is an identifiable nonmonetary 

asset without physical substance held for use in 

the production or supply of goods or services, for 

rental or for administrative purpose. An intangible 

asset is recognised if it is probable that future 

economic benefits that are attributable to the 

asset will flow to the enterprise and the cost of 

the asset can be measured reliably in 

accordance with BAS 38” Intangible Assets”. 
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Internally generated intangible assets  
To assess whether an internally generated 

intangible asset meets the criteria for recognition, 

the Group classifies the generation of the asset 

into a research phase and a development phase. 
 

No intangible asset arising from research phase 

shall be recognised. Expenditure on research 

phase shall be recognised as an expense when 

it is incurred. 
 

An intangible asset arising from development 

phase shall be recognised if, and only if, the 

Group demonstrates all of the following:  
(a) the technical feasibility of completing the 

intangible asset so that it will be available for use.  
(b) its intention to complete the intangible asset 

and use it. 

(c) its ability to use the intangible asset.  
(d) the intangible asset will generate probable 

future economic benefits. 

(e) the availability of adequate technical, 

financial and other resources to complete the 

development and to use the intangible asset. 

(f) its ability to measure reliably the 

expenditure attributable to the intangible 

asset during its development. 
 

The Group’s intangible assets include 

computer software (ERP system) which is 

meets the above mentioned criteria. 
 

3.2.5 Leased Assets 
 

Assets obtained under the finance lease, which 

effectively transfer to the Company substantially, all 

of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of 

the leased assets, are treated as if they have been 

purchased outright and are capitalised at their cash 

price. Assets acquired by way of a finance lease 

are measured at an amount equal to the lower of 

their fair value and the present value of minimum 

lease payments at the inception, less accumulated 

depre ciation and accumulated impairment losses 

as per BAS 17: “Leases”. 
 

Assets held under finance lease are amortised 

over the shorter of the lease period or the useful 

lives of equivalent owned assets, unless ownership 

is not transferred at the end of the lease period. 

 
 
 

 

The principal/ capital elements payable to the 

lessor are shown as liability/ obligation. The lease 

rentals are treated as consisting of capital and 

interest elements. The capital element in the 

rental that is applied to reduce the outstanding 

obligation and interest element is charged against 

profit, in proportion to the reducing capital 

element outstanding. 

 

The cost of improvements to or on leased property is 

capitalised, disclosed as improvements to leasehold 

property and depreciated over the unexpired period 

of the lease, or the estimated useful lives of the 

improvements, whichever is shorter. 
 
Operating lease payments are recognized as an 

operating expense in the Income Statement on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 

3.2.6 Non-current assets held for sale and 

discontinued operations 
 
Non-current assets and disposal Groups classified 

as held for sale are measured at the lower of their 

carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  
Non-current assets and disposal Groups are 

classified as held for sale only when the sale is 

highly probable and the asset or disposal Group 

is available for immediate sale in its present 

condition. In the consolidated statement of profit 

or loss and other comprehensive income of the 

reporting period, and of the comparable period of 

the previous year, income and expenses from 

discontinued operations are reported separately 

from income and expenses from continuing 

operations. Property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets once classified as held for sale 

are not depreciated or amortised. 
 
The group has no such asset which held for sale 

and management have not decided to discontinue 

any operation. 

 

3.2.7 Financial Instruments 
 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise 

to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 
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3.2.7.1 Financial assets 
 
3.2.7.1.1 Initial Recognition & 
Measurement 

 
Financial assets within the scope of BAS 39 are 

classified as financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity 

investments and available-for-sale financial assets as 

appropriate. The Group determines the classification of 

its financial assets at initial recognition. 
 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair 

value plus directly attributable transaction costs, 

except in the case of assets not at fair value 

through profit or loss. 
 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that 

require delivery of assets within a time frame 

established by regulation or convention in the 

market place (regular way trades) are recognised 

on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 

The Group’s financial assets include cash and 

short-term deposits, short term investments, 

and trade and other receivables. 
 
3.2.7.1.2 Subsequent Measurement 

 
The subsequent measurement of financial assets 

depends on their classification as described below: 
 

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

include financial assets held for trading and finan-

cial assets designated upon initial recognition at 

fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets 

are classified as held for trading if they are 

acquired for the purpose of selling or 

repurchasing in the near term. 
 

Financial assets at fair value through profit and 

loss are carried in the statement of financial 

position at fair value with changes in fair value 

recognised in finance income or finance costs in 

the income statement. 
 

The Group has not designated any financial 

assets as at fair value through profit or loss. 
 

(b) Loans and receivables 
 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial 

assets with fixed or determinable payments that 

are not quoted in an active market. 

 
 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets 

are subsequently measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest rate method (EIR), 

less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 

in finance income in the income statement. The 

losses arising from impairment are recognised in 

the income statement in finance costs. 
 
Loans and receivables comprise of trade 

receivables, amounts due from related parties, 

deposits, advances and other receivables and 

cash and cash equivalents. 
 
(c) Held-to-maturity investments 
 
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or 

determinable payments and fixed maturities are 

classified as held-to-maturity when the Group 

has the positive intention and ability to hold them 

to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-

maturity investments are measured at amortised 

cost using the effective interest method, less 

impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 

taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral 

part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included 

in finance income in the income statement. The 

losses arising from impairment are recognised in 

the income statement in finance costs. 

 
The Group recognizes FDR as a held-to maturity 

investments during the year ended 30 June 2015. 

 

(d) Available for sale financial investments 
 
Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative 

financial assets that are designated as available for 

sale or are not classified in any of the above 

categories of the financial assets. Subsequent to 

initial recognition, they are measured at fair value 

and changes therein, other than impairment losses 

are recognised in other comprehensive income and 

presented in the fair value reserve in equity. Interest 

income on available for sale debt securities is 

calculated using the effective interest rate method 

and is recognised in profit or loss. When an 

investment is derecognised, the gain or loss 

accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. 
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Available for sale comprise of investment in 

quoted and unquoted shares.  
The Group has not designated any financial assets 

as at available for sale financial investments. 
 

3.2.7.1.3 Derecognition 
 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 

financial asset or part of a Group of similar 

financial assets) is derecognized when:  
• The rights to receive cash flows from the 

asset have expired 

• The Group has transferred its rights to receive 

cash flows from the asset or has assumed an 

obligation to pay the received cash flows in full 

without material delay to a third party under a 

‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the 

Group has transferred substantially all the risks 

and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has 

neither transferred nor retained substantially all 

the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 

transferred control of the asset. 

 

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive 

cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what 

extent it has retained the risks and rewards 

ofownership. When it has neither transferred nor 

retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of 

the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the 

asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s 

continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the 

Group also recognises an associated liability. The 

transferred asset and the associated liability are 

measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 

obligations that the Group has retained. 
 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a 

guarantee over the transferred asset is measured 

at the lower of the original carrying amount of the 

asset and the maximum amount of consideration 

that the Group could be required to repay. 
 

3.2.7.1.4 Impairment of financial assets 
 

The Group assesses at each reporting date 

whether there is any objective evidence that a 

financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired and if such has been incurred, 
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the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 

between the assets carrying amount and the present 

value of estimated future cash flows. Evidence of 

impairment may include indications that the debtors or 

a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial 

difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal 

payments, the probability that they will enter 

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and when 

observable data indicate that there is a measurable 

decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 

changes in arrears or economic conditions that 

correlate with defaults. 
 
3.2.7.2 Financial liabilities 
 
3.2.7.2.1 Initial recognition and 
measurement 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of BAS 39 are 

classified as financial liabilities at fair value 

through profit or loss and loans and borrowings as 

appropriate. The Group determines the 

classification of its financial liabilities at initial 

recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised 

initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 

borrowings, carried at amortised cost. This 

includes directly attributable transaction costs. 
 
The Group’s financial liabilities include trade 

and other payables, bank overdrafts, loans and 

borrowings. 
 
3.2.7.2.2 Subsequent measurement 
 
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities 

depends on their classification as described below: 

 

(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss 
 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 

loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 

financial liabilities designated upon initial 

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. 

Financial liabilities are classified as held for 

trading if they are acquired for the purpose of 

selling in the near term. Gains or losses on 

liabilities held for trading are recognised in the 

income statement. The Group has not designated 

any financial liabilities upon initial recognition as 

at fair value through profit or loss. 



 
 

 

(b) Loans and borrowings 
 

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and 

borrowings are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate 

method. Gains and losses are recognised in the 

income statement when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the effective 

interest rate method (EIR) amortisation process. 

 

Other financial liabilities comprise interest 

bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, 

other payables, income tax payables and 

amounts due to related parties. 

 

(c) Financial guarantee contracts 
 

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised 

initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for 

transaction costs that are directly attributable to 

the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the 

liability is measured at the higher of the best 

estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

present obligation at the reporting date and the 

amount recognized less cumulative amortization. 

 

3.2.7.2.3 Derecognition 
 

A financial liability is derecognized when the 

obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 

liability is replaced by another from the same lender 

on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 

existing liability are substantially modified, such an 

exchange or modification is treated as the derecog-

nition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 

amounts is recognized in the Income Statement. 

 

3.2.7.2.4 Offsetting of financial 

instruments 
 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset if, 

and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal 

right to offset the recognised amounts and there is 

an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 
 

 

3.2.7.2.5 Fair value of financial 

instruments 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are 

traded in active markets at each reporting date is 

determined by reference to quoted market prices 

or dealer price quotations (bid price for long 

positions and ask price for short positions), 

without any deduction for transaction costs. 
 
For financial instruments not traded in an active 

market, the fair value is determined using 

appropri-ate valuation techniques. Such 

techniques may include:  
• Using recent arm’s length market transactions  
• Reference to the current fair value of another 

instrument that is substantially the same  
• A discounted cash flow analysis or other 

valuation models. 
 
3.2.8 Inventories 
 
Inventories stated at lower of cost and net realizable 

value as prescribed by BAS-2: Inventories. The cost 

is calculated on FIFO method in a consistent 

manner. Costs comprise of cost incurred in the 

normal course of business in bringing out the 

inventories to its location and conditions. Where 

necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow 

moving and defective inventories identifies at the 

time if physical verification of inventories. 

 

Net realizable value is based on estimated 

selling price less any further costs expected to 

be incurred to make the sale effective. 
 
3.2.9 Trade and Other Receivables 
 
Trade and other receivables are stated at their 

estimated realisable amounts inclusive of 

provisions for bad and doubtful debts. 
 
3.2.10 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in 

hand and with banks on current deposit accounts 

and short term investments (FDR for the period of 

1 to 3 months) which are held and available for 

use by the Group without any restriction. There is 

insignificant risk of change in value of the same. 
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3.2.11 Impairment of Assets 
 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s assets are 

reviewed at each reporting date to determine 

whether there is any indication of impairment. If 

any such indication exists, then the asset’s 

recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill and 

intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that 

are not yet available for use, recoverable amounts 

are estimated at each reporting d ate or more 

frequently, if events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that they might be impaired. 
 

3.2.11.1 Calculation of Recoverable 

Amount 
 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-

generating unit is the greater of its value in use and 

its fair value, less cost to sell. In assessing value in 

use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to 

their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that 

reflects current market assessments of the time 

value of money and the risks specific to the asset. A 

cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable 

asset group that generates cash flows that are 

largely independent from other assets and groups. 
 

3.3 Liabilities and Provisions 
 

Liabilities classified as current liabilities on the 

Statement of Financial Position are those which fall 

due for payment on demand or within one year from 

the Statement of Financial Position date. Noncurrent 

liabilities are those balances that fall due for 

payment after one year from the Statement of 

Financial Position date. All known liabilities have 

been accounted for in preparing these Financial 

Statements. Provisions and liabilities are recognized 

when the Group has a legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past events and it is 

probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 

required to settle the obligation. 
 

3.3.1 Provisions 
 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a 

present obligation (legal or constructive) as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an 

outflow of resources embodying economic 

benefits will be required to settle the obligation 

and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

amount of the obligation that mention BAS 37: 

“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent 

Assets”. When the Group expects some or all of a 

provision to be reimbursed, 
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the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, 

but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. 

The expense relating to any provision is presented in 

the Income Statement net of any reimbursement. 
 
3.3.2 Trade and Other Payables 
 
Trade and other payables are stated at their costs. 
 

3.3.3 Capital Commitments and 

Contingencies 
 
Capital commitments and contingent liabilities of 

the Group have been disclosed in the Note 

No.35.2 of the Financial Statements. 

 

A Contingent asset is disclosed when it is a possible 

asset that arises from the past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events not wholly within the control of the entity. 
 
A contingent liability is disclosed when it is a 

possible obligation that arises from the past 

events and whose existence will be confirmed 

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one 

or more uncertain future events not wholly within 

the control of the entity. 
 
The Group has no contingent assets or liabilities 

which require disclosures under BAS:37. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 

recognized in the financial statements. 
 
3.3.4 Events Occurring after the Reporting 

Period 
 
All material events after the statement of financial 

position date have been considered where 

appropri-ate; either adjustments have been made 

or adequately disclosed in the note No. 35.11 of 

the Financial Statements. 
 

3.3.5 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 
Basic Earnings per share 
 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 

the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity 

holders of the entity by the weighted average 

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 

year as per BAS 33: “Earning per share”. 



 
 

 

Diluted Earnings per Share 
 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per 

shares, the company adjust profit or loss attributable 

to each ordinary equity holders, and weighted 

average number of shares outstanding, for the 

effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. As the 

company has no dilutive potential ordinary shares . 

As the company has no dilutive potential ordinary 

shares during the reporting period, diluted earnings 

per share has not been calculated. 
 

3.3.6 Dividend distribution on ordinary 

share 
 

Dividend distribution to the company’s shareholders 

is recognised as a liability in the group’s financial 

statements in the period in which the dividends are 

approved by the company’s shareholders. 
 
3.4 Income Statements 

 
For the purpose of presentation of Income 

Statement, the function of expenses method is 

adopted, as it represents fairly the elements of 

the Group’s performance. 
 
3.4.1 Revenue 

 
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is 

probable that the economic benefits will flow to 

the Group and the revenue can be reliably 

measured, regardless of when the payment is 

being made. Revenue is measured at the fair 

value of the consideration received or receivable, 

taking into account contractually defined terms of 

payment and excluding taxes or duty. 
 

The specific recognition criteria described below 

must also be met before revenue is recognized. 
 

Income from local sales 
 

Revenue from the local sale of goods is 

recognised when the significant risks and 

rewards of ownership of the goods have passed 

to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. 
 
Income from exports 

 
If the export is on FOB (Free On Board) terms, the 

revenue is recognised when the goods are cleared 

at the port of shipment and the documents of title 

are delivered to buyer (In case of 
 

LC- when documents are handed over to the 

local bank). 

 
 

 

If the export is on CIF (Cost, Insurance and 

Freight) terms, the Group delivers the goods to the 

port of shipment, providing export clearance while 

arranging and paying for the carriage and 

insurance. Revenue is recognised on delivery to 

the buyer or transfer of the documents of title to 

the goods, whichever is later. 
 
Interest and other income 
 
Interest and other income are recognised on 

accrual basis 
 
3.4.2 Government grants 
 
Government grants are recognised where there is 

reasonable assurance that the grant will be 

received and all attached conditions will be 

complied with. When the grant relates to an 

expense item, it is recognised as income on a 

systematic basis over the periods that the related 

costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 

expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is 

recognised as income in equal amounts over the 

expected useful life of the related asset. 
 
When the Group receives grants of non-monetary 

assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at 

nominal amounts and released to profit or loss over 

the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption 

of the benefit of the underlying asset by equal 

annual installments. 
 
During the year the group receipts free technical 

assistants to develop cold chain project. The 

detail discloser is given in note - 35. 04. 

 

3.4.3 Expenses 
 
All expenditure incurred in the running of the 

business and in maintaining the Property, Plant & 

Equipment in a state of efficiency is charged to 

revenue in arriving at the profit/(loss) for the year. 

 

3.4.3.1 Finance Income and Expenses 
 
Finance income comprises interest income on 

funds invested. Interest income is recognised as 

it accrues in profit or loss. 
 
Finance costs comprise interest expense on 

borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, 

changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair 
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value through profit or loss, and losses on 

hedging instruments that are recognised in profit 

or loss. Borrowing costs that are not directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of a qualifying asset are recognised in 

profit or loss using the effective interest method. 
 

The interest expense component of finance lease 

payments is allocated to each period during the 

lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate 

of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
 

3.4.3.2 Workers’ Profit Participation Fund 

(WPPF) 
 

The Group provides applicable rate of its profit 

before Tax after charging contribution to WPPF in 

accordance with the Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006. 
 

3.4.3.3 Taxation 
 

Current Tax 
 

The tax expense for the period comprises current 

and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income 

statement, except to the extent that it relates to 

items recognised in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also 

recognised in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, respectively. 

 

The current income tax for the current and prior 

periods are measured and the amount expected 

to be paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax 

rates that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by end of the reporting period in the 

countries where the Company operate and 

generate taxable income. 
 

Deferred Tax 
 

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the 

liability method, on temporary differences arising 

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities 

and their carrying amounts in the consolidated 

financial statements. However, the deferred 

income tax is not accounted for if it arises from 

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a 

transaction other than a business combination 

that at the time of the transaction affects neither 

accounting nor taxable profit/ (loss). 
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 

available against which the temporary differences can 

be utilised. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities 

are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to 

offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities 

and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities 

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 

authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable 

entities where there is an intention to settle the 

balances on a net basis. 
 
3.5 Statement of Cash Flows 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared 

in accordance with the requirements of BAS 7: 

Statement of Cash Flows. The cash generating 

from operating activities has been reported using 

the Direct Method as prescribed by the Securities 

and Exchange Rules, 1987 and as the 

benchmark treatment of BAS 7 whereby major 

classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash 

payments from operating activities are disclosed. 
 

3.6 Related Party Disclosures 
 
The Company carried out a number of 

transactions with related parties. The information 

as required by BAS 24: “Related party 

Disclosure” has been disclosed in a separate 

notes to the accounts (Note-35.3). 
 
3.7 Segment Reporting 
 
Segmental information is provided for the 

different business segments of the Group. 

Business segmentation has been determined 

based on the nature of goods provided by the 

Group after considering the risk and rewards of 

each type of product. 

Since the individual segments are located close to 

each other and operate in the same industrial 

environment, the need for geographical 

segmentation has no material impact.  
The activities of the segments are described on 

notes 34 in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 

The group transfers products from one industry 

segment for use in another. Inter-segment 

transfers are based on fair market prices. 

Revenue and expenses directly attributable to each  
segment are allocated to the respective segments.  
Revenue and expenses not directly attributable to a 



 
 

 

segment are allocated on the basis of their 

resource utilisation, wherever possible. 
 

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost 

incurred during the period to acquire segment 

assets that are expected to be used for more than 

one accounting period. 
 

All operating segments’ operating results are 

reviewed regularly to make decisions about 

resources to be allocated to the segment and 

assess its performance and for which discrete 

financial information is available. 
 

3.8 Comparative Information 
 

Comparative information has been disclosed in 

respect of the previous year for all numerical 

information in the current financial statement. 

Narrative and descriptive information for 

comparative information have also been disclosed 

whenever it is relevant for understanding of current 

year’s financial statements. 
 

4. Risk Exposure 
 

4.1 Interest Rate Risk 
 

Interest rate is concerned with borrowed funds of 

short term & long-term maturity. Interest rate risk is 

the risk that Company faces due to unfavorable 

movements in the interest rates. Volatility in money 

market & increase demand for loans /investment 

funds raise the rate of interest. A change in the 

government’s policy also tends to increase the 

interest rate. High rate of interest enhances the 

cost of fund of a company. Such rises in interest 

rates however mostly affect companies having 

floating rate loans. 
 
Management Perception 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. maintains low 

debt/ equity ratio; and accordingly, adverse impact 

of interest rate fluctuation is insignificant. The 

project was started with the Company’s own funds 

and the capacity was also expanded with own 

funds. Additionally, the management of the 

Company emphasizes on equity base financing to 

reduce the dependency on borrowing. Therefore, 

management perceives that the fluctuation of 

interest rate on borrowing would have little impact 

upon the performance of the Company. 

 
 

 

4.2 Exchange Rate Risk 
 
If exchange rate is increased against local 

currency opportunity is created for getting more 

revenue against sale in local currency. On the 

other hand if exchange rate goes down margin 

is squeezed in local currency. 
 

Management Perception 
 
The products of the company are sold against local 

currency and payments for raw materials are also 

made mostly in local currency. The exchange rate of 

the country traditionally witnessed upward trends, 

which makes ample opportunity of export. If foreign 

exchange rate rises, export will increase and local 

sales will be less and vice versa. Therefore, volatility 

of exchange rate will have no impact on profitability 

of the Company. 
 
4.3 Industry Risks 
 
Industry risk refers to the risk of increased 

competition from foreign and domestic sources 

leading to lower prices, revenues, profit margin, 

and market share which could have an adverse 

impact on the business, financial condition and 

results of operation. Agro industry in Bangladesh 

is an emerging sector with vast local demand for 

its different product lines. Locally produced frozen 

products now play a significant role in this sector, 

which has been dominated by imports in the past. 

However, the infrastructure required for this 

industry is inadequate in Bangladesh, as can be 

noted below: 

• No organized collection centers for 

agricultural produce exist in Bangladesh; as a 

result, there is a high fluctuation in prices both 

for the growers and for processors. 

• Absence of Cold Storage or Cold Chains although 

the whole process of collection, processing and 

distribution depends on cold temperature mainte-

nance due to the nature of the finished product. 
 
Management Perception 
 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. has established 

its brand name in Frozen Food market with its quality 

products, range of products and customer services.  
However, to develop an infrastructure, both public 

and private sector participation is required. This is 

the focal point of Golden Harvest’s future expansion 

plans. To eliminate fluctuation in prices both for the 

growers and for the processors, Golden Harvest will 

organize collection centers to eliminate intermediary 

cost for both the parties. Deploying 15,000 

refrigerators with 24 cold storages at -30 degree  
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Celsius nationwide, Golden Harvest will have 

infrastructure backbone of Cold Chain which will 

ensure proper supply of Frozen Foods all over 

the country through its 50 temperature controlled  
transport. Our neigh boring country like India has 

over 50 cold chains, generating revenue over 

US$3.5 billion which is targeted to reach US$8.5  
Billion by 2015. 

 

4.4 Market Risks 
 

Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market 

conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the 

company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand 

for the product or service which would harm the 

performance of the company. On the other hand, 

strong marketing and brand management would 

help the company to increase their customer base. 

 

Management Perception 
 

Market for Ready to Cook frozen foods in 
 

Bangladesh is growing at an exponential rate with 

growth of urbanization and incremental income level 

of consumers along with their preference to 

convenience. In spite of high growth of this market, 

there is scarcity of investment in this sector which 

creates a huge demand-supply gap resulting in very 

expensive imports. International market for Ready to 

Cook frozen food sector is already matured and is 

growing further at a high rate. Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Ltd. is one of the earliest entrants in 

international market with very promising and loyal 

customer base in USA, Canada, Australia, Europe 

and Middle East. In Bangladesh market, Golden 

Harvest has made a rapid penetration and has 

captured the leading position with its unique 

branding and positioning strategy taking opportunity 

of this fast growing market. 
 

4.5 Operational Risks 
 

The core business operation of Golden Harvest 

Agro Industries Ltd. is directly related to very low 

temperature maintenance. Country wide shortage 

of power is compelling the company to utilize 

captive power which builds up cost. Also port 

congestion and inland immobility due to political 

instability poses a great operational risk to Golden 

Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 
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Management Perception 
 
Bangladesh Government is meeting this challenge 

by opening the energy generation to private sector; 

and also making massive investment, which is 

expected to ensure availability of energy for 

uninterrupted operation. The company perceives that 

allocation of its resources properly with contingency 

approaches can reduce this risk factor to great 

extent. However, in order to minimize the operational 

risks due to shortage of power supply, Golden 

Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. itself has own captive 

sources of power Generators in addition of existing 

REB (Rural Electrification Board) sources that will 

support production and also planning to engage 

more capacity of power generation to cope with the 

coming needs. Moreover proposed projects will have 

requisite back up captive power support to run their 

daily operation without any hindrance. 
 

4.6 Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the 

Company will not be able to settle or meet its 

obligations on time or at a reasonable price. 
 

Management Perception 
 
The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to 

ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, 

under both normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 

the Company's reputation. Typically, management 

ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash 

equivalent to meet expected operational expenses, 

including the servicing of financial obligation 
 
through preparation of the cash forecast, 

prepared based on time line of payment of the 

financial obligation and accordingly arrange for 

sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected 

payment within due date. 



 
5. Property, plant and equipment 

Consolidated  
              Amount in BDT 
               

  Cost/Valuation     Depreciation    Written Down  

Item of property, plant and equipment Balance as on  Addition  Disposal for Balance as on R a t e Balance as on Charged during  Disposal for Balance as on  Value as of  
 01.07.2014  during the year  the year 30.06.2015  01.07.2014 the year  the year 30.06.2015  30.06.2015  
                

At historical cost:                
Land and land development 129,700,427 52,463,830 - 182,164,257 0.0% - -  - -  182,164,257  

Buildings and other constructions 131,545,917 88,091,670 - 219,637,587 2.5% 19,455,804 3,403,399  - 22,859,203  196,778,384  

Plant and machinery 140,293,753 301,976,751 - 442,270,504 5.0% 42,247,809 12,451,716  - 54,699,525  387,570,979  

Office Equipment 6,974,933  9,013,841  - 15,988,774 10.0% 1,765,977 971,588  - 2,737,565  13,251,209  

Furniture and Fixtures 43,950,481 2,935,007  - 46,885,488 10.0% 8,467,301 3,695,069  - 12,162,370  34,723,118  

Vehicle 19,770,194 111,075,290 - 130,845,484 10.0% 4,220,807 5,257,448  - 9,478,255  121,367,229  

Freezer 250,809,743 495,078,337 - 745,888,080 10.0% 40,317,624 29,676,033  - 69,993,657  675,894,423  

A. Sub total of 30.06.2015 723,045,448  1,060,634,726  - 1,783,680,174  116,475,323 55,455,253  - 171,930,575  1,611,749,599  

At revaluation:                
Land and land development 213,821,556  -  - 213,821,556 0.0% - -  - -  213,821,556  

Buildings and other constructions 165,683,091  -  - 165,683,091 2.5% 11,780,724 3,847,559  - 15,628,283  150,054,808  

Plant and machinery 85,028,928  -  - 85,028,928 5.0% 14,101,014 3,546,396  - 17,647,410  67,381,518  

B. Sub total of 30.06.2015 464,533,575  -  - 464,533,575  25,881,738 7,393,955 - 33,275,693 431,257,882  

Total (A+B) of 30.06.2015 1,187,579,023  1,060,634,726  - 2,248,213,749  142,357,061 62,849,208  - 205,206,268  2,043,007,481  
Total of 30.06.2014 988,465,578  199,113,445  - 1,187,579,023  105,639,093 36,717,968  - 142,357,061  1,045,221,962  

                

 
5.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 

 

Particulars Factory 
Rate of Dep. General and Rate of Selling and Rate of Dep. 

Total 
(%) Admn. 

Dep. 
Distribution (%)   

(%) 
 

       

At historical cost        

Factory & office building 3,367,650 98.95% - - 35,749 1.05% 3,403,399 
Plant & machinery 12,451,716 100% - - - - 12,451,716 
Furniture & fixture 485,794 50% 388,635 40% 97,159 10% 971,588 
Office equipment's 1,293,274 35% 1,847,535 50% 554,260 15% 3,695,069 
Vehicles 525,745 10% 1,577,234 30% 3,154,469 60% 5,257,448 

Freezer -  - - 29,676,033 100% 29,676,033 

Sub total 18,124,179  3,813,404  33,517,670  55,455,253 
At revaluation        

Buildings and other constructions 3,847,559 100% - - - - 3,847,559 

Plant & machinery 3,546,396 100% - - - - 3,546,396 
Sub total 7,393,955  -  -  7,393,955 

        

Grand total 25,518,134  3,813,404  33,517,670  62,849,208 
 

Note (i). Land, Building, Plant & Machinery and equipments are mortgaged to Mercantile Bank Ltd. , Gulshan Branch against term loan and working capital (CC hypo) facilities according to their sanction terms.  
Note (ii). The Company (GHAIL) and its subsidiary company Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. (GHICL) revalued their Lands, Buildings, and Plant & Machinery as of 30 June 2009, 2011 and 2013 

by their Valuer, Ata Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants following "Current Cost Method", resulting the following surplus: 
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Particulars 
Land and land development Buildings and other constructions Plant and machinery  

            

 GHAIL  GHICL  Total GHAIL  GHICL Total GHAIL GHICL Total 

Depreciated             
original cost:             

2008-2009 6,766,812  12,263,392  19,030,204 60,896,552  - 60,896,552 27,747,622 43,900,668 71,648,290 

2010-2011 39,600,000  46,000,000  85,600,000 173,337,972  - 173,337,972 51,232,043 73,284,835 124,516,878 

2012-2013 59,400,000  84,948,240  144,348,240 208,051,766  - 208,051,766 68,832,900 81,670,022 150,502,922 

Depreciated             
current cost:             

2008-2009 39,600,000  46,000,000  85,600,000 121,647,660  - 121,647,660 43,536,243 63,776,758 107,313,001 

2010-2011 59,400,000  69,000,000  128,400,000 213,508,920  - 213,508,920 72,509,790 90,493,099 163,002,889 

2012-2013 118,800,000  130,000,000  248,800,000 272,812,801  - 272,812,801 73,343,507 88,037,621 161,381,128 

Revaluation             
surplus:             

2008-2009 32,833,188  33,736,608  66,569,796 60,751,108  - 60,751,108 15,788,621 19,876,090 35,664,711 

2010-2011 19,800,000  23,000,000  42,800,000 40,170,948  - 40,170,948 21,277,747 17,208,264 38,486,011 

2012-2013 59,400,000  45,051,760  104,451,760 64,761,035  - 64,761,035 4,510,607 6,367,599 10,878,206 

 112,033,188 101,788,368 213,821,556 165,683,091 - 165,683,091 41,576,975 43,451,953 85,028,928 

Summary :             
Year 

            

    GHAIL GHICL  Total     

2008-2009     109,372,917 53,612,698  162,985,615     

2010-2011     81,248,695 40,208,264  121,456,959     

2012-2013     128,671,642 51,419,359  180,091,001     
             

     319,293,254 145,240,321  464,533,575     
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5A. Property, plant and equipment 
The Company 

 

Item of property, plant and equipment 

 

Balance as on 
 

Cost/Valuation  
  

Addition 
 

Disposal for    

At historical cost: 
 01.07.2014  during the year  the year 
      

Land and land development 6,766,812 52,463,830 - 

Buildings and other constructions 131,545,917 85,231,780 - 

Plant and machinery 69,286,331 7,861,721 - 

Office equipment 4,319,238 2,214,811 - 

Furniture and fixtures 37,679,953 1,041,040 - 

Vehicle 15,089,972 - - 

Freezer 250,809,743 61,594,500 - 

A. Sub total of 30.06.2015 515,497,966 210,407,682 - 

At revaluation:       
Land and land development 112,033,188 - - 

Buildings and other constructions 165,683,091 - - 

Plant and machinery 41,576,975 - - 

B. Sub total of 30.06.2015 319,293,254 - - 

Total (A+B) of 30.06.2015  834,791,220 210,407,682 - 
       

Total of 30.06.2014  731,923,541 102,867,679 - 
       

 
5A.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

R
a

t
e

 

 

Depreciation 
 

Written Down    

Balance as on Balance as on Charged during Disposal for Balance as on Value as of 
30.06.2015  01.07.2014 the year the year 30.06.2015 30.06.2015 

59,230,642 0.0% - - - - 59,230,642 
216,777,697 2.5% 19,455,804 3,367,650 - 22,823,454 193,954,243 

77,148,052 5.0% 18,693,234 2,726,198 - 21,419,432 55,728,620 
6,534,049 10.0% 1,060,087 436,656 - 1,496,743 5,037,306 

38,720,993 10.0% 6,971,618 3,122,886 - 10,094,504 28,626,489 

15,089,972 10.0% 1,555,268 1,353,470 - 2,908,738 12,181,234 

312,404,243 10.0% 40,317,624 21,338,937 - 61,656,561 250,747,682 

725,905,649  88,053,635 32,345,797 - 120,399,432 605,506,217 

112,033,188 0.0% - - - - 112,033,188 

165,683,091 2.5% 11,780,724 3,847,559 - 15,628,283 150,054,808 

41,576,975 5.0% 6,831,954 1,737,251 - 8,569,205 33,007,770 

319,293,254  18,612,678 5,584,810 - 24,197,488 295,095,766 

1,045,198,903  106,666,313 37,930,607 - 144,596,920 900,601,983 

834,791,220 
      

 75,170,559 31,495,754 - 106,666,313 728,124,907 
        

 

Particulars Factory Rate of Dep. (%) 
 General and Rate of  Selling & Rate of Dep.  

Total 
 

 
Admn. 

Dep.  
Distribution (%) 

  

    

(%) 
    

           

At historical cost    

- 
 

 - 
    

Factory and office building 3,367,650 100%  - - 3,367,650  
Plant and machinery 2,726,198 100%  - - - - 2,726,198  
Furniture and fixture 218,328 50%  174,662 40% 43,666 10% 436,656  
Office equipments 1,093,010 35%  1,561,443 50% 468,433 15% 3,122,886  
Vehicles 135,347 10%  406,041 30% 812,082 60% 1,353,470  
Freezer -   - - 21,338,937 100% 21,338,937  

Sub total 7,540,533   2,142,146   22,663,118   32,345,797  
At revaluation    

- 
       

Buildings and other constructions 3,847,559 100%  - - - 3,847,559  

Plant and machinery 1,737,251 100%  - - - - 1,737,251  
      

 

  

 

5,584,810 
 

Sub total 5,584,810   -  -   
            

Grand total 13,125,343   2,142,146   22,663,118   37,930,607  
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6. Leased assets (Finance 

lease) Consolidated 
 

                Amount in BDT  
                 

      Cost/Valuation  

R
a

te
 

 Depreciation   Written Down  
Particulars    Balance as on  Addition for Disposal for Balance as on Balance as on Charged for the Disposal for Balance as on  Value as of  

    

01.07.2014 
 

the year 
 

the year 30.06.2015 01.07.2014 year the year 30.06.2015 
 

30.06.2015 
 

         

Vehicle 29,639,812 6,884,378 - 36,524,190  10.0% 8,929,006 2,415,300 - 11,344,306 25,179,884  

Total of 30.06.2015 29,639,812  6,884,378  - 36,524,190  8,929,006 2,415,300 - 11,344,306  25,179,884  
Total of 30.06.2014  26,870,588  2,769,224  - 29,639,812  6,781,651 2,147,355 - 8,929,006  20,710,806  

 
6.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 

 
   

Rate of Dep. (%) General and Administration 
Rate of  

Selling & Rate of Dep. 
    

 
Particulars Factory Dep. 

   
Total 

 

  
Distribution (%) 

   

      

(%) 
     

             

 Plant and machinery - 100%  - -  - -   -  

 Vehicles - 0%  483,060 20%  1,932,240 80%   2,415,300  
              

 Total -   483,060   1,932,240    2,415,300  

 6A. Leased assets (Finance lease)             
 The Company             

              

 
Particulars 

 Cost/Valuation  

R
a

te
  Depreciation  Written Down  

 Balance as on Addition for Disposal for Balance as on Balance as on Charged for the Disposal for Balance as on Value as of  
  

01.07.2014 the year the year 30.06.2015 01.07.2014 year the year 30.06.2015 30.06.2015 
 

    

 Vehicle 26,870,588 2,173,867 - 29,044,455 10.0% 8,790,545 1,916,698 -  10,707,243 18,337,212  

 Total of 30.06.2015 26,870,588 2,173,867 - 29,044,455  8,790,545 1,916,698 -  10,707,243 18,337,212  
 Total of 30.06.2014 26,870,588 - - 26,870,588  6,781,651 2,008,894 -  8,790,545 18,080,043  

 
6A.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 

 
   

General and 

Rate of 

Selling and Distribution 
Rate of Dep. 

Total Particulars Factory Rate of Dep. (%) Dep. 
Admn. (%)    

(%) 
  

       
        

Plant and machinery - 100% - - - - - 

Vehicles - 0% 383,340 20% 1,533,358 80% 1,916,698.00 
        

Total -  383,340  1,533,358  1,916,698 
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   Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15   30-Jun-14 

7. Intangible asset 
       

   

- 

 

 Opening balance 11,200,000   
 Addition during the year  1,179,666   11,200,000  

  12,379,666  11,200,000  
 

The cost incurred for the purpose of the ERP system which is in development stage.  

       

        

7A. Intangible asset        

 Opening balance 11,200,000  -  
 Addition during the year 598,291  11,200,000  

   11,798,291   11,200,000  
 

The cost incurred for the purpose of the ERP system which is in development stage.  

       

        

8. Capital work in progress        

 Opening balance 1,035,672,937  390,197,043  
 Addition during the year 182,182,206  645,475,894  

 Transferred to property, plant and equipment (548,367,446)  -  

   669,487,697  1 ,035,672,937  

8A. Capital work in progress 

       

       

 Opening Balance 478,038,445  304,499,176  
 Addition during the year 28,397,861  173,539,269  

 Transferred to property, plant and equipment (68,066,659)  -  

   438,369,647   478,038,445  
         

 

 
9. Investment in subsidiary companies  

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream ltd. (Note - 9.01) 611,157,448 595,420,344 

 Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. (Note - 9.02) 37,317,574 - 

    648,475,022  595,420,344 
 

Investment in Subsidiary is measured in equity accounting method. 

    

     

9.01 Golden Harvest Ice Cream ltd.      
 Opening balance  595,420,344 326,237,604 

 Share of net profit after tax of subsidiary  9,350,176 18,516,713 

 Investment in new share  - 249,999,500 

 Deferred tax adjustment on dep. of revalued amount of PPE 633,201 666,527 

 Adjustment for deferred tax  5,753,727 - 

 Share of revaluation Surplus during the year of subsidiary - - 
      

    611,157,448  595,420,344 

9.02 Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 

     

     
 Opening balance  - - 

 Share of net profit after tax of subsidiary  (182,426) - 

 Investment in new share  37,500,000 - 

    37,317,574 - 
       

 
 

 
113 



GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 
 
 

Amount in BDT  
30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

 
10. Inventories    

 Finished goods 56,138,121 42,622,227 

 Raw materials 133,414,799 19,802,873 

 Packing materials 48,893,334 12,050,492 

 Work in progress 271,309 - 

 Stores in transit 12,831,270 80,838,962 

  251,548,833  155,314,554 

10A. Inventories 

   

   

 Finished goods 35,008,868 39,928,240 

 Raw materials 28,665,292 19,100,526 

 Packing materials 19,609,576 11,389,865 

 Work in progress - - 

 Stores in transit 9,574,934 3,478,983 

  92,858,670  73,897,614  
11. Advances, deposits and prepayments 

 
Advance to contract farmer, suppliers & service providers 401,214,428 476,182,441 

Advance against land purchased 186,958,000 - 

Advance taxes 49,160,305 18,475,989 

Advance VAT 20,888,789 13,676,300 

Advance office rent 14,466,000 5,744,000 

Other deposit 3,265,932 66,963 

Lease deposits 584,859 624,890 

 676,538,313  514,770,583  
This is unsecured and considered good.  
(a) The maximum amount due from the suppliers & service providers.  
(b) No amount was due by the directors, managing agent, managers and other officers of the company 

and any of them severally or jointly with any other person. 

 
11A.  Advances, deposits and prepayments    

Advance to contract farmer, suppliers & service providers 293,020,482 318,332,594 

Advance against Land 66,780,000 - 

Advance taxes 34,416,854 13,794,377 

Advance VAT 1,455,216 2,836,001 

Other Deposit 2,394,400 - 

Lease deposits 401,469 556,250 

 398,468,421  335,519,222  
12. Trade and other receivable  

Trade receivable (Note - 12.01) 224,099,099 217,192,003 

Other receivable (Note - 12.02) 6,031,065 15,759,428 

  230,130,164  232,951,431 

12.01 Trade receivable 
    

    

Sales receivables  224,099,099 217,192,003 

  224,099,099  217,192,003 
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Amount in BDT 

30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 
 

This is unsecured,consideredgoodexcept for the portion of doubtful debtorsand is falling due within one 

year. Classification schedule as required by schedule XI of Companies Act 1994 are as follows: 
 

    Consolidate 

SL   Particulars amount in BDT 

    2015 

I 
Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which  

the company is fully secured -  
     

II Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which  

 the company holds no security other than the debtor 224,099,099 

 personal security  
     

III Accounts receivable considered doubtful or bad - 
     

IV 
Accounts receivable due by any director or other officer  

of the company -  
     

V Accounts receivable due by Common management - 

VI 
The  maximum amount of receivable due by any director  

or other officer of the company -  

   TOTAL 224,099,099 

 
Consolidate  

amount in BDT  
2014 

 
- 

 
217,192,003 

 
- 

 
-  
- 

 
-  

217,192,003 

 

12.02 Other receivables     

 Export incentive receivable  4,704,399 11,933,383 

 Interest receivable  1,326,666 3,826,045 
      

   6,031,065  15,759,428 
 

This is unsecured, considered good and is falling due within one year. 
   

    

12A. Trade and other receivable     
 Trade receivable (Note - 12A.01) 150,087,585 151,951,445 

 Other receivable (Note - 12A.02) 184,137,291 171,138,188 

   334,224,876  323,089,633 

12A.01 Trade receivables 

    

    

 Sales receivables  150,087,585 151,951,445 

   150,087,585  151,951,445 

12A.02 Other receivables 

    

    

 Export incentive receivable  2,681,414 7,654,816 

 Interest receivable  70,000 3,009,784 

 Inter company transaction (Note - 12A.03) 181,385,877 160,473,588 

   184,137,291  171,138,188 

12A.03 Inter company transaction 

    

    

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 81,891,352 160,473,588 

 Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd.  99,494,525 - 
      

   181,385,877  160,473,588 
 

This is unsecured and considered good. 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 

 

  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

13. Cash and cash equivalents    

 Cash in hand: 742,497 254,819 

 Cash in hand at head office 200,654  95,276 

 Cash in hand at factory office 541,843  159,543 
 Cash at bank 66,713,678  87,142,365 
 Fixed Deposits with Banks 

30,836,000 337,116,329  (Maturity within 1 to 3 months) 

  98,292,175  424,513,513 

13A. Cash and cash equivalents 

   

   

 Cash in hand: 228,894 56,925 
 

Cash in hand at head office 
 

 

 

 95,509 51,913 
 Cash in hand at factory office 133,385  5,012 
 

Cash at bank 
   

 11,631,856 16,572,047 
 Fixed Deposits with Banks 

20,836,000 235,108,204  (Maturity within 1 to 3 months) 

  32,696,750  251,737,176 
     

 
Details of cash at bank is given at annex-A 

 
14. Share capital Authorized 

share capital 

100,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each 
 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital  
58,750,000 ordinary share @ Tk. 10 each fully paid-up 

against cash 18,150,000 bonus share @ Tk. 10 each 

5,000,000 ordinary share @ Tk. 10 each fully 

paid-up against acquisition of shares of Golden 

Harvest Ice Cream Limited 

 
The above balance has been received from the following : 

 

Name Designation 
% of Shares 

30-06-2015 30-06-2014   

Directors    

Mr. Matthew Graham Stock Chairman 2.00 2.00 
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Managing   

 Director 22.31 22.31 

Mr. Ahmed Mehdi Samdani Director 2.00 2.00 

Ms. Nadia Khalil Choudhury Director 2.00 2.00 

Mr. Azizul Huque Director 2.26 2.26 

Mr. Moqsud Ahmed Khan Director 2.46 2.46 

Mr. Mohius Samad Choudhury Director 2.00 2.00 

  35.03 35.03 
Others    

Foreign investors 
   

 0.44 0.06 
Institutions  37.15 27.74 

General shareholders  27.38 37.17 

  64.97 64.97 

  100 100 
    

 

 
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 
 
 
 
587,500,000 587,500,000  
181,500,000 181,500,000 

 
50,000,000 50,000,000 

 
819,000,000 819,000,000 

 
 

No. of Shares 
 
30-06-2015 30-06-2014 

 
1,638,000 1,638,000 

 
18,273,360 18,273,360  

1,638,000 1,638,000  
1,638,000 1,638,000  
1,850,688 1,850,688  
2,016,000 2,016,000  
1,638,000 1,638,000  

28,692,048 28,692,048 

 
358,701 45,106 

30,424,212 22,718,159  
22,425,039 30,444,687  
53,207,952 53,207,952  
81,900,000 81,900,000 
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Range with shareholding position: 
 

Range of holdings No. of shareholders % of shareholders Number of shares 

In number of shares 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014  

1 to 499 16,482 21,956 0.82 0.82 3,793,479 4,976,646 

500 to 5,000 2,686 3,857 0.13 0.14 4,510,539 6,315,476 

5,001 to 10,000 392 533 0.02 0.02 2,744,478 3,607,561 

10,001 to 20,000 191 232 0.01 0.01 2,572,772 3,135,511 

20,001 to 30,000 78 95 0.00 0.00 1,934,930 2,284,776 

30,001 to 40,000 36 39 0.00 0.00 1,259,069 1,325,724 

40,001 to 50,000 28 21 0.00 0.00 1,278,324 959,180 

50,001 to 100,000 70 64 0.00 0.00 4,936,365 4,504,224 

100,001 to 1,000,000 50 42 0.00 0.00 10,149,562 8,598,044 

Over 1,000,000 15 14 0.00 0.00 48,720,482 46,192,858 

Total 20,028 26,853 1.00 1.00 81,900,000 81,900,000 

 

Shareholding position of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd: 

 

Name Designation 
% of Shares  

    
      

  2015  2014  

 Managing     
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director 0.0002% 0.0002%  

 Parent     

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. company 99.9998% 99.9998%  

  100%  100%  
       
Shareholding position of Golden Harvest Dariy Ltd: 

 

Value of shares  
@ BDT 10 

 
2015 

 
 

600 

 
299,999,400 

 
300,000,000 

 

Value of shares  
@ BDT 10 

 
2014 

 
 

600 

 
299,999,400 

 
300,000,000 

 

  
% of Shares 

 Value of shares  Value of shares 

Name Designation 
 

@ BDT 10 
 

@ BDT 10      
         

  2015  2014  2015  2014 

 Managing        
Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Director 25.00% - 12,500,000 - 

 Parent        

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. company 75.00% - 37,500,000 - 

  100%  -  50,000,000  - 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 

 

  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

15. Share premium    

 Share premium received 450,000,000 450,000,000 

 IPO expenses: (41,233,946) (41,233,946) 

 Income tax (3% on premium) (13,500,000)  (13,500,000) 

 IPO cost (25,927,742)  (25,927,742) 

 Exchange gain / (loss) (1,806,204)  (1,806,204) 

  408,766,054 408,766,054 

16. Revaluation surplus    

 Opening balance:    
 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 288,465,361 293,889,999 

 Adjustment for deferred tax 20,424,335 - 

 Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred to    
 retained earnings (5,364,551) (5,424,638) 

 Depreciation of the company (4,188,607)  (4,186,802) 

 Depreciation of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. (1,175,944)  (1,237,836) 

  303,525,145 288,465,361 
     

 
The Company revalued its lands, buildings, and plant & machinery as of 30 June 2011 by its Valuer, Ata 

Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants following "Current cost method", resulting in a revaluation surplus at 

BDT 128,671,642 for Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. and BDT 51,419,359 for Golden Harvest Ice 

Cream Ltd. which include non controlling interest part BDT 103. 

 
16A.  Revaluation surplus 

 
Opening balance:  
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 

 
Adjustment for deferred tax  
Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred 

to retained earnings 

 
 

 
288,465,361 293,889,999 
 

20,424,335 - 
 

(5,364,551) (5,424,638) 

Depreciation of the company  (4,188,607)  (4,186,802) 

Depreciation of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.  (1,175,944)  (1,237,836) 
     

  303,525,145  288,465,361 

17.  Retained earnings 

     

     

Opening balance 371,891,644 384,037,702 

Deferred tax adjustment on Dep of revalued amount of PPE 2,029,404 2,254,625 

Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred 5,364,551 5,424,638 

Payment of cash dividend (81,900,000) (78,000,000) 

Issuance of bonus shares - (39,000,000) 

Net profit after tax 100,974,622 97,174,716 

Share of non-controlling interest 60,790 (37) 
 

 

  

 

 

 398,421,011 371,891,644 
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    Amount in BDT 

    30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

17A. Retained earnings   

 Opening balance 371,891,644 384,037,702 

 Deferred tax adjustment on dep. of revalued amount of PPE 2,029,404 2,254,625 

 Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred 5,364,551 5,424,638 

  Payment of cash dividend (81,900,000) (78,000,000) 

  Issuance of bonus shares - (39,000,000) 

  Share of subsidiary company 9,167,750 18,516,713 

 Net profit after tax 91,867,662 78,657,966 

    398,421,011 371,891,644 

18.  Non controlling interest   
  Opening balance 1,190 653 

  Share of Net profit after tax for the year (GHICL) 19 37 

  Share of Net profit after tax for the year (GHDL) (60,809) - 

  Issuance of new share (GHICL) - 500 

  Issuance of new share (GHDL) 12,500,000 - 

    12,440,400 1,190 

19.  Long term loan   

  Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 147,624,873 92,407,481 

  Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 072 4,135,957 8,614,532 

  Mercantile Bank Ltd., Gulshan Branch (HP) 73,287,498 4,841,653 

  Mercantile Bank Ltd., Gulshan Branch (HB) 54,806,876 51,459,484 

  Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 300 15,394,542 27,491,811 

  Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited   

 United Commercial Bank -Syndicate Loan 700,000,000 354,548,605 

    847,624,873 446,956,086 

  Current maturity of long term loan (139,948,048) (16,887,333) 

    707,676,825 430,068,752 

  Terms & conditions of term loan ( Syndicate loan):   

  Syndicated loan,UCBL A/C No.SOD-583  700,000,000 354,548,605 
  United Commercial Bank Ltd. 262,500,000 132,955,727 

  Meghna Bank Ltd. 87,500,000 44,318,576 

  NRB Commercial Bank Ltd. 87,500,000 44,318,576 

  Fareast Finance & Investments Ltd. 175,000,000 88,637,151 

  Uttara Finance & Investment Ltd. 87,500,000 44,318,575 

  Current portion - - 
    700,000,000 354,548,605 
      

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. has taken syndicated term loan facility amounting Tk. 70 crore for 

establishment Ice Cream project and will utilise the loan amount to imported machineries and 

meet other expenditure for implementation of the project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
119 



GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 

 
 

 

  Amount in BDT  

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14  

Rate of interest : 13.25% p.a for bank and 14.25% p.a for financial institute other than bank 

Tenor : 5 years ( Excluding Moratorium Period)    

Moratorium period : 1 year    

Repayment term: 20 Quarterly installment starting from 17 September 2015. 

Security :
 The loans from banks are secured first ranking pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation 

duly  
registered with RJSC for all machineries of the Project and distribution HUBs  in favour of the 

term loan lenders duly insured covering the all risk as per insurance policy, 115 Decim Land at 

Gazipur, 5,000,000nos shares of GHAIL,   a first  ranking floating charge over the stocks, 

receivables, all current and future fixed & floating assets in favour of the term loan lenders on pari   
passu and pro rata basis. The loans are also secured by personal guaranteeof all directors 

of the Company and Onepost datedchequecovering the full limit & 20 post datedcheques 

covering the value of each installment. 

 
19A.  Long term loan    

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited    

Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 072 4,135,957 8,614,532 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 300 15,394,542 27,491,811 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., Gulshan Branch (HP) 73,287,498 4,841,653 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., Gulshan Branch (HB) 54,806,876 51,459,484 

Current maturity of long term loan 

147,624,873  92,407,480 

(40,125,462) (16,887,333) 

 107,499,411  75,520,147 
     

Terms & conditions of term loan: 
 

The Company is enjoying term loan facility against imported machineries and House building loan has 

taken for expansion of Factory Building from Mercantile bank, Gulshan Branch. Terms & Conditions of 

the loan is as below: 
 

Loan A/c Name and No. 
Rate of 

Tenor 
Repayment  

Security 
Interest Term 

 

    

      

   Monthly  a. Hypothecation of the capital machineries 

Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 14.50% 5 years 
(Starting from  and stock in trade, 

22 June 2009) b. Personal guarantee of all the directors 
072 

  

    c. Post dated cheques 
     

Mercantile Bank Ltd., A/C No. 

  Monthly  d. Registered mortgage supported by 

14.50% 5 years (Starting from  registered IGPA favouring the bank against 
300   30 April 2011)  all bank facilities on 99.00 decimal land 

    

     with factory building 

Mercantile Bank Ltd, A/C No. 
  Monthly   

14.50% 5 Years (Starting from 
  

507   
  22 May 2015)   

     
      

   Monthly   
Mercantile Bank Ltd, A/C 

14.50% 5 Years 
(Starting from   

No.047 24 October   
    

   2014)   
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  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

20. Deferred tax liability   
 Opening balance 144,379,364 142,711,269 
 Adjustment of deferred tax on revaluation surplus of PPE (20,424,335) - 
 Adjustment during the year on fixed assets at cost 10,824,069 3,922,719 

 Adjustment depreciation on revaluation surplus of PPE (2,029,404) (2,254,625) 

 Closing balance 132,749,694 144,379,364 

20A. Deferred tax liability   
 Opening balance 103,311,760 100,122,543 
 Adjustment during the year on fixed assets at cost 4,327,416 4,777,315 
 Adjustment during the year on revaluation surplus (14,670,608) - 

 Adjustment depreciation on revaluation surplus of PPE (1,396,203) (1,588,098) 
 

Closing balance 
  

 91,572,365 103,311,760 
    

 
Deferred tax adjustment BDT.14,670,608 have made due to applicable rate changed from 

27.50% to 25% during the financial year.  
21. Lease obligations  

 ULC Ls-403 398,555 194,211 
 ULC Ls-601 1,666,959 5,510,648 
 IDLC Ls-4-001 1,677,710 2,178,743 

 IDLC LS4-002 4,139,427  - 

  7,882,651 7,883,602 

 Current maturity of lease obligation (2,331,898) (5,664,812) 

  5,550,753  2,218,790 

21A. Lease obligations 

   

   
 ULC Ls-403 398,555 194,211 

 ULC Ls-601 1,666,959 5,510,648 

  2,065,514  5,704,859 

 Current maturity of lease obligation (851,018) (5,163,985) 

  1,214,496  540,874 

22. Accounts & other payables 

   

   
 Sundry creditors for goods & service 59,759,891 23,078,587 
 Sundry creditors -others - 4,973,402 
 Undistributed refund warrant 5,227,261 5,317,184 
 Advance against export - 13,538,180 
 Security deposits for freezer 21,505,842 3,636,500 
 Withholding tax and VAT 5,771,857 3,036,390 
 Undistributed dividend 4,054,591 1,805,772 

 Bank interest payable - 2,257,785 
  96,319,442  57,643,799 

22A. Accounts & other payables 

   

   
 Sundry creditors for goods and service 7,226,752 12,542,933 

 Sundry creditors -others - 4,973,402 

 Undistributed refund warrant 5,227,261 5,317,184 

 Advance against export - 2,306,574 

 Security deposits for freezer 4,556,270 3,636,500 

 Withholding tax and VAT 2,657,937 2,508,539 

 Undistributed dividend 4,054,591 1,805,772 

  23,722,811  33,090,904 
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Amount in BDT  

   30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

23. Accruals and provisions     

 Salaries and wages  3,024,285 2,114,743 

 Utility bills  1,818,135 396,988 

 Audit fees  575,000 575,000 

 Mobile phone bill  249,781 95,516 

 TA/DA and incentive  605,579 286,257 

 Provision for tax (Note - 23.01) 109,091,404 94,895,787 

 Provision for WPPF (Note - 23.02) 34,998,926 26,688,093 

 Provision for others  3,123,975 1,530,870 

   153,487,085  126,583,254 

23.01 Provision for tax     

 Opening balance  94,895,787 94,154,439 

 Tax during the year  14,195,617 40,751,601 

 Under provision for previous years - 8,265,786 

   - (48,276,039) 

 Paid during the year  -  (48,276,039) 

 Closing balance  109,091,404  94,895,787 

23.02 Provision for workers profit participation fund    

 Opening balance  26,688,093 17,443,274 

 Addition during the year  6,309,226 7,502,588 

 Interest charged for the year  2,001,607 1,742,230 

 Closing balance  34,998,926  26,688,093 

23A. Accruals and provisions     

 Salaries and wages  1,812,132 1,168,636 

 Utility bills  423,405 396,988 

 Audit fees  402,500 460,000 

 Mobile phone bill  99,160 95,516 

 TA/DA and incentive  463,774 286,257 

 Provision for income tax (Note - 23A.01) 42,267,136 28,977,391 

 Provision for WPPF (Note - 23A.02) 25,678,647 18,796,935 

 Provision for others  2,536,748 1,380,339 

   73,683,502  51,562,062 
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  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

23A.01 Provision for tax    

 Opening balance 28,977,391 29,639,572 

 Provision for the year 13,289,745 29,348,072 

 Under provision for previous years - 5,707,506 

  - (35,717,759) 

 Paid during the year -  (35,717,759) 

 Closing balance 42,267,136  28,977,391 

23A.02 Provision for workers profit participation fund 

   

   

 Opening balance 18,796,935 11,572,926 

 Addition during the year 5,471,942 5,922,054 

 Interest charged for the year 1,409,770 1,301,954 

 Closing balance 25,678,647  18,796,935 
     

 
24. Short term loan 

 
 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited (Note - 24.01) 607,449,597 640,907,260 

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited (Note - 24.02) 218,898,261 127,878,173 

   826,347,858  768,785,433 

24.01 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

   

   

 Mercantile Bank Limited CC075  291,799,073 221,553,079 

 Mercantile Bank Limited Agri- SOD(G) -0051 311,886,565 308,957,276 

 Mercantile Bank Limited SOD-814  - 73,155,363 

 United Commercial Bank SOD-188  - 37,241,542 

 MBL LTR  3,763,959 - 

   607,449,597  640,907,260 

24.02 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited 

    

    
 United Commercial Bank-LTR  - 39,980,481 

 United Commercial Bank A/C No.SOD-071 218,898,261 66,908,256 

 Farmers Bank Ltd. A/C No.SOD-583  - 20,989,436 

   218,898,261  127,878,173 

24A. Short term loan 
    

 

607,449,597 640,907,260  Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited (Note - 24A.01) 

   607,449,597  640,907,260 

24A.01 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited 

   

   
 Mercantile Bank Limited CC075  291,799,073 221,553,079 

 Mercantile Bank Limited Agri- SOD(G) -051 311,886,565 308,957,276 

 Mercantile Bank Limited SOD-814  - 73,155,363 

 United Commercial Bank SOD-188  - 37,241,542 

 MBL LTR  3,763,959 - 

   607,449,597  640,907,260 
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Amount in BDT  
   30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

25. Sales revenue      

 Sales (Export) - 13,059,203  
 Sales (Local) 776,658,989 643,640,060  

 Exchange (loss) / gain - (74,598)  

   776,658,989  656,624,665  

25A. Sales revenue 

     

     

 Sales (Export) - 3,055,613  
 Sales (Local-Frozen Unit) 408,952,584 469,033,098  

 Sales (Local-Dairy Unit) 111,611,229 -  
 Exchange (loss) /gain - (10,982)  

   520,563,813  472,077,729  
       

 
26. Cost of goods sold 

 
 Raw and packing materials:     

 Opening stock  31,853,365 62,297,581 

 Purchase (Note - 26.01) 476,271,597 231,622,150 

   508,124,962  293,919,731 

 Closing stock (Note - 10) (182,308,133) (31,853,365) 

   325,816,829  262,066,366 

 Manufacturing expenses (Note - 26.02) 99,643,191 63,442,643 

 Total manufacturing cost  425,460,020  325,509,009 

 Less: Ending work in process inventory (Note-10) (271,309) - 

   425,188,711  325,509,009 

 Opening stock of finished goods 42,622,227 62,952,143 

   467,810,938  388,461,152 

 Closing stock of finished goods (Note - 10) (56,138,121) (42,622,227) 

   411,672,817  345,838,925 

26.01 Purchase 

    

    

 Raw materials  386,361,083 209,437,291 

 Packing materials  89,910,514 22,184,859 

   476,271,597  231,622,150 

26.02 Manufacturing expenses 

    

    
 Salary and allowance  38,810,038 27,752,268 

 Factory maintenance  4,409,039 2,642,422 

 Traveling, conveyance, tour  809,307 708,270 

 Utilities and generator fuel  24,521,666 12,723,584 

 Office communication  264,469 22,006 

 Insurance premium  2,976,628 1,844,666 

 Entertainment  447,389 339,603 

 Office stationery  1,025,884 312,750 

 Cleaning & security services  442,147 373,816 

 Vehicle fuel  204,153 161,052 

 Miscellaneous expenses  214,337 354,027 

 Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5.1) 25,518,134 16,208,179 

   99,643,191  63,442,643 
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Amount in BDT  

   30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

26A. Cost of goods sold     

 Raw and packing materials     

 Opening stock  30,490,391  33,649,770 

 Purchase (Note- 26A.01) 228,030,509  179,074,373 

   258,520,900  212,724,143 

 Closing stock (Note - 10A) (48,274,868)  (30,490,391) 

   210,246,032  182,233,752 

 Manufacturing expenses (Note - 26A.02) 51,779,678  45,964,881 

 Cost of goods manufactured  262,025,710  228,198,633 

 Opening stock of finished goods  39,928,240  36,706,898 

   301,953,950  264,905,531 

 Closing stock of finished goods (Note - 10A) (35,008,868)  (39,928,240) 

   266,945,082  224,977,291 
      

   Frozen Unit  Dairy unit 

 Opening stock  30,490,391  - 

 Purchase  155,495,273  72,535,236 

   185,985,664  72,535,236 

 Closing stock  (48,274,868)  - 

   137,710,796  72,535,236 

 Manufacturing expenses  51,002,315  777,363 

 Cost of goods manufactured  188,713,111  73,312,599 

 Opening stock of finished goods  39,928,240  - 

   228,641,351  73,312,599 

 Closing stock of finished goods  (35,008,868)  - 

   193,632,483  73,312,599 

26A.01 Purchase     
 

Raw materials 

    

  206,276,313  160,307,415 

 Packing materials  21,754,196  18,766,958 

   228,030,509  179,074,373 

   Frozen Unit  Dairy unit 

 Raw materials  134,526,237  71,750,076 

 Packing materials  20,969,036  785,160 

   155,495,273  72,535,236 
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  Amount in BDT  

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14  

26A.02   Manufacturing expenses      

Salary and allowance  21,215,918  19,339,148  

Factory maintenance  1,860,902  2,203,370  

Traveling, conveyance, tour  199,386  339,072  

Utilities and generator fuel  12,042,178  10,173,561  

Office communication  217,971  -  

Insurance premium  1,680,082  986,938  

Entertainment  380,053  307,971  

Office stationery  464,899  312,750  

Cleaning & security services  259,568  267,926  

Vehicle fuel  131,363  120,355  

Miscellaneous expenses  202,015  352,483  

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 13,125,343  11,561,307  

  51,779,678  45,964,881  

      
  Frozen Unit  Dairy unit  

Salary and allowance  20,486,618  729,300  

Factory maintenance  1,860,902  -  

Traveling, conveyance, tour  179,016  20,370  

Utilities and generator fuel  12,042,178  -  

Office communication  217,971  -  

Insurance premium  1,680,082  -  

Entertainment  380,053  -  

Office stationery  464,899  -  

Cleaning & security services  238,148  21,420  

Vehicle fuel  125,090  6,273  

Miscellaneous expenses  202,015  -  

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 13,125,343  -  

  51,002,315  777,363  
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   Amount in BDT 

   30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

27.  Administrative expenses      

Director remuneration   9,125,000  8,450,000 

Salary and allowance   20,946,448  27,358,058 

Office maintenance   683,365  592,544 

Traveling, conveyance, tour   4,739,719  5,354,754 

Utilities and generator fuel   1,735,970  1,528,310 

Office communication   1,178,256  1,556,720 

Insurance premium   638,148  - 

Entertainment   626,486  1,349,898 

Fees, taxes & renewal   1,714,487  2,209,059 

Professional & legal fees   795,125  1,968,983 

Audit fees   575,000  575,000 

Office rent   -  818,600 

Advertisement & publicity   182,730  - 

Office stationery   1,144,766  1,056,910 

Training & conference   206,094  - 

AGM expenses   1,401,292  1,683,399 

Bank charges   454,165  402,909 

Vehicle fuel   296,213  2,227,757 

Miscellaneous expenses   2,178,183  1,988,229 

Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6.1)  483,060  401,779 

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5.1)  3,813,404  1,497,889 

   52,917,911  61,020,798 
     

(a)  Auditors'  fees represents audit fee for auditing the accounts for the year ended 30 June, 2015. Auditors  were 

not paid any other fees.      
 

(b) The Company did not pay any remuneration to any Director who was not an officer of the Company. 
 

(c) No board meeting attendance fee was paid to the directors of the Company.  
27A.  Administrative expenses      

Director remuneration  9,125,000 8,450,000 

Salary and allowance  13,805,684 13,613,831 

Office maintenance  497,271 592,544 

Traveling, conveyance, tour  3,368,116 3,980,457 

Utilities and generator fuel  1,735,970 1,528,310 

Office communication  956,969 1,463,049 

Insurance premium  343,515 - 

Entertainment  406,047 769,897 

Fees, taxes & renewal  472,250 1,559,168 

Professional & legal fees  673,425 729,330 

Audit fees  402,500 460,000 

Office rent  - 818,600 

Advertisement & publicity  130,210 - 

Office stationery  829,652 993,623 

AGM expenses  1,401,292 1,683,399 

Bank charges  364,158 297,404 

Vehicle fuel  168,438 2,145,553 

Miscellaneous expenses  1,735,721 1,666,877 

Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6A.1) 383,340 401,779 

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 2,142,146   1,141,718 

  38,941,704   42,295,539 
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    Frozen Unit Dairy unit 

 Director remuneration   9,125,000  -  

 Salary and allowance   13,056,884  748,800  

 Office maintenance   497,271  -  

 Traveling, conveyance, tour   3,343,366  24,750  

 Utility bills   1,735,970  -  

 Office communication   956,969  -  

 Insurance premium   343,515  -  

 Entertainment   406,047  -  

 Fees, taxes & renewal   472,250  -  

 Professional & legal fees   673,425  -  

 Audit fees   402,500  -  

 Advertisement & publicity   130,210  -  

 Office stationery   829,652  -  

 AGM expenses   1,401,292  -  

 Bank charges   364,158  -  

 Vehicle fuel   168,438  -  

 Miscellaneous expenses   1,735,721  -  

 Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6A.1) 383,340  -  

 Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 2,142,146  -  
    38,168,154  773,550  
        

        

    Amount  in BDT  

28. Selling and distribution expenses 
 30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14  
     

 Salary and allowance   19,765,165  10,770,157  

 Office maintenance   1,162,748  9,056  

 Traveling, conveyance, tour   1,240,280  -  

 Utilities and generator fuel   1,702,133  -  

 Office communication   901,227  -  

 Insurance premium   393,712  -  

 Entertainment   240,743  65,518  

 Office rent   9,993,322  2,956,224  

 Advertisement & publicity   18,488,490  15,002,112  

 Office stationery   1,624,267  -  

 Training & conference   187,487  -  

 Trade promotion expenses   1,227,294  1,496,233  

 Export expenses   -  1,510,437  

 Trade fair expenses   5,729,878  6,210,264  

 Vehicle fuel   6,744,547  2,920,597  

 Distribution promotion expenses 5,902,943  4,255,738  

 Research & development expenses 575,662  150,151  

 Miscellaneous expenses   262,604  -  

 Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6.1) 1,932,240  1,745,576  

 Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5.1) 33,517,670  19,011,901  

    111,592,412  66,103,964  

28A. Selling and distribution expenses     

 Salary and allowance   11,606,805  10,770,157  
 Office maintenance   226,338  -  
 Traveling, conveyance, tour   69,969  -  
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  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

Utilities and generator fuel  44,452 - 

Office communication  147,667 - 

Insurance premium  355,147 - 

Entertainment  39,424 65,518 

Office rent  637,650 - 

Advertisement & publicity  1,970,120 3,559,280 

Printing & stationery  453,238 - 

Training & conference  73,000 - 

Trade promotion expenses  1,227,294 1,496,233 

Export expenses  - 627,199 

Trade fair expenses  2,270,095 6,210,264 

Vehicle fuel  2,981,593 2,841,182 

Distribution promotion expenses 3,276,397 4,255,738 

Research & development expenses 532,137 21,791 

Miscellaneous expenses  208,470 - 

Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6A.1) 1,533,358 1,607,115 

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 22,663,118  18,792,730 

  50,316,272 50,247,207 
     

     

  Frozen Unit  Dairy unit 

Salary and allowance  11,162,205  444,600 

Office maintenance  226,338  - 

Traveling, conveyance, tour  69,969  - 

Utility, generator fuel  30,412  14,040 

Office communication  147,667  - 

Insurance premium  355,147  - 

Entertainment  39,424  - 

Office rent  637,650  - 

Advertisement & publicity  1,970,120  - 

Office stationery  453,238  - 

Training & conference  73,000  - 

Trade promotion expenses  823,774  403,520 

Trade fair expenses  2,270,095  - 

Vehicle fuel  2,692,213  289,380 

Distribution promotion expenses 3,276,397  - 

Research & development expenses 532,137  - 

Miscellaneous expenses  208,470  - 

Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6A.1) 1,533,358  - 

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5A.1) 22,663,118  - 

  49,164,732  1,151,540 
      

29. Other operating income  
Scrap sale 54,043,238 15,115,111 

Freeze rent 38,263,900  - 

 92,307,138 15,115,111 
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  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

29A. Other operating income   
 Scrap sale 35,661,168 14,886,311 

 Freeze rent 14,743,200 - 

  50,404,368 14,886,311 
    

 

 
Scrap sale represents sale of various Scrap and Wastage including Chicken wings, skin, head and leg etc., 

and factory construction Scrap. Here 70% of Other operating Income is From sale Chicken wastage. 
 

30. Finance income 
 

 Interest received from IPO A/c & STD 130,957 622,089 

 Interest received from FDR A/c 9,652,858  47,759,397 

  9,783,815 48,381,486 

30A. Finance income 
   

   

 Interest received from IPO A/c & STD 130,381 622,089 

 Interest received from FDR A/c 5,694,054 37,793,135 

  5,824,435  38,415,224 
      

31. Finance cost 
 

 Interest on cash credit (Hypo) 55,957,801 23,896,497 

 Interest on agri loan (SOD) 49,572,991 51,459,137 

 Interest on term loan 61,645,912 10,684,973 

 Interest on finance lease 1,084,957 1,587,804 

 Interest on operating lease - 159,952 

 Interest on others - 9,572 

 Interest against WPPF 2,001,607  1,742,230 

  170,263,268 89,540,165 

31A. Finance cost 

   

   
 Interest on Cash Credit (Hypo) 35,037,412 19,901,443 

 Interest on Agri Loan (SOD) 49,572,991 51,459,137 

 Interest on Term Loan 18,942,306 9,217,035 

 Interest on Finance Lease 670,314 1,397,221 

 Interest on Operating Lease - 159,952 

 Interest on others - 9,572 

 Interest against Workers Profit Participation Fund 1,409,770  1,301,954 

  105,632,793 83,446,314 

32. Income tax expenses 

   

   
 Current tax expense (Note - 32.1) 14,195,617 49,017,387 

 Deferred tax 10,824,069 3,922,719 
  25,019,686  52,940,106 
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 Amount in BDT  

32.1  Reconciliation of accounting profit to income tax expense 
30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14  

   

Profit before tax 125,994,308 150,114,822  
Effective tax rate 20% 30%  
Tax effect on profit before tax 25,232,479.04 43,653,373  
Tax effect on deductible expense for tax purposes (30,146,896) (13,124,907) 

Tax effect on non deductible expense for tax purposes 18,204,162 10,489,107  
Tax effect on total statutory income 13,289,745 41,017,573  

Tax effect on tax rebate from export sales - (265,973)  
Income tax on current year profit 13,289,745 40,751,600  

Under tax provision in respect of previous year - 8,265,786  

Minimum tax be paid 905,872 -  
Income tax charge for the year 14,195,617 49,017,386  

    

 

Tax is calculated using tax rates enactedfor the year of assessment. The profit from Agro 

Industries are taxed at 25%. The profit from Ice Cream Industries are taxed at 35%. 
 

32A. Income tax expenses     
    

 Current tax expenses (Note - 32A.1) 13,289,745 35,055,578 

 Deferred tax 4,327,416   4,777,315 

  17,617,161 39,832,893 

32A.1  Reconciliation of accounting profit to income tax expense     

 Profit before tax (Frozen Unit) 73,111,283 118,490,859 

 Effective tax rate 25.0% 27.5% 

 Profit before tax (Dairy Unit) 36,373,540 0.0% 

 Effective tax rate 3.0% 0.0% 

 Tax effect on profit before tax (Frozen Unit) 18,277,821 32,584,986 

 Tax effect on profit before tax (Dairy Unit) 1,091,206 - 

 Tax effect on deductible expense for tax purposes (15,561,934) (11,850,550) 

 Tax effect on non deductible expense for tax purposes 9,482,652   8,661,332 

 Tax effect on total statutory income 13,289,745 29,395,769 

 Tax effect on tax rebate from export sales -   (47,697) 

 Income tax on current year profit 13,289,745 29,348,072 

 Under tax provision in respect of previous year - 5,707,506 

 Income tax charge for the year 13,289,745   35,055,578 

 Under tax provision in respect of previous year comprises:     
 Income Year 2006-2007 - 2,173,188 

 Income Year 2007-2008 - 713,381 

 Income Year 2008-2009 - 851,817 

 Income Year 2009-2010 - 968,158 

 Income Year 2010-2011 - 1,000,962 

  -   5,707,506 

33. Other comprehensive income     

 Net profit after tax during the year (GHICL) 9,350,195 18,516,750 

 Net profit after tax during the year (GHDL) (243,235) - 

 Non Controlling Interest (GHICL) (19) (37) 

 Non Controlling Interest (GHDL) 60,809   - 

  9,167,750 18,516,713 
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34. Segmental information: 

 

The Groups operational segments are frozen vegetable, snacks, dairy and ice cream. 

The operational segments results are as follows: 

 

Particulars 
Frozen vegetable,  

Ice Cream 
 

Totals 
snacks and dairy 

  

     
       

Revenue from sales  520,563,813 256,095,176 776,658,989 

Expenses  356,203,058 69,718,623 425,921,681 

Segment result 

      

 164,360,755  186,376,553  350,737,308 

Capital expenditure 

      

      

Additions to property, plant  
210,407,682 850,227,044 1,060,634,726 

and equipment 
 

      

Additions to intangible asset  598,291 - 598,291 

Other segment information       

Other operating income  50,404,368 41,902,770 92,307,138 

Finance income  5,824,435 3,959,380 9,783,815 

Finance expenses  105,632,793 64,630,475 170,263,268 

Provision for income tax  17,617,161 7,402,525 25,019,686 

Share of profit from subsidiaries 9,167,750 - 9,167,750 

Depreciation expenses  37,930,607 24,918,601 62,849,208 

Segment assets 

      

 2,875,830,872 1,811,195,450 4,687,026,322 

Non-current assets  2,017,582,155 1,379,064,600 3,396,646,755 

Current assets  858,248,717 432,130,850 1,290,379,567 

Segment liabilities 

      

 946,118,662 1,200,036,793 2,146,155,455 

Non-current liabilities  200,286,272 645,691,000 845,977,272 

Current liabilities  745,832,390 554,345,793 1,300,178,183 
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35. Other information 
 

35.1 Transaction in foreign currency    
      

 Particulars  Amount in BDT 
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 
 2014-2015  2013-2014 

     

 CIF value of import:    

 Raw materials 4,356,522 12,923,878 

 Capital machinery 3,523,047 5,592,785 
 FOB value of export - 3,055,613 

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.    
 Raw materials 33,774,977 65,430,852 

 Capital machinery - 185,145,392 

 FOB value of export - 10,003,590 

 Exchange Rate on June 30    
 Euro 86.61 106.32 

 USD 77.80 77.63 

 GBP 122.26 132.84 
      

 
35.2 Contingent liabilities and commitments  

Contingent liabilities 
The Groupconfirms that there are no case filed against the Group which is not disclosed which would have been a material impact on the 

financial position of the Group. There was no Contingent Liabilities as on 30 June 2015. 

 

Capital expenditure commitment  
Capital expenditure commitment for machineries and raw material at 30 June 2015 were as under: 

 
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.  602,950 15,946,662  

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.  343,409 296,441,946  

   946,359   312,388,608 

Term loan commitment Consolidated  The Company    Ice Cream 
            
At 30 June 2015 the company had annual commitment under Term Loan as set out below:  
Term loan principal due within 1 year 139,948,048 40,125,462 99,822,586 

Term loan principal due within 2 to 5 years 707,676,825 107,499,411 600,177,414 

Term loan principal due above 5 years - - - 

 

Finance lease commitment 
 
Consolidated The Company Ice Cream  

At 30 June 2015 the company had annual commitment under finance lease as set out below:  
Lease expires within 1 year 2,331,898 851,018 1,480,880 

Lease expires within 2 to 5 years 5,550,753 1,214,496 4,336,257 
 

35.3 Related party transactions 
 

The company has entered into transactions with other entities that fall within the definition of related party as containedin BAS-24 “Related  
Party Disclosures". Total transactions of the significant related party as of 30 June, 2015 are as follows: 

 
        

Name of Company Relationship 
Nature of  Opening 

Addition Adjustment 
Closing 

Transaction  Balance Balance      

Golden Harvest Ice 
Subsidiary company 

Current account with sister  
160,473,589 105,772,199 184,354,436 81,891,352 

Cream Ltd. concern 
 

      

Golden Harvest Dairy Subsidiary company Current account with sister  
- 99,494,525 - 99,494,525 

Ltd. 
 

concern 
 

      

 Total   - 105,772,199 184,354,436 181,385,877 
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Transaction with key management personnels 

 

No. Particulars  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 
      

(a) Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the year to the directors, including managing directors.   9,125,000  8,450,000 

(b) Any other perquisite or benefits in cash or in kind stating, approximate money value where applicable.  -  - 

(c) Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission  -  - 
    

(d) Pensions etc.     

 (i) Pensions  -  - 

 (ii) Gratuities  -  - 

 (iii)Payments from a provident funds, in excess of own subscription and interest thereon  -  - 

(e) Share Based payments  -  - 

 

35.4 Discloser of free technical assistants  
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with WINROCK International Institute 

for Agricultural Development as on 12.04.2013 to implement the USAID -Bangladesh funded Cold Chain Bangladesh Alliance 

(CCBA) project under the Global Development Alliance (GDA).The intention of both parties is to identify optimal approaches for 

the successful collaboration under this effort. The main objectives of the CCBA are as follows: 

· Share the risks, resources, and responsibilities for CCBA 
· Increases availability and use of domestically produced, nutritious foods 
· Utilizes and provides innovative technology and partnerships that are currently unavailable in Bangladesh. 
· Result in Significant and sustainable development impact over the long term for provision of quality food in Bangladesh. 

 
To fulfill the objectives of Cold Chain Bangladesh Alliance (CCBA) GoldenHarvest Limited will provide leverage of USD 10.2 million for 

planning, development, and implementation of a central cold store whereas WINROCK International will manage a US agency for  
international development (USAID) cooperative agreementof $ 4.975 million for technical and other support services over 36 

months. The costs associated with the services will be incurred directly by WINROCK International which is not measurablein 

monetary value to the Companythat can be attributed to the cost related assets. Furthermore, the MoU does not create a 

contractual binding relationship and shall not be deemed to constitute a legal partnership or joint venture between the parties. 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited does not receive any grants from WINROCK International, however the leverage 

provided by them to Global Development Alliance (GDA) can be considered as a free assistance to Golden Harvest Agro 

Industries Limited. BAS-20 “Government Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance” excludes free technical services 

from the definition of government assistance and accordingly not recognized in the financial statements. 

 
35.5 Quantitative details of opening stock, purchases/ production, consumption/sales and closing stock of raw 

materials and finished goods: 
 

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 
 

  Opening Purchases/ Consumption/ Closing 

Item  stock Production Sales Stock 

 Unit  Kg Kg Kg Kg 

Raw materials:   
1,219,615 6,496,596 6,094,088 1,622,123 For the year 2014-2015 Kg  

For the year 2013-2014   1,361,095 5,260,328 5,401,809 1,219,615 

Finished goods:       
Vegetable & Snacks   

269,785 4,620,407 4,369,451 520,741 For the year 2014-2015 Kg  

For the year 2013-2014   240,934 3,050,991 3,022,140 269,785 
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Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 
 

   
Item 

  Opening stock   Purchases/  Consumption/  Closing Stock 

          Production  Sales   
       Unit  Kg   Kg  Kg  Kg 

  Raw Materials:             

  For the year 2014-2015  Kg  58,757   1,108,395  756,415  410,737 

  For the year 2013-2014    36,659   644,210  622,112  58,757 

  Finished Goods:             

  Fish             

  For the year 2014-2015  Kg  81,209   1,878,522  1,649,730  310,001 

  For the year 2013-2014    52,151   926,453  897,395  81,209 

35.6 Capacity utilization             

 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.         
               

   
Item 

 Capacity in KG  Utilization in KG  
% 

  
    

Per Year 
  

Average Per year 
   

           

   Snacks 750,000  398,369  53.12%   

   Vegetable 2,500,000  1,460,685  58.43%   

  Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.           
               

   
Item 

 Capacity in KG  Utilization in KG  
% 

  
    

Per Year 
  

Average Per year 
   

           

   Ice Cream 5,400,000   1,878,522  34.79%   

35.7  Un-availed credit facilities           

  Un-availed credit facilities to the company as on June 30, 2015 are as under:    

  Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.         
  

Bank & Branch Name 
 

Nature of loan 
  

Credit limit 
 

Outstanding 
 Unavailed 

       limit                 

  
Marcantile Bank ltd. (Gulshan branch, 

 CC Hypo    300,000,000  290,979,573  9,020,427 
   

Hire Purchase 
   

90,000,000 
 

73,287,498 
 

16,712,502   Dhaka)        
    

LTR 
   

40,000,000 
 

3,763,959 
 

36,236,041             

               61,968,970 
  

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 

          

            
  

Bank & Branch Name 
 

Nature of loan 
  

Credit Limit 
 

Outstanding 
 Unavailed 

       limit                 

  United Commercial Bank ltd. (Gulshan  OD(General)    300,000,000  214,257,326  85,742,674 

  branch, Dhaka)   LTR    90,000,000  0  90,000,000 

 
175,742,674 
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35.8 Employee details:  
i) During the year, there were 644 employees employed for the full year and 124 employees less 

than the full year at a remuneration of BDT 3,000 per month and above. 

ii) At the end of the year, there were 520 employees in the Company. 
 

35.9 Rounding off  
Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest 

BDT and, wherever considered necessary. 

 

35.10. Rearrange of last year figures 
 

To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged 

or reclassified and restated whenever considered necessary to confirm to current year presentation. 

 

 

35.11 Event after reporting period 
 

The Board of Director of the Company in their 99th board meeting held on 27 October 2015 

proposed dividend @10% stock for the year ended 30 June 2015 for approval by the 

shareholders in the 11th AGM of the company. 

 
 
 
 

Except the fact stated above, there is no material events after the reporting date that are not 

adjusting events came to management attention which may be needful for the stakeholders. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LIMITED  
Consolidated Statement of Cash at Bank  

As at June 30, 2015 
 

     Annexure-A 
      

Sl. Account 
Name of Bank 30-Jun-15 

 
30-Jun-14 

No. Name 
 

    

      

Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd.    

1 CA-880 First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 37,179  333,869 

2 CA-410 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 32,377  332,227 

3 CA-020 Marcantile bank ltd. 1,428  - 

4 CA-010 Bank Asia Ltd. 791,663  3,011,193 

5 CA-813 Dutch Bangla Bank ltd. 769,133  654,200 

6 CA-001 The City Bank Ltd. 59,139  1,035,452 

7 CA-001 The City Bank Ltd. 5,338,468  6,570,273 

8 CA-001 The City Bank Ltd. 279,204  307,322 

9 CA-739 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 6,185  3,187,830 

10 CA-138 Meghna Bank ltd. 7,063  8,213 

11 CA-605 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 1,397,349  - 

12 STD-562 First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 551,498  566,427 

13 STD-108 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 2,361,170  518,243 

14 BO-4950 IDLC -  46,798 

  Sub-Total 11,631,856  16,572,047 

 FDR     
 FDR-654 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-619 Marcantile bank ltd. 10,000,000  10,000,000 

 FDR-625 Marcantile bank ltd. 10,000,000  10,000,000 

 FDR-631 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-648 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-660 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-677 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-683 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-691 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-700 Marcantile bank ltd. -  10,000,000 

 FDR-078 First Security Islami Bank Ltd. -  14,094,500 

 FDR-473 United Commercial Bank Ltd. -  20,000,000 

 FDR-474 United Commercial Bank Ltd. -  20,000,000 

 FDR-475 United Commercial Bank Ltd. -  20,000,000 

 FDR-476 United Commercial Bank Ltd. -  20,000,000 

 FDR-477 United Commercial Bank Ltd. -  20,000,000 

 FDR-SIBL Social Islami Bank Ltd. 836,000  - 

 FDR-264 United Commercial Bank -  21,013,704 

  Sub-Total 20,836,000  235,108,204 

  Total 32,467,856  251,680,251 
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 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 30-Jun-15 
    

 CA-897 First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 6,931 
    

 CA-404 United Commercial Bank 16,214 
    

 CA-037 Marcantile bank ltd. 557 
    

 CA-243 Bank Asia Ltd. 241,878 
    

 CA-001 The City Bank Ltd. 5,000 
    

 CA-740 United Commercial Bank 564,648 
    

 CA-598 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 2,162,411 
    

 CA-166 NRB Commercial bank ltd 23,216 
    

 CA-Escrow-388 United Commercial Bank 808,465 
    

 A/c-583 The Farmers Bank - 

 CA-111 Islami bnak Bangladesh Ltd. 1,206,712 
    

  Sub-Total 5,036,032 

 FDR   

 FDR-797 United Commercial Bank - 

 FDR-798 United Commercial Bank - 

 FDR-460 Fareast Finance ltd. 10,000,000 
    

    

  Sub-Total 10,000,000 

  Total 15,036,032 

Golden Harvest Dariy Ltd.  

 CD- 433 Social Islami Bank Ltd. 49,999,365 
    

 CD-097 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 46,425 
    

  Total 50,045,790 

 
 
 
 
 

 

30-Jun-14  
9,461  

16,214  
1,000  
4,425  

- 
 

788,077  
- 

 
124,979  

39,626,162  
30,000,000  

- 
 
70,570,318 

 

- 
 

92,008,125  
10,000,000 

 
102,008,125  
172,578,443 

 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
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AUDITOR’S REPORT & 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

GOLDEN HARVEST ICE CREAM LIMITED 

as at and for the year ended 30 June 2015 



GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.  

a member of 
 
 

 

registered in Berlin-Germany 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report  

to  

The Shareholders of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited 
 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehen-sive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 

appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
House # 432 (2nd Fl.), Lane # 30, New DOHS, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206 Thielallee 113, D 14195 Berlin  
Tel : +880-2-9884390, Mobile : 01824-56 79 96, 01819-13 70 95 Germany  
E-mail : skbarua_123@yahoo.com, Web : www.skbarua.org Phone : +355 67 20 66 161 
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Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements of the company give a true and fair view of the financial 

position of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited as at 30 June 2015, and of its financial performance 

and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 

Standards (BFRSs) and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 

1987 and other applicable laws and regulations. 

 
 

We also report that 
 

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

 
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books; 
 

c) the statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income dealt 

with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and 
 

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business. 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated: Dhaka; 
S. K. Barua & Co. 

27 October 2015 
Chartered Accountants  
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GOLDEN HARVEST ICE CREAM LTD. 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at June 30, 2015 

 

 
Notes 

Amount  in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 
 

30-Jun-14    

ASSETS     

Non-Current Assets  1,379,064,600 877,362,310 

Property, plant and equipment 5.00 1,142,405,498  317,097,055 

Leasehold asset 6.00 6,842,672  2,630,763 

Intangible assets 7.00 581,375  - 

Capital work in progress 8.00 229,235,055  557,634,492 

Current Assets  432,130,850 503,780,024 

Inventories 9.00 158,690,163  81,416,940 

Advances, deposits and prepayments 10.00 178,669,892  179,251,361 

Trade and other receivables 11.00 79,221,160  70,335,386 

Cash and cash equivalents 12.00 15,549,635  172,776,337 

     

TOTAL ASSETS  1,811,195,450 1,381,142,334 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES     

Shareholders' equity  611,158,656 595,421,533 

Share capital 13.00 300,000,000  300,000,000 

Revaluation surplus 14.00 113,664,595  109,086,812 

Retained earnings 15.00 197,494,061  186,334,721 

Non-current liabilities  645,691,000 397,294,125 

Long term loan 16.00 600,177,414  354,548,605 

Deferred tax liability 17.00 41,177,329  41,067,604 

Lease obligation 18.00 4,336,257  1,677,916 

Current liabilities  554,345,794 388,426,676 

Accounts and other payables 19.00 154,397,983  185,026,484 

Accruals and provisions 20.00 79,746,084  75,021,192 

Short term loan 21.00 218,898,261  127,878,173 

Current maturity of long term loan  99,822,586  - 

Current maturity of lease obligation  1,480,880  500,827 
     

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  1,811,195,450  1,381,142,334 

Number of share used to calculate NAV  30,000,000 30,000,000 

Net asset value per share  20.37  19.85 
 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith. 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
 

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 
 

 Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co. 
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GOLDEN HARVEST ICE CREAM LTD.   
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income   

For the year ended June 30, 2015   

     
 

Notes 
Amount in BDT 

 

2014-2015 
 

2013-2014    

Revenue 22 256,095,176 184,546,936 

Cost of goods sold 23 (144,727,735) (120,861,634) 

Gross profit  111,367,441  63,685,302 

Operating expenses  (75,009,112) (34,582,016) 

Administrative expenses 24 (13,732,972)  (18,725,259) 

Selling expenses 25 (61,276,140)  (15,856,757) 

Other operating income 26 41,902,770 228,800 

Profit from operation  78,261,099 29,332,086 

Financial income 27 3,959,380 9,966,262 

Financial expenses 28 (64,630,475)  (6,093,851) 

Net profit from operation  17,590,004 33,204,497 

Provision for workers profit participation fund  (837,284) (1,580,534) 

Net profit before tax 
    

 16,752,720  31,623,963 

Income tax expenses 29 (7,402,525) (13,107,213) 
 

Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of 

the company 
 

Other comprehensive income  
Total comprehensive income 

 
Number of share used to calculate EPS 30 Earning per 

share for the year (BDT) 

 

9,350,195 18,516,750 
 

- -  
9,350,195 18,516,750 

 
30,000,000 23,767,123 
 

0.31 0.78 

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith. 

 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 

 
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 
 

 

Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co.  
27 October 2015 Chartered Accountants 
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GOLDEN HARVEST ICE CREAM LTD.  
Statement of Changes in Equity  

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

    Amount in BDT 

Particulars Share capital 
Revaluation Retained 

Total 
surplus earnings    

 
Balance as on 01.07.13  
Depreciation on revaluation surplus 

transferred to retained earnings  
Deferred tax adjustment on revaluation 

surplus Issuance of ordinary shares 
 

Net profit after tax 
 

Balance as on 30.06.2014 

 
 

50,000,000 110,324,648 165,913,608 326,238,256 

- (1,237,836) 1,237,836 - 

- - 666,527 666,527 

250,000,000 - - 250,000,000 

- - 18,516,750 18,516,750 
       

300,000,000  109,086,812  186,334,721  595,421,533 
       

 

Balance as on 01.07.14  
Deferred tax adjustment on WDV of revalued assets 

 
Adjustment of deferred tax on revaluation surplus 

 
Depreciation on revaluation surplus 

transferred to retained earnings 
 

Net profit after tax 

 
 

300,000,000 109,086,812 186,334,721 595,421,533 

- 5,753,727 - 5,753,727 

- - 633,201 633,201 

- (1,175,944) 1,175,944 - 

- -  9,350,195  9,350,195 

Balance at 30.06.15  300,000,000  113,664,595  197,494,061  611,158,656 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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GOLDEN HARVEST ICE CREAM LTD. 

Statement of Cash Flows  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 Amount in BDT 

 2014-2015  2013-2014 

Cash flows from operating activities    

Collections from customers 295,001,547 201,137,331 

Payments for costs & expenses (259,669,989) (68,901,435) 

Tax paid (10,061,839) (27,027,699) 

Net cash generated from operating activities 
   

25,269,719 105,208,197 

Cash flows from investing activities    

Acquisitions of property plant and equipment (369,926,257) (96,245,766) 

Capital work in progress (151,901,350) (471,936,625) 

Acquisitions of leased assets (433,510) (369,224) 

Acquisitions of intangibles assets (581,375) - 

Advance finance to contract farmers & others 49,655,901 (77,122,890) 

Net Cash used in investing activities 
   

(473,186,591) (645,674,505) 

Cash flows from financing activities    

Working capital borrowings from banks / Sister concern 10,507,857 127,878,173 

Long term borrowings from / (repayments to) banks 345,451,395 340,827,318 

Financial expenses (64,630,475) (6,093,851) 

Issue of ordinary shares - 250,000,000 

Received /(payment) against finance lease (638,606) (221,257) 

Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities 
   

290,690,171  712,390,383 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (157,226,701) 171,924,075 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 172,776,337 852,263 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
   

15,549,636 172,776,337 

Number of share used to calculate NOCFPS 

   

30,000,000 30,000,000 

Operating cash flow per share 
   

0.84 3.51 
    

 
 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited  
Notes to the Financial Statements  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

1. Reporting entity 
 

1.1 Company profile 
 

Legal status of the company 
 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited formerly known 

as Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing 

Limited was incorporated on January 05, 2005, vide 

Reg. No.-C-55601(2285)/ 05 under the Compa-nies 

Act, 1994 as a Private Limited Company. 
 

Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish Processing 
Limited’ (GHSFFPL), has been converted into 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited (GHICL) on 
16th May 2013 through the office of Registrar of 
Joint Stock Companies and Firms. 

 
Address of registered office and principal 
place of business 

 
The principal place of business and the registered 

office of the Company is at SPL Western Tower, Level  
# 5, Space Code # 502, 186, Gulshan-
Tejgaon Link Road, Tejgaon Industrial Area, 
Dhaka-1208. The factory is located at Bokran, 
Monipur, Babanipur, Gazipur Sadar, Gazipur. 

 

Nature of business activities 
 

The objectives of the company are to carry out the 

business, promote & establish factories and chain 

shop or shops, manufacture and manage food and 

food items, Dairy, Ice Cream, baby food, soft drink, 

mineral water, salt & iodised salt and allied 

products in Bangladesh and setting ventures and 

business is in connection therewith. Golden 

Harvest Ice Cream Limited acquired 99.9998% of 

shares of Golden Harvest Sea Food and Fish 

Processing Limited by exchanging its own shares 

and acquired its 4,99,999 Ordinary Shares. 

 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream will launch a wide Range of 

Ice Creams including new varieties alongside regulars 

such Ice Pop, Lollies (Bi Flavours, Tri flavours and 

Twisters), variety of Choc-bars and Cones, Cups, 

Liters and Ice Cream Cakes, Sorbets etc. Golden 

Harvest Agro Industries Limited is the Parent company 

of Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 
 

2. Basis of preparation of financial 
statements 

 
2.1 Basis of measurement of elements of 
financial statements 

 

146 

 
 
 

 

The financial statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis, and therefore, do not take 

into consideration the effect of inflation except that 

arising from revaluation of landsand land 

development, plant &machinery. The accounting 

policies, unless otherwise stated, have been 

consistently applied by the Company and are 

consistent with those of the previous year. 
 

2.2 Statement on compliance with 
local laws 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1994 and other relevant local 
laws and regulations of the Country. 
 

2.3 Statement on compliance of 

Bangladesh accounting standards 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the applicable Bangladesh 

Accounting Standard (BASs) and Bangladesh 

Financial Reporting Standard (BFRSs) adopted 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International 

Accounting Standards (IASs) and International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
2.4 Going concern 
 
As per BAS-1, a company is required to make 
assessment at the end of each year to make 
assessment of its capability to continue as going 
concern. Management of the Company makes 
such assessment each year. The company has 
adequate resources to continue in operation for 
the foreseeable future and has wide coverage of 
its liabilities. For this reason, the directors 
continue to adopt going concern assumption 
while preparing the financial statements. 
 
2.5 Accrual basis 
 
The financial statements have been prepared using 

the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
2.6 Structure, content and presentation of 
financial statements 
 
Being the general purpose financial statements, 

the presentation of these financial statements is in 

accordance with the guidelines provided by BAS 

1: “Presentation of Financial Statements”. A 

complete set of financial statements comprise: 
 

i) Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2015; ii) 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive  
Income for the year ended June 30, 2015; 



 
 
 

 

iii) Statement of Changes in Equity as at June 

30, 2015; 

іv) A statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended June 30, 2015; and 

v) Notes comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory 

information to the accounts for the year ended 

June 30, 2015. 
 

2.7 Reporting period  
The reporting period of the company covers 

one year from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. 
 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Revenue 

In compliance with requirements of BAS-18: 

(Revenue), revenue receipts from customers against 

sales is recognized when products are dispatched to 

customers, that is, when the significant risk and 

rewards of ownership have been transferred to buyer, 

recovery of the consideration is probable, the 

associated costs and possible return of goods can be 

estimated reliably and there is no continuing 

management involvement with the goods. Revenue is 

recognized net of value added tax, supplementary 

duty and service charge collectible from clients as 

well as rebate and discount allowed to customers. 
 

3.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Initial recognition and measurement 
 

Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at 

cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost 

or valuation less accumulated depreciation in 

compliance with the requirements of BAS 16: 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of 

acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price 

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the 

assets to its working condition for its intended use 

inclusive of inward freight, duties, non-refundable 

taxes and un-allocated expenditures etc. 
 

Subsequent costs 
 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 

amount of an item if it is probable that the future 

economic benefits embodied within the part will 

flow to the company and its cost can be measured 

reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 

property, plant and equipment are recognized in the 

statement of comprehensive income as `Repair & 

Maintenance ‘when it is incurred. 

 
 
 

 

Subsequent measurement 
 
Property, Plant and Equipment are disclosed at 

cost less accumulated depreciation consistently 

over years. On 30 June, 2009 and 30 June 2011 
Land and Land Developments, Building and other 

constructions, Plant and Machinery and Other 
Property, Plant and Equipment have been 

revalued to reflect fair value (prevailing market 
price) thereof following “Current Cost Method”. 
 
Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment 
 
Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or 
valuation of the assets after commissioning, over 

the period of their expected useful lifes, in 
accordance with the provisions of BAS 16: Property 

Plant and Equipment. Depreciation of an asset 
begins when it is available for use. Depreciation of 

an asset begins when it is available for use. 
Depreciation is charged on all Property, Plant and 

Equipment except Land and Land developments 

on reducing balance method at the following rates: 
 

Particular of Assets  Rate of Depreciation 
 

 

 

Plant & Machinery 5% 
 

 

 

Office Equipment 10% 
 

 

 

Furniture and Fixtures 10% 
 

 

 

Vehicle 10%  
Impairment 
 
At each year end, the company assesses whether 
there is any indication that the carrying amount of 

an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognized as an expense in 
the profit and loss statement in accordance with 
the provision of Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
BAS 36 unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount in accordance with BAS 16. No 

impairment loss was recognized for the year 
ended 30 June 2015 as there were no such 
indication existed as on the that date. 
 
Revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment 
 
The Company made revaluation of the Company’s 

Land and Land developments and Plant and 

Machinery as of 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 

30 June 2013 to reflect fair value thereof in terms of 

Depreciated current cost thereof. 
 
The increase in the carrying amount of revalued 

assets is recognized in the separate component 

of equity under the head Revaluation Surplus. 
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3.3 Inventories 
 

Inventories stated at lower of cost and net 

realizable value as prescribed by BAS-2: 

Inventories. The cost is calculated on FIFO method 

in a consistent manner. The cost comprised the 

cost incurred in the normal course of business in 

bringing out such inventories to its present location 

and conditions. Where necessary, provision is 

made for obsolete, slow moving and defective 

inventories (if any) identifies at the time of physical 

verification of inventories. 
 

Net realizable value is based on estimated 
selling price less any further costs expected to 

be incurred to make the sale effective. 
 

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand 

and with banks on current and deposit accounts and 

short term investments which are held and available 

for use by the company without any restriction. There 

is insignificant risk of change in value of the same. 
 

3.5 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 

Basic earnings per share 
 

Basic Earnings per Share (BEPS) is calculated in 

accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard 

BAS–33 “Earnings per Share” by dividing the profit 

or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the 

entity by the weighted average number of ordinary 

shares outstanding during the period. 
 

Diluted earnings per share 
 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss 
attributable to each ordinary equity holders of the 
entity, and weighted average number of shares 
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. As the company has no dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, so diluted earnings per 
share is same as basic earnings per share. 

 
3.6 Borrowing cost 

 
In compliance with the requirement of BAS-23 

(borrowing cost), borrowing cost that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of a qualifying asset form part of the 

cost of the asset and, therefore capitalized. Other 

borrowing costs are recognized as an expense. 

 
 

 

3.7 Foreign currency transactions 
 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on 

initial recognition in the functional currency at the 

spot exchange rate ruling at the transaction date. 
 
At the end of each reporting period in compliance 

with the provision of BAS 21: The Effects of 

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. 
 

(a) Foreign currency monetary items are 

translated using the closing rate. 

(b) Non-monetary items that are measured in 

terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rate at the date of 

the transaction.  
(c) Non-monetary items that are measured at 

fair value in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date when the 

fair value is determined. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 

monetary items or on translating monetary items at 

rate different from those at which they were 

translated on initial recognition during the period or 

in previous financial statements is recognized in 

profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
 
3.8 Authorization date for issuing financial 
statements 
 
The financial statements were authorized by 

the Board of Directors on 26 October 2015 for 
issue after completion of review. 
 
3.9 Reporting currency 
 
The financial statements are prepared and 

presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT), which is 

the company’s functional currency. 
 
3.10 Risk and uncertainty for use of 
estimates and judgments 
 
The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with Bangladesh Accounting 
Standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses and for contingent assets and 
liabilities that require disclo-sure, during and at 
the date of the financial state-ments. 
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Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the 

estimate is revised and in any future periods affected 

as required by BAS 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes 

in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. 
 
3.11 Provisions and other payables 

 
Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in 

the financial statements in line with the Bangladesh 

Accounting Standard (BAS) 37 “Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” when  
• the Company has a legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past event. 

• it is probable that an outflow of economic 

benefit will be required to settle the obligation. 

• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 

of the obligation. 
 
Other Payables are not interest bearing and 

are stated at their nominal value 
 
3.12 Financial instruments 

 
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise 

investment in FDR, trade receivables, Advance 

Deposit & Prepayments, Export Incentive 

Receivable, cash and cash equivalents and other 

payables and are shown at transaction cost. 
 
3.13 Operating segments 

 
No geographical segment reporting is applicable for 

the Company as required by BFRS 8:”Operating 

Segments”, as the Company operates in a single 

geographical and industrial area. 
 
3.14 Statement of cash flows 

 
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared 

under `Direct Method’ in accordance with the 

requirements of BAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. 
 

3.15 Related party disclosures 
 
The Company carried out a number of 

transactions with related parties. The 

information as required by BAS 24: “Related 

Party Disclosure” has been disclosed in a 

separate note to the accounts (Note-31.03). 
 

3.16 Taxation 
 
a) Income Tax is calculated and provision is 
made in accordance with BAS-12. The corporate 
tax rate for the Company is 35%. 

 
 

 

Provision for current tax expenses has been 

made and calculated on the above basis, which 

is adequate under Income Tax Ordinance, 1984. 
 
b) Deferred income tax is recognized, using the 

liability method, on temporary differences arising 

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted 

for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or 

liability in a transaction other than a business 

combination that at the time of the transaction 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ (loss). 

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will 

be available against which the temporary differences 

can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable 

right to offset current tax assets against current tax 

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets 

and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 

same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or 

different taxable entities where there is an intention to 

settle the balances on a net basis. 
 

3.17 Contingent assets and liabilities 
 
A Contingent asset is disclosed when it is a possible 

asset that arises from the past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the entity. 
 
A contingent liability is disclosed when it is a 
possible obligation that arises from the past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the entity. 
 

The Company has no contingent assets or 
liabilities which require disclosures under BAS: 
37. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities 
are not recognized in the financial statements. 
 

3.18 Comparative information 
 
Comparative information has been 

disclosed in respect of the previous period 
for all numerical information in the 
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current financial statements. Narrative and 
descrip-tive information for comparative 
information have also been disclosed whenever 
it is relevant for understanding of the current 
year’s financial state-ments. 

 
4. Risk Exposure 

 
4.1 Interest Rate Risk 

 
Interest rate is concerned with borrowed funds of 

short term & long-term maturity. Interest rate risk 

is the risk that Company faces due to unfavorable 

movements in the interest rates. Volatility in 

money market & increase demand for loans 

/investment funds raise the rate of interest. A 

change in the government’s policy also tends to 

increase the interest rate. High rate of interest 

enhances the cost of fund of a company. Such 

rises in interest rates however mostly affect 

companies having floating rate loans. 
 

Management Perception 
 

Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited maintains low 

debt/ equity ratio; and accordingly, adverse impact 

of interest rate fluctuation is insignificant. The 

project was started with the Company’s own funds 

and the capacity was also expanded with own 

funds. Additionally, the management of the 

Company emphasizes on equity base financing to 

reduce the dependency on borrowing. Therefore, 

management perceives that the fluctuation of 

interest rate on borrowing would have little impact 

upon the perfor-mance of the Company. 
 

4.2 Exchange Rate Risk 
 

If exchange rate is increased against local 
currency opportunity is created for getting more 
revenue against sale in local currency. On the 
other hand if exchange rate goes down margin 
is squeezed in local currency. 

 
Management Perception 

 
The products of the company are sold against local 

currency and payments for raw materials are also 

made mostly in local currency. The exchange rate 

of the country traditionally witnessed upward 

trends, which makes ample opportunity of export. If 

foreign exchange rate rises, export will increase 

and local sales will be less and vice versa. 

Therefore, volatility of exchange rate will have no 

impact on profitability of the Company. 
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4.3 Industry Risks 
 
Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competi-

tion from foreign and domestic sources leading to 

lower prices, revenues, profit margin, and market 

share which could have an adverse impact on the 

business, financial condition and results of opera-tion. 

Ice-cream industry in Bangladesh is an emerg-ing 

sector with vast local demand for its different product 

lines. Locally produced frozen products now play a 

significant role in this sector, which has been 

dominated by imports in the past. However, the 

infrastructure required for this industry is inadequate 

in Bangladesh, as can be noted below: 
 
• No organized collection centers for 
agricultural produce exist in Bangladesh; as a 
result, there is a high fluctuation in prices both 
for the growers and for processors. 
 
• Absence of Cold Storage or Cold Chains although 

the whole process of collection, processing and 

distribution depends on cold temperature mainte-

nance due to the nature of the finished product. 
 
Management Perception 
 
Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited has established its 

brand name in Frozen Food market with its quality 

products, range of products and customer services. 

However, to develop an infrastructure, both public and 

private sector participation is required. This is the focal 

point of Golden Harvest’s future expansion plans. To 

eliminate fluctuation in prices both for the growers and 

for the processors, Golden Harvest will organize 

collection centers to eliminate intermediary cost for 

both the parties. Deploying 15,000 refriger-ators with 

24 cold storages at -30 degree Celsius nationwide, 

Golden Harvest will have infrastructure backbone of 

Cold Chain which will ensure proper supply of Frozen 

Foods all over the country through its 50 temperature 

controlled transport. Our neigh-boring country like 

India has over 50 cold chains, generating revenue 

over US$3.5 billion which is targeted to reach US$8.5 

Billion by 2015. 
 
4.4 Market Risks 
 
Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market 

conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the 

company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand 

for the product or service which would harm the 

performance of the company. On the other hand, 

strong marketing and brand management would help 

the company to increase their customer base. 



 
 

 

Management Perception 
 

Market for Ready to Cook frozen foods in 

Bangladesh is growing at an exponential rate with 

growth of urbanization and incremental income 

level of consumers along with their preference to 

convenience. In spite of high growth of this market, 

there is scarcity of investment in this sector which 

creates a huge demand-supply gap resulting in very 

expensive imports. International market for Ready 

to Cook frozen food sector is already matured and 

is growing further at a high rate. Golden Harvest Ice 

Cream Limited is one of the earliest entrants in 

international market with very promising and loyal 

customer base in USA, Canada, Australia, Europe 

and Middle East. In Bangladesh market, Golden 

Harvest has made a rapid penetration and has 

captured the leading position with its unique 

branding and positioning strategy taking opportunity 

of this fast growing market. 
 

4.5 Operational Risks 
 

The core business operation of Golden Harvest 
Ice Cream Limited is directly related to very low 
temperature maintenance. Country wide 
shortage of power is compelling the company to 
utilize captive power which builds up cost. Also 
port congestion and inland immobility due to 
political instability poses a great operational risk 
to Golden Harvest Ice Cream Limited. 

 
Management Perception 

 
Bangladesh Government is meeting this challenge by 

opening the energy generation to private sector; and 

also making massive investment, which is expected to 

ensure availability of energy for uninter-rupted 

operation. The company perceives that allocation of 

its resources properly with contingency approaches 

can reduce this risk factor to great extent. However, in 

order to minimize the operation-al risks due to 

shortage of power supply, Golden Harvest Ice Cream 

Limited itself has own captive 

 
 

 

sources of power Generators in addition of existing 

REB (Rural Electrification Board) sources that will 

support production and also planning to engage 

more capacity of power generation to cope with the 

coming needs. Moreover, proposed projects will 

have requisite back up captive power support to 

run their daily operation without any hindrance. 
 
4.6 Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the 

Company will not be able to settle or meet its 

obligations on time or at a reasonable price. 
 
Management Perception 
 
The Company's approach to managing liquidity 

is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always 

have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when 

due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 

without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 

damage to the Company's reputation. Typically, 

management ensures that it has sufficient cash 

and cash equivalent to meet expected 

operational expenses, including the servicing of 

financial obligation through preparation of the 

cash forecast, prepared based on time line of 

payment of the financial obligation and 

accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to 

make the expected payment within due date. 
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5. Property, plant and equipment              

             Amount in BDT 
              

    Cost/Valuation    Depreciation   
W D V. as of 

Particulars 
 

Balance on 
 

Addition 
 

Disposal Balance on R a t e Balance on Charged Adj on Dis. Balance on 
 

    30.06.15 

  01.07.14  during year  during year 30.06.15  01.07.14 during year during year 30.06.15   
At historical cost:              

Land and land development 122,933,615 -  - 122,933,615 0% - - - -  122,933,615 

Building & other structure -  2,859,890  2,859,890 2.50% - 35,749 - 35,749  2,824,141 

Plant and machinery 71,007,422 294,115,030 - 365,122,452 5% 23,554,575 9,725,518 - 33,280,093 331,842,359 

Office equipment 2,655,695 6,799,030 - 9,454,725 10% 705,890 534,932 - 1,240,822  8,213,903 

Furniture and fixture 6,270,528 1,893,967 - 8,164,495 10% 1,495,683 572,183 - 2,067,866  6,096,629 

Vehicle 4,680,222 111,075,290 - 115,755,512 10% 2,665,540 3,903,978 - 6,569,518  109,185,994 

Freezer -  433,483,837 - 433,483,837 10% - 8,337,096 - 8,337,096  425,146,741 
               

A. Sub total as on 30.06.14 207,547,482 850,227,044 - 1,057,774,526  28,421,688 23,109,456 - 51,531,144 1,006,243,382 
               

At revaluation:              

Land and land development 101,788,368 -  - 101,788,368 0% - - - -  101,788,368 

Plant and machinery 43,451,953 -  - 43,451,953 5% 7,269,060 1,809,145 - 9,078,205  34,373,748 
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B. Sub total as on 30.06.15 145,240,321 - - 145,240,321 
     

Total (A+B) as on 30.06.15 352,787,803 850,227,044 - 1,203,014,847 
     

Total as on 30.06.14 256,542,037 96,245,766 - 352,787,803 
      
5.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 

 
 

 7,269,060 1,809,145 - 9,078,205 136,162,116 
      
      

35,690,748 24,918,601 - 60,609,349 1,142,405,498 
      
      

 30,468,533 5,222,214 - 35,690,748 317,097,055 
      

 

Particulars Factory  Rate of dep. (%) 

    
At historical cost    

Factory & office building -  0% 

Plant & machinery 9,725,518  100% 

Furniture & fixture 267,466  50% 

Office equipments 200,264  35% 

Vehicles 390,398  10% 

Freezer -   
    

Sub Total 10,583,646  

At revaluation    

Buildings and other constructions -  0% 

Plant & machinery 1,809,145  100% 

Sub total 1,809,145  
    

Grand total 12,392,791  

 
 

 General and Rate of dep. Selling & Rate of dep. 
Total  

admn. (%) distribution (%)   

      

- - 35,749 100% 35,749.00 

- - - - 9,725,518 

213,973 40% 53,493 10% 534,932 

286,092 50% 85,827 15% 572,183 

1,171,193 30% 2,342,387 60% 3,903,978 

- - 8,337,096 100% 8,337,096 
      

 1,671,258  10,854,552  23,109,456 

- - - - - 

- - - - 1,809,145 
      

 -  -  1,809,145 
      

 1,671,258  10,854,552  24,918,601 
      



Note (i). Land, building, plant & machinery and equipments are mortgaged to Farmers Bank Ltd. and United Commercial Bank Ltd. , Gulshan 
branch against syndicate loan and SOD facilities according to their sanction terms. 

 
Note (ii). The Company revalued their lands, buildings, and plant & machinery as of 30 June 2009, 2011 and 2013 by their valuer, Ata 

Khan & Co, chartered accountants following "Current cost method", resulting the following surplus: 
 

Note : The Company (GHICL) revalued their lands and plant and machinery as of 30 June 2009, 30 June 2011 and 30 June 2013 by their Valuer, Ata 
Khan & Co, Chartered Accountants following "Current Cost Method", resulting the following surplus: 

 
 

Particulars 

  

Land & land development 

  

     
 

Depreciated original cost: 
         

          

2008-09      12,263,392   

2010-11      46,000,000   

2012-13      84,948,240   

 Depreciated current cost:          

2008-09      46,000,000   

2010-11      69,000,000   

2012-13      130,000,000   

 Revaluation surplus:          

2008-09      33,736,608   

2010-11      23,000,000   

2012-13      45,051,760   
            

       101,788,368   

 6. Leased assets (finance lease)         
     

 Cost 
     

R
a

te
 

          
 

Particulars 
  

Balance as on 
 

Addition for 
 

Disposal for 
 

Balance as on        

    01.07.2014  the year  the year  30.06.2015   
 Vehicle   2,769,224  4,710,511  -  7,479,735  10% 
 

Total as on 30.06.2015 
 

 

2,769,224 4,710,511 - 7,479,735 
 

10% 

   
            

 Balance as On 30.06.2014   - 2,769,224 - 2,769,224  
 

6.1 Depreciation has been charged on different cost centers as under : 
 

Particulars Factory Rate of Dep. (%) 
   

Vehicles - 0% 

   
Total -  

 
 

 Plant and machinery     Total   
          

  43,900,668  56,164,060   

  73,284,835  119,284,835   

  81,670,022  166,618,262   

  63,776,758  109,776,758   

  90,493,099  159,493,099   

  88,037,621  218,037,621   

  19,876,090  53,612,698   

  17,208,264  40,208,264   

  6,367,599  51,419,359   
          

  43,451,953   145,240,321   

  
Depreciation 

  

Written down value 

 
     
      

 Balance as on Charged for Disposal for Balance as on  

 01.07.2014 the year the year 30.06.2015 30.06.2015   
 138,461 498,602 -  637,063 6,842,672   

 138,461 498,602 -  637,063 6,842,672   
          

 - 138,461 -  138,461 2,630,763   

          
 General and 

Rate of Dep. (%) 

Selling & 

Rate of Dep. (%) Total 

 

 Admn. Distribution  

 99,720 20% 398,882 80% 498,602   

          
 99,720  398,882   498,602   

 1
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  Amount in BDT 

  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 
     

7. Intangible assets    

 Opening balance - - 

 Add: Addition during the year 581,375 - 

 Less : Transferred to Property Plant and Equipment - - 

  581,375 - 

8.  Capital work in progress 

   

   

 Opening balance 557,634,492 85,697,867 

 Add: Addition during the year 151,901,350 471,936,625 

 Less : Transferred to Property Plant and Equipment (480,300,787) - 

  229,235,055 557,634,492 

9. Inventories 

   

   

 Finished Goods 21,129,253 2,693,987 

 Raw Materials 104,749,507 702,347 

 Packing Materials 29,283,758 660,627 

 Work in Progress 271,309 - 

 Store in transit 3,256,336 77,359,979 

  158,690,163 81,416,940 

10.  Advances, deposits and prepayments 

   

   

 Advance taxes 14,743,451 4,681,612 

 Advance VAT 19,433,573 10,840,299 

 Advance against land purchase 20,778,000 - 

 Advances to suppliers & service providers 108,193,946 157,849,847 

 Lease deposits 183,390 68,640 

 Advance office rent 14,466,000 5,744,000 

 Other deposits 871,532 66,963 

     

  178,669,892 179,251,361 
     

 

This is unsecured and considered good. 
 

(a) The maximum amount due from the suppliers & service providers.  
(b) No amount was due by the directors, managing agent, managers and other officers of the 

company and any of them severally or jointly with any other person. 

 

11. Trade and other receivables 
 

Trade receivable 74,011,514 65,240,558 

Other receivable 5,209,646  5,094,828 

 79,221,160 70,335,386 
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Amount in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

 
11.01 Trade receivable 

 

Local sales receivables 74,011,514 65,240,558 

 

74,011,514 65,240,558 

 
This is unsecured, considered good except for the portion of doubtful debtors and is falling due within one year.  
Classification schedule as required by schedule XI of Companies Act 1994 are as follows: 

 

SL Particulars 
Amount in BDT Amount in BDT  

2015 2014  
    

I 
Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which the     

company is fully secured - - 
 

  

 Accounts receivable considered good in respect of which the     

II company holds no security other than the debtor's personal 74,011,514 65,240,558  

 security     

III Accounts receivable considered doubtful or bad - -  

IV 
Accounts receivable due by any director or other officer of the     

company - - 
 

  

V Accounts receivable due by Common management - -  

VI 
The maximum amount of receivable due by any director or othe     

officer of the company - - 
 

  

 TOTAL 74,011,514 65,240,558  

11.02 Other receivable     
 Export incentive receivable 2,022,985 4,278,567  
 Interest receivable 1,256,666 816,261  

 Inter Company Transaction  (Note-11.02.1) 1,929,995 -  

  5,209,646  5,094,828  
This is unsecured, considered good and is falling due within one year. 

 
11.02.1 Inter Company Transaction 

 
Golden Harvest Dairy ltd. 

 
 

 
12. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand: 

Head office 
 

Factory & depot 
Cash at bank in current accounts Short 

Term Fixed Deposits with Banks 

 
Details are given in Annex-A 

 
 

 

1,929,995 - 
 

1,929,995 - 
 
 
 

513,603 197,894  
105,145 43,363  
408,458 154,531  

5,036,032 70,570,318 
10,000,000 102,008,125  
15,549,635 172,776,337 
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Amount in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 
 

 

13. Share capital      

 Authorized share capital      

 100,000,000 ordinary Shares of BDT 10 each  1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 
 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 

    

     

 
Name 

 
Designation 

% of Shares  Value of shares in BDT 
  

2015 
 

2015 2014      

 Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Managing Director 0.0002% 600 600 

 Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 99.9998% 299,999,400 299,999,400 

    100%  300,000,000 300,000,000 

14. Revaluation surplus 

     

     

 Opening balance   109,086,812 110,324,648 

 Adjustment for deferred tax   5,753,727 - 

 Transferred to retained earnings    (1,175,944) (1,237,836) 

 Closing balance   113,664,595 109,086,812 
        

 

 
The Company revalued its lands and plant & machinery as of 30 June 2013 by its valuer Ata Khan & Co.  
Chartered Accountants following "Current cost method" resulting in a revaluation surplus at BDT 51,419,359. 

 

 
15. Retained earnings 

 
 Opening balance  186,334,721 165,913,609 
 Deferred tax adjustment on revalued amount of PPE 633,201 666,527 

 Depreciation on revaluation surplus transferred 1,175,944 1,237,836 

 Net profit after tax  9,350,195 18,516,750 
 Closing balance  197,494,061 186,334,721 

16. Long term loan 

   

   
 Syndicated loan, UCBL (Note-16.01) 700,000,000 354,548,605 
 Less: Current maturity of long term loan (99,822,586) - 

   600,177,414 354,548,605 

16.01 

   

Syndicated loan, UCBL A/C No.SOD-0162300006583 700,000,000 354,548,605 
 United Commercial Bank Ltd. 262,500,000 132,955,727 
 Meghna Bank Ltd.  87,500,000 44,318,576 
 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.  87,500,000 44,318,576 
 Fareast Finance & Investments Ltd. 175,000,000 88,637,151 
 Uttara Finance & Investment Ltd. 87,500,000 44,318,575 

 Current portion  - - 
   700,000,000 354,548,605 
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Amount in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 
 

 
Terms & conditions of term loan ( Syndicate loan): 

 
Rate of interest : 

 
Tenor : 

 
Moratorium period :  
Repayment term: 

 
Security : 

 
13.25% p.a for bank and 14.25% p.a for financial  
institute other than bank  
5 years ( Excluding Moratorium Period)  
1 year 

 
20 Quarterly installment starting from 17 September  
2015. 

 
The loans from banks are secured first ranking pari-passu charge by way of 

hypothecation duly registered with RJSC for all machineries of the Project and 

distribution HUBs in favour of the term loan lenders duly insured covering the all 

risk as per insurance policy, 115Decim Land at Gazipur, 5,000,000 nos shares of 

GHAIL, a first ranking floating charge over the stocks, receivables, all current and 

future fixed & floating assets in favour of the term loan lenders on pari passu and 

pro rata basis. The loans are also secured by personal guarantee of all directors 

of the Company and Onepost dated cheque covering the full limit & 20 post dated 

cheques covering the value of each installment. 

 

 

17.  Deferred tax liability    

Opening balance 41,067,604 42,588,726 

Add: Adjustment during the year on revaluation surplus (5,753,727)   

Add : During the year on cost of fixed Assets 6,496,653 (854,596) 

Less : During the year on revaluation (633,201)  (666,527) 

Closing balance 41,177,329 41,067,604 
    

 

18. Lease obligation 
 

IDLC Ls-101-6202-217424-001 1,677,710 2,178,743 

IDLC LS-101-6202-217424-002 4,139,427  - 

 5,817,137 2,178,743 

Current maturity of lease obligation (1,480,880)  (500,827) 

 4,336,257 1,677,916 
    

 

19. Accounts and other payables 
 

Sundry creditors for goods & service 52,443,139 10,535,654 

Advance against export - 11,231,606 

Security deposits for freezer 16,949,572 - 

Payable- TDS & VDS 3,113,920 527,851 

Bank interest payable - 2,257,785 

Inter company transaction   (Note - 19.01) 81,891,352  160,473,588 

 154,397,983 185,026,484 
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 Amount in BDT 

 30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 

19.01  Inter company transaction    

Golden Harvest Agro Ind. Ltd. 81,891,352 160,473,588 
    

 81,891,352 160,473,588 
    

 

20. Accruals & provisions 
 

 Salary & allowances  1,212,153 946,107 

 Utility Bills  1,394,730 - 

 Audit fees  115,000 115,000 

 Mobile Phone Bill  150,621 - 

 TA/DA & Incentive  141,806 - 

 Provision for tax (Note- 20.01) 66,824,268 65,918,396 

 Provision for WPPF (Note- 20.02) 9,320,279 7,891,158 

 Provision for others  587,227  150,531 

   79,746,084 75,021,192 

20.01 Provision for tax 

    

    

 Opening balance  65,918,396 64,514,867 

 Under provision for previous years - 2,558,280 

 Tax for the year  905,872 11,403,529 

 Paid during the year  -  (12,558,280) 

 Closing balance  66,824,268 65,918,396 

20.02 Provision for workers profit participation fund 

   

   

 Opening balance  7,891,158 5,870,348 

 Addition during the year  837,284 1,580,534 

 Interest charged for the year  591,837  440,276 

 Closing balance  9,320,279 7,891,158 

21. Short term loan 

    

    

 United Commercial Bank-LTR - 39,980,481 

 United Commercial Bank A/C No.SOD-0957490071 218,898,261 66,908,256 

 Farmers Bank Ltd. A/C No.SOD-0162300006583 -  20,989,436 

   218,898,261 127,878,173 

22. Revenue 

    

    
 Sales (Export)  - 10,003,590 
 Sales (Local)  256,095,176 174,606,962 
 Exchange (loss) / gain  -  (63,616) 

   256,095,176 184,546,936 
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Amount in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 
 

 

23. Cost of goods sold 
 

Raw materials: 
 

Opening stock  1,362,974 28,647,811 

Purchases (Note - 23.01) 248,241,088  52,547,777 

  249,604,062 81,195,588 

Closing stock  (134,033,265)  (1,362,974) 

Consumption  115,570,797 79,832,614 

Add: Manufacturing expense (Note - 23.02) 47,863,513  17,477,762 

Total manufacturing cost 163,434,310  97,310,376 

Less: Closing work in process (271,309)  - 

Cost of Goods Manufactured 163,163,001  97,310,376 

Opening finished goods 2,693,987  26,245,245 

  165,856,988 123,555,621 

Closing finished goods (21,129,253)  (2,693,987) 

Cost of goods sold 144,727,735 120,861,634 
     

 

23.01. Purchases    

 Raw materials 180,084,770 49,129,876 

 Packing materials 68,156,318  3,417,901 

  248,241,088 52,547,777 
     

 

23.02. Manufacturing expenses    

 Salary and allowance 17,594,120 8,413,120 

 Factory maintenance 2,548,137 439,052 

 Traveling, conveyance, tour 609,921 369,198 

 Utility, generator fuel 12,479,488 2,550,023 

 Office communication 46,498 22,006 

 Carriage inward - - 

 Insurance premium 1,296,546 857,728 

 Entertainment 67,336 31,632 

 Office stationery 560,985 - 

 Cleaning & security services 182,579 105,890 

 Vehicle fuel and maintenance 72,790 40,697 

 Miscellaneous expenses 12,322 1,544 

 Depreciation of fixed assets  (Note - 5.1) 12,392,791  4,646,872 

  47,863,513 17,477,762 
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Amount in BDT 
 

30-Jun-15 30-Jun-14 

 

24. Administrative expenses 
 

Salary and allowance  7,050,764 13,744,227 

Office maintenance  186,094 - 

Traveling, conveyance, tour  1,371,603 1,374,297 

Office communication  221,287 93,671 

Insurance premium  294,633 - 

Entertainment  220,439 580,001 

Fees, taxes & renewal  1,161,712 649,891 

Professional & legal fees  121,700 1,239,653 

Audit fees  115,000 115,000 

Advertisement & publicity  52,520 - 

Office stationery  315,114 63,287 

Training & conference  206,094 - 

Bank charges  88,797 105,505 

Vehicle fuel and maintenance 127,775 82,204 

Miscellaneous expenses  428,462 321,352 

Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6.1) 99,720 - 

Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5.1) 1,671,258  356,171 

  13,732,972 18,725,259 
     

 
Auditors' fees represents audit fee for auditing the accounts for the year ended 30 June, 2015. 

 

25. Selling expenses      

 Salary and allowance   8,158,360 - 

 Office maintenance   936,410 9,056 

 Traveling, conveyance, tour   1,170,311 - 

 Utility, generator fuel   1,657,681 - 
 Office communication   753,560 - 

 Insurance premium   38,565 - 
     

 Entertainment   201,319   

 Office rent   9,355,672 2,956,224 
 Advertisement & publicity   16,518,370 11,442,832 

 Office stationery   1,171,029 - 
   

-  
Training & conference 

  
114,487    -  

Export expenses 
  

-    883,238 
 

Trade fair expenses 
  

3,459,783    - 
 Vehicle fuel and maintenance 3,762,954 79,415 

 Distribution promotion expenses 2,626,546 - 

 R & D expenses   43,525 128,360 

 Miscellaneous expenses   54,134 - 

 Depreciation of lease assets (Note - 6.1) 398,882 138,461 

 Depreciation of fixed assets (Note - 5.1) 10,854,552 219,171 
       

    61,276,140  15,856,757 
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Amount in BDT  

30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 
   

 
26. Other operating income 

 
Scrap sale 18,382,070 228,800 

Freeze Rent 23,520,700  - 

 41,902,770 228,800 
    

 

27. Financial income 
 

 Interest from STD 576 - 

 Interest from FDR 3,958,804  9,966,262 

  3,959,380 9,966,262 

28. Financial expenses 

   

   
 Interest of term loan 42,703,606 1,467,938 
 Interest of short term loan 20,920,389 3,995,054 
 Interest on finance lease 414,643 190,583 
 Interest against workers' profit participation fund 591,837  440,276 

  64,630,475 6,093,851 
     

 

29. Income tax expenses 
Current tax (Note-29.01)  
Deferred tax 

 

 

29.01 Reconciliation of accounting profit to income tax expense  
Profit before tax 

 
Effective tax rate 

 
Tax effect on profit before tax 

 
Tax effect on deductible expense for tax purposes 

 
Tax effect on non deductible expense for tax purposes  
Tax effect on total statutory income 

 
Tax effect on tax rebate from export sales  
Income tax on current year profit 

 
Under tax provision in respect of previous year 

 

Effective tax rate for minimum tax  
Gross receipt attributable to tax  
Tax effect on gross receipt  
Income tax charge for the year 

 

 

905,872  
6,496,653  
7,402,525 

 

 

16,752,720 
 

35.00% 
 

5,863,452  
(14,584,962) 
 

8,721,510  
-  
-  
-  
-  
-  

0.30%  
301,957,326  

905,872  
905,872 

 

 

13,961,809  
(854,596)  

13,107,213 
 

 

31,623,963 
 

35.00% 
 
11,068,387  
(1,274,357)  
1,179,061  

10,973,091  
(218,276)  

10,754,815  
2,558,280  

13,313,095  
- 

 
- 

 
-  

13,313,095 

 

30. Weighted Average Shares (For the year ended June 30, 2015): 
 

Particulars Issue Date Days 
 No of Shares 
 Outstanding     

   

 

 

Opening Ordinary Share 01.07.2013 365 5,000,000 

Ordinary Share issued during the period 30.09.2013 274 25,000,000 
     

Total  - 30,000,000 
     

 
 
 
 
Weight of Share 
 

5,000,000  
18,767,123 

 
23,767,123 
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  30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14  

31.00 Other information     

31.01Transaction in foreign currency     
CIF value of import:     

Capital machinery - 185,145,392  

Raw materials 33,774,977 65,430,852  

FOB value of export - 12,350,002  

Exchange rate on June 30     
 Euro 86.61 101.22  

 USD 77.80 77.78  

 GBP 122.26 118.27  

 
31.02Capital expenditure commitment 

 
Contingent liabilities  
The Company confirms that there are no case filed against the Group which is not disclosed which would have been 

a material impact on the financial position of the Group. There was no Contingent Liabilities as on 30 June 2015. 
 

Capital expenditure commitment 
 

Capital expenditure commitment for machineries and raw material at 30 June 2015 were as under: 
 

Machineries & vehicle 343,409 233,456,149 

Raw material - 62,985,797 

 343,409  296,441,946 

 
Term loan commitment 

 
At 30 June 2015 the company had annual commitment under Term Loan as set out below: 

 
Term loan principal due within 1 year 99,822,586 - 

Term loan principal due within 2 to 5 years 600,177,414 281,677,947 

Term loan principal due above 5 years - 72,870,658 

Finance lease commitment   

At 30 June 2014 the company had annual commitment under finance lease as set out below:  
Lease expires within 1 year 1,480,880 500,964 

Lease expires within 2 to 5 years 4,336,257 1,677,710 

31.03  Related party transaction :  
The company has enteredinto transactionswith other entities that fall within the definition of relatedparty as containedinBAS-24 

“Related Party Disclosures". Total transactions of the significant related party as at 30 June 2015 are as follows: 

 

Name of Company Relation ship 
Opening 

Addition Adjustment Closing balance 
balance       

Golden Harvest Agro Ind Ltd. 
Holding 

160,473,589 105,772,199 184,354,436 81,891,352 Company 
      
       

Golden Harvest Dairy Ltd. 
Holding 

- 2,845,362 915,367 1,929,995 Company       
       

   160,473,589 108,617,561 185,269,803 83,821,347 
        

31.04 Transaction with key management personnel's  

Particulars 30-Jun-15 
  

Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the year to the directors, including 
- 

managing directors.  

Any other perquisite or benefits in cash or in kind stating, approximate money value  

where applicable. - 

Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission - 
Pensions etc. 

- (i) Pensions 

(ii) Gratuities - 

(iii)Payments from a provident funds, in excess of own subscription and interest  

thereon -  

Share based payments - 

 
30-Jun-14 

 
- 

 
-  
-  
-  
-  
- 

 
-  
- 

 
162 



 
 

 
31.05 Quantitative details of opening stock, purchases/ production, consumption/sales 

and closing stock of raw materials and finished goods:  
 

Item 

   Purchases/ Consumption/  Closing 

    Production Sales  Stock 

    Kg Kg Kg  Kg 

 Raw materials:        

 For the year 2014-2015   2,205 1,108,395 756,415  354,185 

 For the year 2013-2014   58,757 143,094 199,646  2,205 

 Finished goods:        

 For the year 2014-2015   4,368 1,878,522 1,649,730  233,160 

 For the year 2013-2014   81,209 100,166 177,007  4,368 

31.06   Capacity utilization        
         

 

Item 

Capacity in  
Utilization in KG % 

  
 KG    

  

Average Per year 
   

  Per Year     

 Ice Cream Production 5,400,000  1,878,522 34.79%   
 
31.07 Claim not acknowledged as debt 

 
There was no claim against the company not acknowledged as debt as on 30-06-2015. 

 
31.08   Un-availed credit facilities       

 Un-availed credit facilities to the company as on June 30, 2015 are as under:    

        

 Bank Name Branch Nature of Loan Credit Limit Outstanding  Unavailed Limit 

 
United Commercial Bank Gulshan 

OD(General) 300,000,000 214,257,326 85,742,674 
 

LTR 90,000,000 - 90,000,000    

      175,742,674 
        

 
31.09 Employee details: 

 
i) During the year, there were 366 employees employed for the full year and 54 employees less than the full 

year at a remuneration of BDT 3,000 per month and above. 
 

ii) At the end of the year, there were 314 employees in the Company. 
 
31.10 Rounding off 

 
Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT and, wherever 
considered necessary. 

 
31.11 Rearrange of last year figures 

 
To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged 

or reclassified whenever considered necessary to conform to current year presentation. 

 
31.12 Post-balance sheet events 

 
There is no materialevents after the reportingdatethat are not adjustingevents cameto 

managementattentionwhich may be needful for the stakeholders. 

 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.  
Statement of Cash at Bank  

As at june 30, 2015 
 

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. 30-Jun-15 
    

 CA-897 First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 6,931 

 CA-404 United Commercial Bank 16,214 

 CA-037 Marcantile bank ltd. 557 

 CA-243 Bank Asia Ltd. 241,878 

 CA-001 The City Bank Ltd. 5,000 

 CA-740 United Commercial Bank 564,648 

 CA-598 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. 2,162,411 

 CA-166 NRB Commercial bank ltd 23,216 

 CA-Escrow-388 United Commercial Bank 808,465 

 A/c-583 The Farmers Bank - 

 CA-111 Islami bnak Bangladesh Ltd. 1,206,712 

  Sub-Total 5,036,032 

 FDR   

 FDR-797 United Commercial Bank - 

 FDR-798 United Commercial Bank - 

 FDR-460 Fareast Finance ltd. 10,000,000 

  Sub-Total 10,000,000 
  

Total 15,036,032    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Annex-A  
 

30-Jun-14   
9,461   

16,214   
1,000   
4,425  

-   
788,077  

-   
124,979   

39,626,162   
30,000,000  

-  
 
70,570,318  

 

-   
92,008,125   
10,000,000  

 
102,008,125   
172,578,443  
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GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD. 
 

a member of 
 
 

 

registered in Berlin-Germany 
 
 
 
 

 

Independent Auditor’s Report  

to  

The Shareholders of Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 
 

 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Golden Harvest Dairy Limited which 

comprise statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015 and the statement of comprehensive 

income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a 

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accor-dance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards (BFRS) and for such internal 

control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 

that are free from material misstate-ment, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards 

require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 

error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 

preparation and fair presenta-tion of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as 

evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we 

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
House # 432 (2nd Fl.), Lane # 30, New DOHS, Mohakhali, Dhaka-1206  
Tel : +880-2-9884390, Mobile : 01824-56 79 96, 01819-13 70 95  
E-mail : skbarua_123@yahoo.com, Web : www.skbarua.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Thielallee 113, D 14195 Berlin  
Germany  
Phone : +355 67 20 66 161 
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Opinion 
 

In our opinion, the financial statements of the company give a true and fair view of the financial 

position of Golden Harvest Dairy Limited as at 30 June 2015, and of its financial performance and 

its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Bangladesh Financial Reporting 

Standards (BFRSs) and comply with the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 

1987 and other applicable laws and regula-tions. 
 

 

We also report that: 
 

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof; 

 
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books; 
 

c) the statement of financial position and the statement of comprehensive income dealt 

with by the report are in agreement with the books of account; and 
 

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the company's business. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co.  
27 October 2015 Chartered Accountants 
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GOLDEN HARVEST DAIRY LTD.  

Statement of Financial Position  
As at June 30, 2015    

    

 
Notes 

Amount in BDT  
 

30-Jun-15 
 

   

ASSETS    

Non-Current Assets  1,882,995  

Capital work in progress 4.00 1,882,995  

Current Assets  149,445,790  

Advances, deposits and prepayments 5.00 99,400,000  

Cash and bank balances 6.00 50,045,790  

    

TOTAL ASSETS  151,328,785  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

Shareholders' equity  49,756,765  

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 7.00 50,000,000  

Retained earnings 8.00 (243,235)  

Non-current liabilities  -  

Current liabilities  101,572,020  

Accounts and other payables 9.00 101,514,520  

Accruals and provisions 10.00 57,500  
    

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  151,328,785  

Number of share used to calculate NAV  5,000,000  

Net asset value per share  9.95  
    

 
The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to 

be read in conjunction therewith. 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
 

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 

Dated, Dhaka; 
S. K. Barua & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
27 October 2015  
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GOLDEN HARVEST DAIRY LTD.  

Statement of Comprehensive Income  
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 

Notes 
Amount in BDT 

2014-2015  

 

Revenue  
Cost of goods sold  
Gross profit 

 
Operating expenses  

Administrative expenses 11.00  
Net profit before tax  
Income tax expenses  
Net profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 

company 
 

Other comprehensive income  
Revaluation surplus of the company  
Total comprehensive income 

 
Number of share used to calculate EPS 

 
Earning per share for the year (BDT) 

 
-  
-  
- 

 

(243,235)  
(243,235)  

- 
 
(243,235) 

 
 

-  
(243,235) 

 
5,000,000 

 
(0.05) 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this financial statement and are to be 

read in conjunction therewith. 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
 

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date annexed. 

 

Dated, Dhaka; S. K. Barua & Co. 
27 October 2015 Chartered Accountants  
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GOLDEN HARVEST DAIRY LTD. 

     

        
   Statement of Changes in Equity      

   For the year ended June 30, 2015      

         Amount in BDT   
             

 Particulars   Share capital  Retained earning   Total   
 Balance as on 01.07.14 - - -   

 Issuance of ordinery shares 50,000,000 - 50,000,000   

 Net loss during the year - (243,235) (243,235)   

 Balance at 30.06.15   50,000,000  (243,235)   49,756,765   
 
 
 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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GOLDEN HARVEST DAIRY LTD.  
Statement of Cash Flows  

For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

 

 Amount in BDT 

 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities  

Payments for costs & expenses 1,928,785 
  

Net cash generated from operating activities 1,928,785 

Cash flows from investing activities  

Capital work in progress (1,882,995) 
  

Net Cash used in investing activities (1,882,995) 

Cash flows from financing activities  

Issue of ordinary shares 50,000,000 

Net cash (used in) / provided by financing activities 50,000,000 

Net changes in cash and cash equivalents 50,045,790 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 
  

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 50,045,790 

Number of share used to calculate NOCFPS 5,000,000 

Operating cash flow per share 0.39 
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director 
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Golden Harvest Dairy Limited 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended June 30, 2015 

 

1. Reporting entity 1.1 

Company profile Legal 

status of the company 
 

Golden Harvest Dairy Limited has incorporated 

on 18 February 2015, vide Reg. No.-C-

121268/15 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a 

Private Limited Company. 
 

Address of registered office and principal place 

of business: 
 

The principal place of business and the registered 

office of the Company is at SPL Western Tower, Level 
 

# 5, Space Code # 501 & 502, 186, Gulshan-

Te-jgaon Link Road, Tejgaon Industrial Area, 

Dhaka-1208. The factory is located at Golden 

Harvest Industrial Park, Goainghat, Sylhet 
 

Nature of business activities  
The objectives of the company will process 

Liquid Milk and milk based product like butter, 

cream, cheese, yogurt, etc. The project will not 

be for milk collection only it will support in meat 

processing and calf selling. 
 

2. Basis of preparation of financial 
statements 

 
2.1 Basis of measurement of elements of 
financial statements 

 
The financial statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis, and therefore, do not take 

into consideration the effect of inflation except that 

arising from revaluation of landsand land 

development, plant &machinery. The accounting 

policies, unless otherwise stated, have been 

consistently applied by the Company and are 

consistent with those of the previous year. 
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2.2 Statement on compliance with 
local laws 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, 1994 and other relevant local 
laws and regulations of the Country. 
 

2.3 Statement on compliance of 

Bangladesh accounting standards 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the applicable Bangladesh 

Accounting Standard (BASs) and Bangladesh 

Financial Reporting Standard (BFRSs) adopted 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

Bangladesh (ICAB) based on International 

Accounting Standards (IASs) and International 

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). 
 
2.4 Going concern 
 
As per BAS-1, a company is required to make 
assessment at the end of each year to make 
assessment of its capability to continue as going 
concern. Management of the Company makes 
such assessment each year. The company has 
adequate resources to continue in operation for 
the foreseeable future and has wide coverage of 
its liabilities. For this reason, the directors 
continue to adopt going concern assumption 
while preparing the financial statements. 
 
2.5 Accrual basis 
 
The financial statements have been prepared using 

the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
2.6 Structure, content and presentation of 
financial statements 
 
Being the general purpose financial statements, 

the presentation of these financial statements is in 

accordance with the guidelines provided by BAS 

1: “Presentation of Financial Statements”. A 

complete set of financial statements comprise: 
 

i) Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2015; ii) 

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive  
Income for the year ended June 30, 2015; 



 
 
 

 

iii) Statement of Changes in Equity as at June 

30, 2015; 

іv) A statement of Cash Flows for the year 

ended June 30, 2015; and 

v) Notes comprising a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory 

information to the accounts for the year ended 

June 30, 2015. 
 

2.7 Reporting period  
The reporting period of the company covers 

one year from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. 
 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Revenue 

In compliance with requirements of BAS-18: 

(Revenue), revenue receipts from customers against 

sales is recognized when products are dispatched to 

customers, that is, when the significant risk and 

rewards of ownership have been transferred to buyer, 

recovery of the consideration is probable, the 

associated costs and possible return of goods can be 

estimated reliably and there is no continuing 

management involvement with the goods. Revenue is 

recognized net of value added tax, supplementary 

duty and service charge collectible from clients as 

well as rebate and discount allowed to customers. 
 

3.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Initial recognition and measurement 
 

Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at 

cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost 

or valuation less accumulated depreciation in 

compliance with the requirements of BAS 16: 

Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of 

acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price 

and any directly attributable cost of bringing the 

assets to its working condition for its intended use 

inclusive of inward freight, duties, non-refundable 

taxes and un-allocated expenditures etc. 
 

Subsequent costs 
 

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, 

plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying 

amount of an item if it is probable that the future 

economic benefits embodied within the part will 

flow to the company and its cost can be measured 

reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of 

property, plant and equipment are recognized in the 

statement of comprehensive income as `Repair & 

Maintenance ‘when it is incurred. 

 
 
 
 

 

Depreciation on property, plant and 
equipment 
 
Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or 

valuation of the assets after commissioning, over 
the period of their expected useful lifes, in 

accordance with the provisions of BAS 16: Property 
Plant and Equipment. Depreciation of an asset 

begins when it is available for use. Depreciation of 
an asset begins when it is available for use. 

Depreciation is charged on all Property, Plant and 

Equipment except Land and Land developments 
on reducing balance method at the following rates: 
 

Particular of Assets  Rate of Depreciation 
 

 

 

Plant & Machinery 5% 
 

 

 

Office Equipment 10% 
 

 

 

Furniture and Fixtures 10% 
 

 

 

Vehicle 10% 

 

Impairment 
 
At each year end, the company assesses whether 
there is any indication that the carrying amount of 
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An 

impairment loss is recognized as an expense in 
the profit and loss statement in accordance with 
the provision of Bangladesh Accounting Standards 
BAS 36 unless the asset is carried at revalued 
amount in accordance with BAS 16. No 
impairment loss was recognized for the year 

ended 30 June 2015 as there were no such 
indication existed as on the that date. 
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3.3 Inventories 
 

Inventories stated at lower of cost and net 

realizable value as prescribed by BAS-2: 

Inventories. The cost is calculated on FIFO method 

in a consistent manner. The cost comprised the 

cost incurred in the normal course of business in 

bringing out such inventories to its present location 

and conditions. Where necessary, provision is 

made for obsolete, slow moving and defective 

inventories (if any) identifies at the time of physical 

verification of inventories. 
 

Net realizable value is based on estimated 
selling price less any further costs expected to 

be incurred to make the sale effective. 
 

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand 

and with banks on current and deposit accounts and 

short term investments which are held and available 

for use by the company without any restriction. There 

is insignificant risk of change in value of the same. 
 

3.5 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
 

Basic earnings per share 
 

Basic Earnings per Share (BEPS) is calculated in 

accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standard 

BAS–33 “Earnings per Share” by dividing the profit 

or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of 

the entity by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
 

Diluted earnings per share 
 

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings 
per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss 
attributable to each ordinary equity holders of the 
entity, and weighted average number of shares 
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares. As the company has no dilutive 
potential ordinary shares, so diluted earnings per 
share is same as basic earnings per share. 

 
3.6 Borrowing cost 

 
In compliance with the requirement of BAS-23 

(borrowing cost), borrowing cost that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of a qualifying asset form part of the 

cost of the asset and, therefore capitalized. Other 

borrowing costs are recognized as an expense. 
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3.7 Foreign currency transactions 
 
Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on 

initial recognition in the functional currency at the 

spot exchange rate ruling at the transaction date. 
 
At the end of each reporting period in compliance 

with the provision of BAS 21: The Effects of 

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. 
 

(a) Foreign currency monetary items are 

translated using the closing rate. 

(b) Non-monetary items that are measured in 

terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rate at the date of 

the transaction.  
(c) Non-monetary items that are measured at 

fair value in a foreign currency are translated 

using the exchange rate at the date when the 

fair value is determined. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of 

monetary items or on translating monetary items at 

rate different from those at which they were 

translated on initial recognition during the period or 

in previous financial statements is recognized in 

profit or loss in the period in which they arise. 
 
3.8 Authorization date for issuing financial 
statements 
 
The financial statements were authorized by 

the Board of Directors on 26 October 2015 for 
issue after completion of review. 
 
3.9 Reporting currency 
 
The financial statements are prepared and 

presented in Bangladesh Taka (BDT), which is 

the company’s functional currency. 
 
3.10 Risk and uncertainty for use of 
estimates and judgments 
 
The preparation of financial statements in 
conformity with Bangladesh Accounting 
Standards requires management to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses and for contingent assets and 
liabilities that require disclo-sure, during and at 
the date of the financial state-ments. 



 
 

 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed 

on an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which the 

estimate is revised and in any future periods affected 

as required by BAS 8: “Accounting Policies, Changes 

in Accounting Estimates and Errors”. 
 
3.11 Provisions and other payables 

 
Provisions and accrued expenses are recognized in 

the financial statements in line with the Bangladesh 

Accounting Standard (BAS) 37 “Provisions, 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” when  
• the Company has a legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past event. 

• it is probable that an outflow of economic 

benefit will be required to settle the obligation. 

• a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 

of the obligation. 
 
Other Payables are not interest bearing and 

are stated at their nominal value 
 
3.12 Financial instruments 

 
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise 

investment in FDR, trade receivables, Advance 

Deposit & Prepayments, Export Incentive 

Receivable, cash and cash equivalents and other 

payables and are shown at transaction cost. 
 
3.13 Operating segments 

 
No geographical segment reporting is applicable for 

the Company as required by BFRS 8:”Operating 

Segments”, as the Company operates in a single 

geographical and industrial area. 
 
3.14 Statement of cash flows 

 
The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared 

under `Direct Method’ in accordance with the 

requirements of BAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. 
 

3.15 Related party disclosures 
 
The Company carried out a number of 

transactions with related parties. The 

information as required by BAS 24: “Related 

Party Disclosure” has been disclosed in a 

separate note to the accounts (Note-12.02). 
 

3.16 Taxation 
 
a) Income Tax is calculated and provision is 
made in accordance with BAS-12. The corporate 
tax rate for the Company is 35%. 

 
 

 

Provision for current tax expenses has been 

made and calculated on the above basis, which 

is adequate under Income Tax Ordinance, 1984. 
 
b) Deferred income tax is recognized, using the 

liability method, on temporary differences arising 

between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 

their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted 

for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or 

liability in a transaction other than a business 

combination that at the time of the transaction 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit/ (loss). 

 
Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the 

extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will 

be available against which the temporary differences 

can be utilized. Deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable 

right to offset current tax assets against current tax 

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets 

and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 

same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or 

different taxable entities where there is an intention to 

settle the balances on a net basis. 
 

3.17 Contingent assets and liabilities 
 
A Contingent asset is disclosed when it is a possible 

asset that arises from the past events and whose 

existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 

non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 

not wholly within the control of the entity. 
 
A contingent liability is disclosed when it is a 
possible obligation that arises from the past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the entity. 
 

The Company has no contingent assets or 
liabilities which require disclosures under BAS: 
37. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities 
are not recognized in the financial statements. 
 

3.18 Comparative information 
 
Comparative information has been disclosed in 

respect of the previous period for all numerical 

information in the current financial statements.  
Narative and descriptive information for 

comarative information have also been disclosed 

whenever it is relevant for understanding of the 

current year’s financial statements. 
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 GOLDEN HARVEST AGRO INDUSTRIES LTD.    
   

GOLDEN HARVEST DAIRY LIMITED 

   

      
   Notes to the Financial Statements   
   For the year ended June 30, 2015    
        

      Amount in BDT  

      30-Jun-15  

4.00  Capital work in progress     
   Opening balance   -  
   Add: Addition during the year  1,882,995  

      1,882,995  

5.00  Advances, deposits and prepayments    

   Advance against land purchase  99,400,000  
      99,400,000  

6.00  Cash at bank balance     
   Cash at bank in current accounts  50,045,790  

      50,045,790  

7.00  Share capital     
   Authorized share capital     

   10,000,000 ordinary Shares of BDT 10 each  100,000,000  

   Issued, subscribed and paid up capital    

   
Name Designation 

% of Shares Value of shares in  
    BDT  

     2015 2015  

   Mr. Ahmed Rajeeb Samdani Managing Director 25.00% 12,500,000  

   Golden Harvest Agro Industries Ltd. 75.00% 37,500,000  

     100% 50,000,000  

8.00  Retained earnings     
   Opening balance   -  
   Net loss after tax   (243,235)  

      (243,235)  

9.00  Accounts and other payables    

   Sundry creditors for goods & service  90,000  
   Inter company transaction (Note - 9.01)  101,424,520  

      101,514,520  

9.01  Inter company transaction     
   Golden Harvest Agro Ind. Ltd.  99,494,525  
   Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd.  1,929,995  
        

      101,424,520  

10.00  Accruals & provisions     
   Audit fees   57,500  

      57,500  

11.00  Administrative expenses     
   Salary and allowance   90,000  
   Fees, taxes & renewal   80,525  

   Audit fees   57,500  

   Bank charges   1,210  

   Miscelleneous expenses   14,000  

      243,235  
 

Auditors' fees represents audit fee for auditing the accounts for the year ended 30 June, 2015. 
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30-Jun-15 
 

12. Other information  
12.01 Capital expenditure commitment  

Contingent liabilities 
The Company confirms that there are no case filed against the Group which is not disclosed which would have been 

a material impact on the financial position of the Group. There was no Contingent Liabilities as on 30 June 2015. 

 
12.02 Related party transaction :  

The company has entered into transactions with other entities that fall within the definition of related party as contained in BAS- 

24 “Related Party Disclosures". Total transactions of the significant related party as at 30 June 2015 are as follows: 
 

 
Name of Company Relation ship 

 Opening 
Addition Adjustment 

 Closing 
  

balance 
 

balance        

         

 Golden Harvest Ice Cream Ltd. Common  - 2,845,362 915,367 1,929,995 
  Director       

    - 2,845,362 915,367 1,929,995 
       

12.03  Transaction with key management personnel's     
         

  
Particular

s   30-Jun-15  30-Jun-14 
        

 Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the year to the 
- 

 
-  directors, including managing directors.    

      

 Any other perquisite or benefits in cash or in kind stating,     

 approximate money value where applicable.   -  - 

 Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission -  - 

 Pensions etc.       - 

 (i) Pensions     -  - 

 (ii) Gratuities     -  - 

 (iii)Payments from a provident funds, in excess of own subscription and 
- 

 
-  interest thereon      

 Share based payments     -  - 

 
12.04 Claim not acknowledged as debt  

There was no claim against the company not acknowledged as debt as on 30-06-2015. 
 

12.05 Un-availed credit facilities  
Un-availed credit facilities to the company as on June 30, 2015 are as under: 

 
12.06 Employee details: 

 
i) During the year, there were 10 employees employed for the full year at a 

remuneration of BDT 3,000 per month and above.  
ii) At the end of the year, there were 10 employees in the Company. 

 
12.07 Rounding off  

Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest 

BDT and, wherever considered necessary. 
 

12.08 Rearrange of last year figures 
 

To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged or reclassified whenever 

considered necessary to conform to current year presentation. 
 

12.09 Post-balance sheet events 
 

There is no material events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events came to management attention which may be 

needful for the stakeholders. 
 

 

Director  Director Managing Director  
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Glossary  
 

Accounting Policies  
The specific principles, bases, conventions, rules 
and practices adopted by an enterprise in 
preparing and presenting Financial Statements. 

 

Accrual Basis  
Recording revenues & expenses in the period in 
which they are earned or incurred regardless of 
whether cash is received or disbursed in that period. 

 

Cost of Goods Sold - COGS  
The Cost of Goods Sold Productions. This generally 
refers to the cost of producing of produce. 

 

Amortisation  
The systematic allocation of the depreciable amount 
of an intangible asset over its useful life. 

 

EBITDA  
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization. 

 

Value Additions  
The quantum of wealth generated by the activities of 
the company and its application. 

 

Economic Value Addition  
EVA is an internal management performance measure that  
compares net operating profit to total cost of capital. 

 

Return on Equity  
Attributable profits divided by average 

shareholders' funds. 
 
Related Parties  
Parties who could control or significantly influence 

the financial and operating policies of the Company. 
 
Contingent Liabilities  
Conditions or situations at the balance sheet date, 

the financial effects of which are to be determined 

by future events, which may or may not occur. 
 
Working Capital  
Current assets exclusive of liquid funds and interest 

bearing financial receivables less operating liabilities and 

non-interest bearing provisions. 
 
Cash Equivalents  
Liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 
 
Current Ratio  
Current Assets divided by current liabilities. 
 
Debt to Equity Ratio  
Borrowing divided by equity. 
 
ISO  
International Standards Organization. 
 
HACCP  
Hazard Analysis Critical Control Point System.  
Internationally accepted food safety standard.  

Earnings Per Share - EPS  
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders divided by 

the number of ordinary shares in ranking for dividend. 

 

Price Earnings Ratio - PE  
Market Price of a share divided by earnings per share. 

 

Market Capitalization  
Number of Shares issues multiplied by the market 

value of each share at the year end. 

 

Shareholders Funds  
Stated Capital, Capital Reserves and Revenue Reserves. 

 

Net Assets  
Sum of fixed Assets and Current Assets less total Liabilities. 

 

Net Assets Per Share  
Net Assets at the end of the year divided by the number of  
Ordinary Shares issued.  

 
FMCG  
Fast Moving Consumer Goods. 
 
BU  
Business Unit.  
ERM  
Enterprise Risk Management. 
 
RCSA  
Risk Control Self-Assessment.  
MC  
Management Committee.  
GHAIL  
Golden Harvest Agro Industries Limited. 
 
GHIL  
Golden Harvest Ice-Cream Limited.  
ICAB  
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. 
 
ICSB 
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh.  
Tk. 
Bangladeshi Taka. 
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